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Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, NH 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Family Assistance to
exercise a renewal option to an existing agreement with Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc., 40
Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03301 (Vendor #177198), for the provision of staffing, employment and
training services by increasing the price limitation by $8,972,534.28 from $9,304,228.96 to
$18,276,763.24, and extending the contract completion date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. The Governor and Executive Council
approved the original agreement on May 1, 2013 (Item #37B). 75% Federal Funds and 25% General
Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in State
Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with the authority to adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years if needed and
justified without further approval from the Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-45-450010-61270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVSC, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, EMPLOYMENT
SUPPORT

SFY Class/Object Class Title Amount
2014 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $4,567,197.26
2015 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $4,737,031.70
2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $4,398,240.75
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $4,574,293.53
Total: |  $18,276,763.24
EXPLANATION

The purpose of this amendment is to renew contract services for the provision of employment,
and training services to individuals enrolled in New Hampshire Employment Program through the
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families Program required by the New Hampshire Employment
Program as defined in 45 CFR 261 - Ensuring That Recipients Work. These services enhance an
individual's ability to effectively prepare, seek, obtain and retain unsubsidized employment while
continuing to establish relationships with public, private and community agencies that provide
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resources and services to low income individuals and families with sensitivity to program participants
who may have no or limited English proficiency, thereby requiring additional cultural and linguistically
appropriate support.

The vendors for the Staffing Services and Combined Services Programs were selected through
competitive bid process. The Request for Proposal #13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03 was issued September
19, 2012 and #13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05 was issued on October 3, 2012. These Requests for Proposals
were posted on the Department of Health and Human Services website and bidder’s conferences were
held. Two experienced evaluation teams, each consisting of three (3) Department of Health and
Human Services employees with knowledge of the program requirements; knowledge of business and
financial management; and an understanding of the State Revised Statutes Annotated, Administrative
Rules and the Division of Family Assistance policy governing the operation of the New Hampshire
Employment Program evaluated these proposals. Southern New Hampshire Services was the
selected bidder for both the Staffing Services and the Combined Services Programs.

The Department is satisfied with the programs provided by Southern New Hampshire Services
and is exercising the option to renew contracted services as outlined in Standard Exhibit C-1,
Additional Special Provisions of the original contract.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Division of Family
Assistance could face a federal penalty of between $2 million dollars and $4 million dollars for any year
in which it does not meet federal welfare to work participation outcomes as defined in Federal
Regulation 45 CFR 261.50 — Penalties Apply to States Related to Work Requirements. Federal
penalties would negatively impact the citizens of New Hampshire.

Area served: Statewide.
Source of Funds: 75% Federal Funds, 25% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

mit/lql—DiTector

Division of Family Assistance

bc
Approved by: <

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Program and New Hampshire Employment Program Staffing

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Combined Services Program and New Hampshire Employment Program
Staffing Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Combined Services Program and New Hampshire Employment Program
contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #1”) dated this, February 9, 2015 is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State” or "Department”) and Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business 40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03103.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 1, 2013 (item #37B), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
scheduies and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, and Exhibit C-1
Paragraph 1, the State may renew the contract for four (4) additional years by written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council; and,;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the Contract for two (2) additional years and increase the price
limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

To amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, ltem 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2017
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, ltem 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$18,276,763.24
3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Item 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Eric D. Borrin
4. Form P-37, General Provisions, [tem 1.10, to read:
(603) 271-9558

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services and replace with Exhibit A — Amendment #1, Scope of
Services.

6. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, CONTRACT PERIOD, to read:
July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2017.
7. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Paragraph |, Subparagraph A, to read:

This contract is funded with federal funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance, CFDA #92.558, Federal Agency Health and Human Services Program Title
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families in the amount indicated in Form P-37, General
Provisions, Item 1.8, Price Limitation.

Southern NH Services, Inc.
Amendment #1
Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Program and New Hampshire Employment Program Staffing

10.

11.
12.
13.
14.

15.

16.

Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Paragraph |, Subparagraph B, to read:

Subject to the contractor’s compliance with the terms and conditions of this Contract, and for
services provided to eligible individuals, the Division of Family Assistance shall reimburse
Southern New Hampshire Services up to the maximum total in Form P-37, General Provisions,
item 1.8, Price Limitation.

Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Paragraph |, Subparagraph C, to read:

The total amount of all payments made to the contractor for costs and expenses incurred in the
performance of the Combined Staffing and Combined Services Programs during the period July
1, 2013 through June 30, 2017 shall not exceed for P-37, General Provisions, Iltem 1.8, Price
Limitation and shall be in accordance with SFY 14, SFY 15, SFY 16 and SFY 17 Budget Forms.

Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Paragraph I, to read:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any Federal
or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services or
products have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of
this agreement.

Add Exhibit B-1 - Amendment #1, Budget Forms SFY 2016.
Add Exhibit B-2 - Amendment #2, Budget Forms SFY 2017.
Delete Standard Exhibit C, Special Provisions, and replace with Exhibit C, Special Provisions.

Standard Exhibit D, Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements, Period Covered
by this Certification, to read:

From 7/1/2013 to 6/30/2017
Standard Exhibit E, Certification Regarding Lobbying, Contract Period, to read:
July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2017

Delete Standard Exhibit G, Certification Regarding the Americans with Disabilities Act
Compliance, and replace with Exhibit G, Certification of Compliance with Requirements
Pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations and
Whistleblower Protections.

Southern NH Services, Inc.

Amendment #1
Page 2 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Program and New Hampshire Employment Program Staffing

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health apld Human Services

2/////5 ﬁ?

Date Terry R=-Smith—
Director

Yt

Southern New Hampshire Seryigeé, Inc.

L Hho-15 AL

Date Nanpe: Gale F. Hennessy
Titlex Executive Dirégct

Acknowledgement: . .

State of"_Q@M, County of_NLldlmsygi > on Mﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁbefcre the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person-identified above, or §atisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

; e
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

DIANE P. ERIKSON, Notary Public
My Commission Expires May 23, 2019

Southern NH Services, Inc.
Amendment #1
Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Program and New Hampshire Employment Program Staffing

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

Dat3/27 /‘ > Name: | A
e | / Tle: A(\/\u/\ V[‘()MX

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Southern NH Services, Inc.
Amendment #1
Page 4 of 4



NH Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Contract

Standard Exhibit A — Amendment #1
Scope of Services

Combined Staffing and CSP Scope of Service - #13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03

I. General Terms and Conditions of Services

A. All Community Action Agency employees operating under the provisions of this
contract shall in addition to their own reporting requirements, report to the
individual designated by the Commissioner of the Department of Health and
Human Services who shall have authority for the Bureau of Welfare to Work

(BWW).

1. The individual identified by the Commissioner of the Department of Health
and Human Services shall also be directly responsible for the operations of
the New Hampshire Employment Program and shall have oversight of this
contract and the performance measurements contained herein.

il. In accordance with RFP#13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03 issued September 5,
2012, this contract may be extended for two (2) 2-year periods without
further competitive bidding.

1. Extension of this contract is contingent upon the satisfactory
performance by the SNHS of all services required.

2.  Extension of this contract is further contingent upon approval by the
New Hampshire Governor and Executive Council.

lll.  Under this New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) Staffing contract,
the SNHS, Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS), will provide
services to participants who are eligible to receive Temporary Assistance
for Needy Families (TANF). The contractor will:

1.  Provide management, direct service, and administrative staff to serve
under the New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP);

2. Provide supervision of contract services and administrative staff to
operate and support all aspects of central office and field office
service delivery;

3.  Provide all NHEP team members and administrative staff with a
cohesive link for Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)
eligible participants to other needed services by establishing
relationships with other public, private and community agencies and
organizations that provide a variety of resources and services to low
income individuals and families;

4.  All of the contractor staff will provide services to participants according
to the State of New Hampshire calendar of business days. Hours of
operation will be 8:00 AM to 4:30 PM, Monday through Friday. Only
with the expressed permission of DFA Management, may any of the
offices be closed early, and/or the hours of operation changed.

5. Inherent in meeting the requirements of this contract is the ability of
the contractor to bring to NHEP the expertise, experience and
knowledge to established statewide community relationships that will

Southern NH Services, Inc. 10f48 Contractor Initials:_{
Standard Exhibit A — Amendment #1 ] *6&. ‘
Combined Services Contract Date: 2 - ’ /



NH Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Contract

enhance and increase the NHEP ability to move low-income
individuals to financial independence through employment.

6. The Division of Family Assistance (DFA) is the single State agency
that administers NHEP and retains final authority on all policy matters
and NHEP communications.

IV. The contractor will be required to recruit and hire individuals with
professional background, experience and expertise to provide the services
required in this contract. This includes but is not limited to persons with
proven knowledge and experience in the area of employment, labor market
information and training services with the ability to motivate and inspire
participants to attain and achieve their identified occupational short and
long-term career goals. The contractor's staff hired for or assigned to
NHEP shall have experience that demonstrates proficiency in teamwork,
communication and interpersonal skills.

1. The contractor must provide staff assigned to this program that shall,
at minimum, meet the following requirements:

a. Is of a sufficient number to deliver the contracted program
services and continues to do so without interruption due to
vacations, sickness, or vacancies. DFA reserves the right, as
needed, to make adjustments in staff allocations and worksite
assignments;

b.  Each of the contractor’s staff shall have a job title, and specified
duties and responsibilities attached to program delivery,
however, all contractor staff shall also demonstrate the versatility
to be cross-trained in all areas of program position, functions
and activities.

c. If in a full-time position, works thirty-seven (37) and one-half
(1/2) hours per week;

d. The contractor's staff whose criminal background check does
not reveal violations or convictions that could adversely affect
the participants served under this program;

e. The contractor’s staff that have read and signed a completed
Statement of Confidentiality; and

f. Adhere to the DFA Code of Ethics.

V. All of the contractor's staff assigned to the NHEP will have accountability to
the DFA, Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work. In all matters of performance
under this contract, the BWW Bureau Chief will have the highest level of
authority and supervision.

VI. The Bureau Chief of the DFA BWW, or his or her designee, reserves the
right to participate in the contractor’s hiring process and/or approve all of
the contractor’s staff that works under this contract.

VII. All employees operating under the provisions of this contract shall, in
addition to their own reporting requirements, report to the individual
designated by the BWW Bureau Chief. DFA reserves the right to remove
any contracted employee from the program for unsatisfactory services.

ﬁ7ﬂ\

Southern NH Services, Inc. 20f48 Contractor Initials:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Contract

VIII. Any sub-contracted staff shall be identified as such by the contractor, and
shall meet or exceed the staffing requirements articulated herein. DFA
reserves the right, with sixty-day (60) advanced notice, to disallow sub-
contract use when the sub-contractor’'s handling of staffing concerns is not
satisfactory to DFA.

IX.  The contractor is required to make every effort to fill vacancies within six
(6) weeks of the date of vacancy but no longer than ten (10) weeks from the
date of vacancy. The contractor will be required to arrange for program
services to be maintained during periods when vacancies or extended
absences occur, through replacement or reassignment of staff. In the case
of an extended absence for more than six weeks, a replacement or a
reassignment shall be made at the discretion of the BWW Bureau Chief, or
his designees.

X. The contractor will be required to develop Standard Job Descriptions
(SJD’s) for each of the contracted full or partial positions that are specific to
the background, experience, expertise and job duties of that position. DFA
shall have the right to review and make recommendations to these SJD’s.

Xl. The contractor will provide and maintain staffing levels as follows:

1.  Fifteen (15) Full Time Equivalent (FTE) front-line staff to serve as
Employment Counselor Specialists (ECS) of the NH Employment
Program interagency teams.

a. Full-time employment of ECS staff is thirty-seven (37) and one-
half (1/2) hours per week.

b. Minimum qualifications for ECS staff will be:

i. Education: Bachelor's degree from an approved college or
university with major study in social work, psychology,
education, human services, sociology, counseling, behavioral
science or a related field; and

ii. Experience: One (1) year of experience as an ECS Trainee
or three years in social work, counseling, family services,
education, staff training, employee development, employment
counseling, recruitment, or human resources: or

ii. Education: Associate’'s degree from an approved college or
university with major study in social work, psychology,
education, human services, sociology, counseling, behavioral
science or a related field; and

iv. Experience: Three (3) years of experience as an ESC
Trainee or five (5) years in social work, counseling, family
services, education, staff training, employee development,
employment counseling, recruitment, or human resources.

v. A combination of education and experience that
demonstrates an ability to fulfill the duties of an ESC.

vi. This position reports directly to the Field Support Manager
(FSM) with programmatic oversight by the NHEP
Administrator.

Southern NH Services, Inc. 30of48 Contractor Initials: llk
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Contract

¢. Duties of the ECS staff include:

i. Provide group and one-on-one employment counseling to
NHEP participants and conduct presentations at orientation
sessions;

ii. Assess and evaluate an NHEP participant's work experience,
education, aptitudes, interests, and personal characteristics to
develop and write an employability plan with the participant
and determine the degree of physical, social and emotional
limitations to help the participant identify, understand and
overcome barriers to employment;

ii. Provide employment focused case management services;

iv. Determine appropriate NHEP activities, including contracted
services and referral to Workforce Investment Act (WIA)
services as appropriate;

v. Authorize NHEP program and support services;

vi. Monitor employability plans and provide case management
services while the participant is eligible for NHEP and for the
extended case management period after the closing of cash
assistance;

vii. Apply the policy and procedures of the NHEP program as
contained in the Precision Case Management- Field Workers
Guide, training manual, policy releases, DFA Family
Assistance Manual and clarifying memos;

viii. Attend training to maintain level of competency and expertise
in policy and skills needed to effectively implement NHEP
policy; keep abreast of local employment and training
opportunities, labor market conditions, tools and resources;
and become proficient in the use of the New HEIGHTS
computer system.

ix. Develop and maintain ongoing working relationships with local
and state agencies, community organizations, and employers
to develop child care and transportation arrangements,
activities supporting employment, support services and
employment and training opportunities;

x. Enter all NHEP activity information on the New HEIGHTS
System in a timely manner;

xi. Support NHEP goals, objectives and team concept, and work
collaboratively with other team members in the delivery of
employment, training, barrier resolution, education, job
preparation and support services; and

xii. Other duties as assigned by the Field Support Manager,
NHEP Administrator or the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work,
and/or their designee.

Southern NH Services, Inc. 4 of 48 Contractor Initials: (é)é
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Contract

xiii. NHEP ECS’ will refer participants for participation in approved
Federal activities. Depending on participant need, program
requirements and necessary federal participation hours
required for participants to be in compliance, participants can
engage in any and all activities for the required number of
hours allowed per federal law at 42 USC 607, (c).

2. One (1) Full-time employment Field Support Manager. FSM staff will
work thirty-seven (37) and one-half (1/2) hours per week.

3. Minimum qualifications for FSM staff will be:

a. Bachelor's degree from an approved college or university with a
major study in social work, psychology, education, human
services, sociology, counseling or behavioral science; and

b. Six (6) years experience as a social worker or counselor in a
public or private social service agency with three (3) years in a
supervisory or management level position; or

c. A combination of education and experience that demonstrates an
ability to fulfill the duties of a Field Support Manager.

d. This position reports directly to the NHEP Administrator with
programmatic oversight by the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work.

4.  The duties of the Field Support Manager (FSM) are to:

a. Communicate NHEP performance goals, standards and
expectations to NHEP teams and supervisors;

b. Ensure correct application of NHEP policies and procedures;

¢. Review individual and team performance and initiate corrective
action to meet performance measures;

d. Provide policy support and clarification to local NHEP teams;
e. Provide assistance and resources as needed for fair hearings;

Provide systems support to assure that New HEIGHTS
procedures, work-around(s), changes, and updates are
communicated to teams;

g. Consult with NHEP/New HEIGHTS Help Desk, and/or Bridges
contact person, and/or Bureau of Data Management, and/or Child
Development Unit;

h. Present to Program Administrators for discussion and clarification
issues raised by the NHEP Local Teams;

i. Conduct performance evaluations for SNHS ECSs and other
SNHS staff assigned to DFA State Office;

j- Act as the liaison when conducting, coordinating and facilitating
communication meetings between NHEP and its contractor; and

k. Other duties as assigned by the NHEP Administrator or the
Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work, and/or their designee. \
(%
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Contract

5. One (1) FTE to serve as BWW Operations Specialist (BWW- OS).
Full-time employment of BWW-OS staff is thirty-seven (37) and one-
half (1/2) hours per week. Minimum qualifications for BWW-OS staff
will be:

a. Bachelor's degree from a recognized college or university with
major study in Human Services, Business, or Program
Management. Each additional year of approved formal education
may be substituted for one year of required work experience.

b. Three years professional or paraprofessional experience in
program monitoring and evaluation. Each additional year of
approved work experience may be substituted for one (1) year of
required formal education; or

c. A combination of education and experience that demonstrates an
ability to fulfill the duties of the BWW Operations Specialist (BWW-
0S).

d. This position reports directly to the NHEP Administrator, with
programmatic oversight by the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work.

6. The duties of the BWW Operations Specialist are to:

a. Conduct remote ECS case reviews in conjunction with the Field
Support Manager, of local NHEP teams 1o ensure correct
application of NHEP policies and procedures, effective Precision
Case Management (PCM) practices & outcomes, meeting of
performance measures (especially Participant Participation Rates)
and initiation of corrective action to meet performance measures.

b. Make recommendations for policy revisions based upon NHEP
team input and Field Support Manager consensus;

c. Consult with NHEP/New HEIGHTS Help Desk, and/or BRIDGES
contact person, and/or the DHHS Bureau of Data Management,
and/or the DHHS Child Development Unit;

d. Address questions, and possible policy and systems conflicts
through discussion within the Field Support Managers and the
TANF unit, addressing any identified changes that are needed
with the Program Administrators, systems or policy staff as
appropriate;

e. Review all available statistics and reports, including ‘scrubbing’
ECS caseloads to increase participation rates; research Exempt &
Employed Reports;

f. Compare reports and statistics to performance measures and
work with NHEP field staff to improve program performance, and
review monitoring results from DHHS Quality Assurance Unit, if
available;

g. Coordinate and organize documents & reports submitted from
field staff, check for accuracy and consistency; enter data and
record in designated application software (e.g., New HEIGHTS,
Bridges); prepare BWW reports; and file documents appropriately;

Southern NH Services, Inc. 6 of 48 Contractor Initials:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Contract

h. Update and distribute electronically revisions to the PCM Manual.
Track and report PCM outcome data;

i. Provide support to the BWW On-the-Job Training Program (OJT)
supports to include NHEP and WIA OJT contract monitoring,
employer invoicing, participant and employer site evaluations
oversight; develop tracking sheets and other related information
and disseminate identified information to NHEP field staff,
compiling recidivism data and track OJT volume and outcomes.
Use Word, Excel, or required database software to produce
correspondence and ad hoc, monthly, and quarterly financial or
program-related reports; use e-mail to communicate with internal
and external customers and distribute reports and documents via
same;

j- Collect participant caseload, exit, and outcome data (e.g., volume
of Sanctions, number of open, closed, or denied cases); input
transactions into Excel and/or New HEIGHTS database; and use
Excel and New HEIGHTS data to update existing management
reports or produce other ad hoc reports as needed;

k. Investigate and address concerns and complaints received from
within DFA, outside agencies and contract agencies;

I. Other duties as assigned by the NHEP Administrator or the
Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work, and/or their designee.

Xll. One (1) FTE to serve as Welfare to Work Program Assistant (WtW-PA).

1.  Fultime employment of WtW-PA staff is thirty-seven (37) and one-
half (1/2) hours per week.

2.  Minimum qualifications for WtW-PA staff will be:

a. Associates Degree or higher and two (2) years experience as an
Administrative Assistant or Project/Program Assistant; a
combination of a High School Diploma (or GED) and four (4) or
more years of experience as an Administrative Assistant or
Project/Program Assistant may be considered; or

b. A combination of education and experience that demonstrates an
ability to fulfill the duties of a WtW-PA, with

c. Knowledge of modern office practices, procedures and equipment.
Knowledge of English, spelling and arithmetic.

Knowledge of office record keeping and reporting.

e. Some knowledge of the principles and practices of public
administration.

f. This position reports directly to the NHEP Administrator. The
duties of the WIW-PA is to:

g. Coordinate production and flow of financial information between
the vendor's fiscal office, the NHEP Administrator and DFA
Contracts Administrator as requested,

Contractor Initials: G‘Aé
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h.

Use Microsoft Word and Excel, or required database software to
produce correspondence and ad hoc, monthly, and quarterly
financial or program-related reports; use e-mail to communicate
with internal and external agency staff and distribute reports and
documents via same;

Design and/or update various NHEP and Statewide Reports in
accordance with contractual guidelines at the start of each State
Fiscal Year (SFY);

Provide technical support and training to program staff to ensure
accurate and complete reporting.

Collect and review local reports from NHEP staff and use excel to
compile Statewide NHEP Statistical Reports on a monthly, weekly,
or annual basis;

Use New HEIGHTS case management system to research TANF
participant information and support program operations; assist
staff in resolving technical issues pertaining to New HEIGHTS
access and use;

. Enter and/or maintain participant-related data (such as

demographic, program status changes, etc.) in the electronic
customer database and produce reports as requested;

Maintain, revise, and distribute policies, directives, and
procedures per supervisor instruction;

Facilitate purchase of equipment and office supplies and maintain
related records.

Process and track payments as needed.

Maintain and distribute the staff contact list, and other duties as
assigned by the NHEP Administrator or the Bureau Chief of
Welfare to Work, and/or their designee.

Xllt. One .40 FTE NHEP Operations Manager to provide and supervise
analytical, technical, administrative, research and customer support
services to the Bureau of Welfare to Work (BWW).

1. Minimum qualifications Bachelor's degree from a recognized college

or

university with major study in Human Services, Business or

Program Management; each additional year of approved formal
education may be substituted for one (1) year of required work
experience. Three (3) years of professional experience in supervision,
program monitoring and evaluation or a combination of education and
experience, that demonstrates an ability to fulfill the duties of the
BWW Operations Supervisor Il.

2. Duties of the NHEP Operations Manager are to:

a.

Southern NH Services, Inc.

Provides supervisory oversight of reviewing available statistics
and reports, including but not limited to, contract reports, OJT &
Subsidized Employment invoicing and tracking, and other BWW

reports;
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
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b. Works with FSM to identify and provide reports for improved
program performance utilizing an internal monitoring process
related to the PCM and the Field Workers Guide. Compares
reports, information and statistics to compile staff performance
measures,

¢. Works with FSMs, NHEP teams, the OJT Unit, BWW and the
TANF unit to assure PCM field practices and the application of
NHEP policy and procedures are published and implemented
correctly;

d. Coordinates and organizes documents & reports submitted from
field and state office staff, checks for accuracy and consistency;
enters data and records in designated application software (e.g.,
New HEIGHTS, BRIDGES); prepares BWW reports;

e. Manages ACCESS databases and programmatic surveys to
produce management reports to evaluate program/staff
performance. Responsible for the updating, maintenance and
distribution of revisions to the PCM, including the Field Workers
and Field Managers Guides.

f. Creates charts, tables, diagrams, flow charts, etc., to depict BWW
operations and performance outcomes, including tracking of
contractor outcomes;

g. Provides direct supervisory oversight in the collection of
participant caseload, exit, and outcome data (e.g., volume of
sanctions, number of open, closed, or denied cases); inputs
transactions into Excel and/or New HEIGHTS database; and uses
Excel & New HEIGHTS data to update existing management
reports or produce other ad hoc reports as needed;

XIV. Two (2) FTE NHEP Quality Assurance Reviewers to conduct precision case
management audits, Federal monitoring reviews per the State Work
Verification plan, and other quality assurance activities to ensure the
continuous improvement of the NH Employment Program. The incumbent
will perform other desk reviews, research activities, and program
performance analyses as directed.

1.  Preferred: Bachelor's degree from an approved college or university
with a major study in social work, psychology, education, human
services, sociology, counseling, behavioral science or a related field.
One (1) year of experience as an ECS Trainee or three years in social
work, counseling, family services, education, staff training, employee
development, employment counseling, recruitment, or human
resources. Optional consideration: Associate’'s degree from an
approved college or university with a major study in social work,
psychology, education, human services, sociology, counseling,
behavioral science or a related field. Three (3) years at or above the
level of Social Worker or Employment Counselor or five (5) years in
social work, counseling, family services, education, staff training,
employee development, employment counseling, recruit
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demonstrates an ability to fulfill the duties of a Program Outcome
Reviewer.

2. Duties of NHEP Quality Assurance Reviewers are to:

a. Establish an annual Precision Case Management (PCM) audit
schedule to review Employment Counselor Specialist (ECS)
compliance with NHEP policies and Precision Case Management
(PCM) practices in designated DHHS District Offices.

b. Conduct a PCM audit using prescribed forms and review process
consisting of a Desk Review (or “scrub”) of current ECS caseload
as exhibited in participant tracking in New Heights Information
System.

c. Perform an On-Site Review and observation of ECS actions with
participants, observation of an NHEP Orientation, a Service
Determination Appointment (SDA), and a Follow-up appointment.

d. Complete a Federal monitoring process in one (1) week period
each month, which consists of reviewing participant activity hours
entered into New Heights by the ECS compared to timesheets
submitted by the participant and reviewing Job Search logs
submitted by a sample of participants selected for review.

e. Perform other desk reviews and research activities, investigate
complaints, prepare for Fair Hearings, and conduct program
performance analyses assigned by the WTW Bureau Chief or his
designee.

XV. One (1) FTE Career Pathways Specialist to act as a conduit to assist New
Hampshire Employment Program staff and participants in identifying and
accessing education/training degrees, diplomas, and/or certificates leading
to long-term attachment to the labor market and self-sufficiency.

1. Minimum qualifications for the Career Pathways Specialist position
include a Bachelor's degree from an approved college or university
with major study in social work, psychology, education, human
services, sociology, counseling, behavioral science or a related field
and one (1) year of experience as an Employment Counselor
Specialist Trainee or three years in social work, counseling,
education, staff training, employee development, or human resources,
or three years as a Family Service Specialist at any level. Preference
will be given to candidates with a minimum of one (1) year of
experience with knowledge of teaching methods and subject material
relating to programs of education at all school levels; knowledge of
educational standards and adult learner assessment methods (e.g.
TABE, CASAS); familiarity with the education/training needs and
barriers faced by low income adult learners including identification and
accommodations for learning difficulties; familiarity with vocational
education facilities, 2- and 4-year post-secondary institutions, and
proprietary training organizations in the State; familiarity with common
Financial Aid available products and programs to minimize student
debt to the greatest extent possible.
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2.  Duties of the Career Pathways Specialist are to:

a.

Work with participants and other NHEP ECSs to identify potential
educationftraining programs and providers, both traditional
institutions and on-line educationailtraining providers that match
the NHEP participant's vocational assessment and long-term
career goals within the available labor market and according to
NHEP policy.

Analyze national information concerning the Career Pathways
Initiative,  investigating  other models that integrate
educationftraining into  TANF work programs for long-term
attachment to the labor market and earnings gain.

Research and identify tuition funds available for education/training
programs from a wide variety of educational funding sources
including but not limited to federal and state financial aid, WIOA,
Vocational Rehabilitation, etc., while avoiding or minimizing the
accumulation of educational debt for participants as much as
possible. Assist and advise Employment Counselor Specialists
and participants in accessing these funds on a statewide basis.
Develop resources for information pertaining to educational
opportunities and financial aid for statewide use.

Develop tools for NHEP ECSs and participants that specify a clear
career path (plan) along with the concrete steps to achieve long-
term attachment to the labor market and economic independence
for current and exiting participants.

Track and analyze participant outcomes for those who engage in
education/training activities, identifying gaps in long-term career
planning where NHEP program operations may need
improvement.

Work closely with the CSP Program Resources Coordinator and
CSP Career Centers to ensure a consistent model and method of
identifying appropriate  candidates for education/training
opportunities, labor market trends and information, and ensure
complementary information between KET Work Skills and NHEP
Portfolio information.

Update the “Planning for Success” Portfolio to keep current with
the latest job readiness and job search strategies.

Research and analyze labor markets to identify employer needs,
employment trends and labor shortages requiring specific
education/training programs to meet the labor demand.

Monitor career plans and services to the sub-group of TANF
participants who lack a High School Diploma or equivalency and
perform outreach and vocational counseling to those participants
to facilitate success in completing basic education or educational
preparatory/prerequisite programs.

Serve as the key NHEP representative to the NH Department of
Education/Adult Education, Community College System of]NH,
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and local education/training providers to access available
educationftraining programs. Identify occupations in demand,
growing occupations and those occupations with tuition
forgiveness programs.

k. Investigate non-traditional occupations for women and help create
opportunities for women on TANF.

XVI. One .33 FTE NHEP Administrator:

1. Full-time employment of the Administrator is in accordance with
SNHS personnel policies governing this level of administration.

2.  Minimum qualifications for the Administrator will be:

a. Bachelor's degree from an approved college or university with a
major study in social work, psychology, education, human
services, sociology, counseling or behavioral science; and

b. Six (6) years experience as a social worker or counselor in a
public or private social service agency with three (3) years in a
supervisory or management level position; or

c. A combination of education and experience that demonstrates an
ability to fulfill the duties of the NHEP Administrator.

3. The duties of the NHEP Administrator is to:

a. Establish and monitor NHEP program objectives as directed by
the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work, and or his designee;

b. Make major policy decisions in collaboration with the Bureau Chief
of Welfare to Work, and/or his designee;

¢. Ensure interagency coordination in program development and
problem resolution; Coordinate the delivery of NHEP policy and
procedure training for NHEP teams;

d. Provide supervision of agency-related matters for the contract
NHEP FSM, and the BWW Operations Assistant; and;

e. Serve as the contract administrator and be responsible for the
overall management and coordination of this contract.

4. The contractor shall oversee the contract on a day-to-day basis and
shall be responsible for:

a. Ensuring that the contractor's staff carry out their functions
described in this contract and the standard job descriptions, and
adhere to project schedules, NH-DHHS policy and procedures,
and performance measures and standards;

b. Interfacing directly with the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work,
and/or his designee, and the DFA Contracts Administrator,

Providing data, information and reports to DFA as requested; and
d. Other duties as agreed to through negotiation with DFA.
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. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

A. The contractor must provide services described herein uniformly throughout the
State of New Hampshire at locations designated by DFA.

B. The contractor shall deliver services in accordance with the mission, goals,
policies, and procedures of NHEP, along with applicable State and Federal Laws
and Regulations as indicated in this contract, and the RFP, and shall train all the
contractor's staff on the duties, responsibilities, requirements and provisions of
this contract.

C. The contractor will be required to accept all applicants and recipients referred by
DFA in accordance with established NHEP policies.

D. The contractor will be required to ensure that program requirements and
philosophy are consistently applied to all participants and/or their families.

E. The contractor must deliver services with a high degree of respect for the
participants, sensitivity to their circumstances, and in a manner, that builds self-
esteem and motivation.

F. The contractor staff will be required to attend meetings and/or training programs
as required by DFA. Advance notice of meetings and training sessions, to the
extent possible shall be provided by DFA.

G. The contractor will have the ability to maintain and preserve records and any
other documentation in the SNHS' possession, that were used in the
administration of the resultant contract, for a period of three years from the close
of the Federal fiscal year in which the contract ends.

H. The contractor acknowledges that all curriculums based material, employer and
work experience development falls under the onus of DFA.

I. The contractor is required to maintain the confidentiality of all participant
information that is acquired, by any means including computer access, in
accordance with DFA confidentiality requirements. The contractor will be
required to insure that access to participant information is limited to only that
contractor staffs that have a need to know in order to perform their job duties.
The contractor must also insure that all staff are trained on the DFA
confidentiality requirements and that all of the contractor's staff sign a
confidentiality statement attesting to the fact that DFA confidentiality
requirements are understood and will be observed.

J. The contractor must have the ability to respond to any state or federal audits
under this contract within fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving the audit
report, and initiate corrective action as necessary.

lll. CONTRACT PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS
A. Provision of Program Services

I. The contractor's staff hired under this contract are expected to administer
program services as specified in the definitions of allowable activities as
described in the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Act of 1996
as amended by the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 and federal regulations at
45 CFR 261.2 and adhere to any new passed federal legislation that may be
enacted during the operation of a contract with DFA to provide Shese
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services. Should such legislation conflict with the Scope of Services, the
parties will enter into good faith negotiations to reach mutual agreement on a
contract addendum or amendment, and if applicable, seek Governor and
Executive Council approval thereof;

Il. Meet the conditions set forth under the Fair Labor Standards Act and State
law found at RSA 167:77 — 167:92 and administrative rules pursuant to He-W
637.

B. Work Participation Rates

I. NHEP Local Teams and individual members of the teams must meet no less
than a 50% (fifty percent) “All Families” participation rate pursuant to RSA
167:77a, and 45 CFR 261.21. Federal law requires adherence to these rates
and failure to do so results in a substantial financial penalty to the federal
TANF block grant.

Il. Participation rates are reported quarterly to the Federal government via their
prescribed reports. These reports will be used to determine compliance with
this performance standard. The data comes from New HEIGHTS as
identified by field staff and monitored by the local office managers and the
FSM.

lll. Verification of the participant activities and documentation of good and
satisfactory progress must be present in the participant case record and
entered into New HEIGHTS.

IV. Implementation of this standard will be effective with the implementation of
this contract.

C. Precision Case Management — Field Workers Guide

I. NHEP Team members are required to refer to and follow the procedural
guidelines set forth in the BWW PCM - Field Workers Guide to ensure best-
case practice and program implementation effectiveness.

Il. Team members will be evaluated for adherence to a best standard of
practice, no less than once every twelve (12) months in a rolling calendar
year.

[ll. FSM is required to refer to and follow the procedural guidelines set forth in
the BWW PCM - Field Workers Guide, and FSM Guide when available.

D. Evaluation of Performance

I. DFA shall designate the performance evaluation criteria, specific
performance goals, and outcome measures to be utilized. Any deficiencies
identified shall be presented and discussed with the NHEP Teams and FSM,
in conjunction with the NHEP Administrator, and the Bureau Chief of Welfare
to Work, and/or his designee as needed.

Il. Corrective action plans, if required, shall also be requested and reviewed by
the NHEP Program Administrator and the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work.
The FSM is responsible for the implementation of corrective action to ensure
that performance standards are met.

Ill. A DFA standardized ranking instrument shall be utilized during the operation
of this contract period.
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1. Any of the following methods may be used, but are not limited to, by the
FSM or other designated individuals to verify performance:

On-site observation;
Review of management reports;
Interviews with consumers;

A S

Federal and State monitoring of policies, procedures and case
management; and

6. Random sampling of case records.
IV. QUARTERLY EVALUATION REVIEWS

A. A quarterly contract evaluation meeting shall take place with the NHEP
Administrator, BWW Bureau Chief, Contracts Administrator, or designees,
following the end of each quarter. The purpose of the meeting is to review and
evaluate how well the requirements of the contract are being met, what
changes, if any, are needed, and to jointly develop a plan of action for the
remainder of the contract.

B. Atthe end of each quarter, a formal performance evaluation meeting will be held
with the NHEP Administrator, BWW Bureau Chief, or designees. The purpose
of the meeting is to review and evaluate how well the NHEP teams are meeting
the federal participation rates, the federal performance criteria and the
performance criteria established by DFA Bureau of Welfare to Work. It is
expected that informal performance meetings will be held on the remainder of
the months. Each meeting shall result in a report that rates each of the
performance areas and, if there are deficiencies, provides a corrective action
plan to correct the deficiencies.

Combined Staffing and CSP Scope of Service - #13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05

l. General Terms and Conditions of Service

A. All Community Action Agency employees operating under the provisions of this
contract shall in addition to their own reporting requirements, report to the
individual designated by the Commissioner of the Department of Health and
Human Services who shall have authority for the Bureau of Welfare to Work.

I. The individual identified by the Commissioner of the Department of Health
and Human Services shall also be directly responsible for the operations of
the New Hampshire Employment Program and shall have oversight of this
contract and the performance measurements contained herein.

il. In accordance with RFP#13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05 issued on October 3, 2012,
this contract may be extended for two (2) 2-year periods without further
competitive bidding.

Ill.  Extensions of this contract are contingent upon the satisfactory performance
by the contractor of all services required.

IV. Extension of this contract is further contingent upon approval of the New
Hampshire Governor and Executive Council.
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B. Under this Division of Family Assistance (DFA), New Hampshire Employment
Combined Services Program, herein known as CSP, the contractor, Southern
New Hampshire Services (SNHS) will provide services to participants in the New
Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) that are eligible to receive Temporary
Assistance to Needy Families (TANF). Participants served may also be
designated as having no or limited English proficiency to the degree that they are
unable to effectively engage in general work program services, thereby requiring
additional culturally and linguistically appropriate supports/services be provided
that ensures equal access in all aspects of this contract.

C. Under this Combined Service Program (CSP) the contractor will provide the
following work activities per 45 CFR 261.2 and RSA 167.77 through 167.92,
which include: job readiness, job search, community service program, work
experience, job skills training directly related to employment, and On-the Job
Training. Participants will acquire general skills, knowledge and work habits
necessary to obtain and retain gainful employment, and obtain occupations in
support of long term self sufficiency.

D. The contractor shall provide these services on a statewide basis to cover up to
twelve (12) geographic locations identified in Section 1V, Program Referral
Guidelines, Paragraph D, Table 1 of this contract. In addition to the services
described above, the contractor will operate a combined service facility where
TANF eligible individuals receive work program services. The contractor will be
responsible for the overall operation of the facility and the provision of the work
activities as identified above.

E. Proposed plans to sub-contract any part of this contract, if any, are to be clearly
outlined.

[. Any partnership must demonstrate mutually understood and well-articulated
roles and responsibilities, as well as a collaborative process between
partners to monitor program quality and to resolve differences or operational
problems.

II. The sub-contracts should describe the role(s) and responsibilities of each
entity under the same guidelines established by this contract.

lll. The Contract Administrator must approve each sub-contract prior to
signature. DHHS reserves the right to request changes to any contract
presented for approval.

IV. The contractor is the established single point of contact for DFA and will be
responsible for all deliverables associated with this contract. Any proposed
programmatic or operational changes within the partnering organizations will
require prior approval by DFA. DFA reserves the right to remove any
subcontracted partner from the project for unsatisfactory services.

V. The contractor is responsible for tracking outcomes and developing or
changing tracking systems to align with any requests made by DFA. It is the
SNHS'’s responsibility to maintain detailed records of its activities and
required deliverables.

VI. All contractor staff and sites will be open and providing services to
participants according to the State of New Hampshire calendar of business
days. Hours of operation will be 8:00 AM to 4:30 PM Monday through
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Friday.1 Only with the expressed permission of DFA Management, may any
of the offices be closed early, and/or the hours of operation changed.

Vil.  The contractor is advised that during the term of the contract, DFA reserves
the right to modify services in this contract to conform to federal or state
regulatory changes to the Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF)
Block Grant Program or the NHEP, or any other State and Federal related
regulation.

VIII. If changes to the scope of service are necessary as a result of regulatory
changes, the contractor and DFA will enter into good-faith negotiations of
the services and the costs associated with the delivery of those services.

ll. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards

A. DHHS recognizes that culture and language have considerable impact on how
individuals access and respond to health and human services. Culturally and
linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in efforts to access
services. To ensure equal access in all aspects of this project, DFA expects the
contractor to provide culturally and linguistically appropriate services according
to the following guidelines:

l. Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their
community;

I. Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively
with consumers with respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse
environment;

. Offer consumers a forum through which participants have the opportunity
to provide feedback to the contractor regarding cultural and linguistic
issues that may deserve response;

IV.  Effective outreach and networking methods to engage and build trust with
individuals with respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse home
environments, if applicable; and

V. Provide interpretation/communication assistance services for those
individuals who need it.

B. This section provides an overview of the allowable NHEP activities further
defined at 45 CFR 261.2, and in Section 4.3: Direct Service Requirements being
procured through this contract. The purpose of the provision of these activities
is to ensure that the program operates within federal and state law, regulations
and administrative rules. Using both quantitative and qualitative outcome
measures, the goal is to move participants towards self-sufficiency through the
dignity of unsubsidized employment. The NHEP activities provided will be as
follows:

I Job readiness services to assist participants in gaining the skills
necessary to obtain and retain employment.

Il Job readiness includes:

! DFA reserves the right to alter the hours of operation, with sixty-day (60) advanced notice. ;
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1. A vocational assessment service to assess standardized
educational attainment through testing and interpretation, to assist
participants in determining vocational goals for self-sustaining
employment and a career path to that goal. This vocational
assessment will result in the identification of short and long-term
career goals, and the existing availability of the identified
occupations in the labor market. Additional job readiness
curriculum, including life skills training will be provided; and

2. Job search to assist participants in conducting effective job search
leading to employment, to include the creation of cover letters,
resumes, references, applications, job interviewing skills, job
follow-up etiquette and techniques and education on the utilization
of existing labor market tools and information. This activity will also
include the provision of Job Club, which entails: peer support,
building effective networking skills, hosting employer quest visits,
appropriate use of program resources, displaying, and teaching
program participants how to learning of suitable job openings which
exist in their local labor market and other job search initiatives; and

3. Alternative Work Experience Placement (AWEP), defined as an
activity that places participants in voluntary work experience
positions that are not considered community service programs.
The purpose of this activity, if private sector employment is not
available, means a work activity performed in return for welfare that
provides an individual with an opportunity to acquire the general
skills, knowledge, and work habits necessary to obtain
employment. The purpose of the work experience is to improve the
employability of those that cannot find unsubsidized employment.
The expectation is that SNHS will develop sufficient and
appropriate AWEP host sites in order for participants to utilize this
activity. This activity shall be provided pursuant to RSA 167:82-a
and 167:91a-b; and

4, Community Work Experience Placement (CWEP), defined as work
performed for the direct benefit of the community under the
auspices of public or nonprofit organization. This activity must
serve a useful community purpose, will be available from both the
contractor's worksite locations and in the community at non-profit
and public organizations to improve the employability of
participants. Short-term training is also permitted as long as such
activities are of limited duration and are an integral part of a CWEP.
The expectation is that the contractor will develop sufficient and
appropriate CWEP host sites in order for participants to utilize this
activity. This activity shall be provided pursuant to RSA 167:82-a
and 167:91a-b; and

5. Job Skills Training Directly Related to Employment (JSTDRE),
which is defined as: training or education for job skills required by
an employer to provide an individual the ability to obtain
employment or advance or adapt to the changes demands of the
work place; and
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6. On-the-Job Training (OJT), which is defined as training in the
public or private sector that is given to a paid employee while he or
she is engaged in productive work and that provides knowledge
and skills essential to the full adequate performance of the job.

C. The Combined Services Program must be designed to provide for open
enroliment and open exit by NHEP participants. Referred NHEP participants
must be able to enter the program upon the contractor's receipt of referral
paperwork from NHEP or be placed on the program waiting list, if appropriate.
Section 4.2.C of the RFP identifies the maximum participant capacity to be
served at each combined service site by activity. AWEP, CWEP and OJT
placements off-site in the community are in addition to the maximum capacity
identified in Section 4.2.C of the Request for Proposal (RFP).

D. NHEP ECSs will refer participants for participation in the above six activities.
Depending on participant need, program requirements and necessary federal
participation hours required for participants to be in compliance, participants can
engage in any and all activities for the required number of hours allowed per
federal law at 42 USC 607, (c). Under this same section and in federal
regulations at 45 CFR 261.34, an individual's participation in job search and job
readiness assistance can count for a maximum of six weeks in a fiscal year (no
more than four consecutive weeks). This can be extended to 12 weeks in a
fiscal year if a State meets the definition of a “needy State” under the
Contingency Fund provisions of the law. At the time of this writing, NH meets
this definition.

E. All program services for NHEP activities shall:

I Meet the definitions of allowable activities as described in the Personal
Responsibility and Work Opportunity Act of 1996 as amended by the
Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 and federal regulations at 45 CFR 261.2
and adhere to any newly passed federal legislation that may be enacted
during the operation of this contract with DFA to provide these services.
Should such legislation conflict with the agreed upon Scope of Services in
this contract, the parties will enter into good faith negotiations to reach
mutual agreement on a contract addendum or amendment, and if
applicable, seek Governor and Executive Council approval thereof;

I Be provided in a manner to allow participants to meet the minimum
participation requirements of core and secondary activities. The
contracted sites will be open for the provision of program services to
participants for no less than 35 hours per week, and;

IH. Meet the conditions set forth under the Fair Labor Standards Act and
State law found at RSA 167:77 — 167:92 and administrative rules
pursuant to He-W 637.

lll. Organization/Agency Requirements

A. The contractor must provide statewide services that meet the federal TANF
work participation requirements as stated in the Personal Responsibility and
Work Opportunity Act of 1996 as amended by the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005
and federal regulations at 45 CFR 261.2.
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B. The contractor must carry out the direct service requirements as defined in this
contract.

l. The contractor must have the ability and experience to:

1. Provide job readiness and job search activities that teach job
seeking and life skills to ensure participants are able to effectively
prepare, seek, obtain, and ultimately retain unsubsidized
employment;

2. Provide vocational assessment and evaluation testing that
identifies potential participant deficits, barriers, and strengths that
would lead to the identification of short and long-term career
goals, and skills necessary to utilize labor |market information in
support of those goals;

3. Provide community service activities while building work skills and
increasing employability for participants;

4. Develop both AWEP and CWEP host sites and slots for
participants with limited exposure to the labor market, limited work
histories, and potential barriers to employment. These activities
shall assist the participant to acquire the general skills, knowledge
and work habits necessary to obtain employment and to improve
the employability of individuals otherwise unable to obtain
unsubsidized employment;

5. Develop OJT opportunities that provide training in the public and
private sector that is given to a paid employee while he or she is
engaged in productive work. These opportunities also provide the
knowledge and skills essential for a full and adequate
performance of the job;

6. Provide job development, employer outreach, networking,
familiarity with local labor market trends and conditions, job
attainment resources and tools, associated with attaching low-
income individuals to the labor market;

7. Work with low income families with barriers to long-term
attachment to the labor market, with the ability to support
participants in work activities while providing problem-solving
assistance whenever situations arise;

8. Operate a program that addresses the provision of work skill
attainment in order to promote success in the workplace and long-
term attachment to the labor market utilizing simulated work
environment construct concepts;

9. Develop, access, and promote the use of local community
resources such as assisting participants with access to childcare,
transportation providers, clothing, housing, financial literacy,
substance abuse, domestic violence, and other barriers to
employment, in support of program goals;

10. Work with people with no or limited English proficiency;

understand the concepts of cultural competency; promote
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effective integration and adaptation of individual cultural
differences into the local labor market; recognize and respect
individuals in terms of values, potential, and cultural experiences
in order to advance successful workplace integration;

11. Acquisition, development, and managing facilities to
accommodate a variety of services within a singular setting.

C. The contractor and its staffs must have the qualifications, educational
competencies, and professional experience needed for responsible
management and delivery of the activities as outlined in this scope of work.

D. The contractor must have the ability and experience to provide services, utilizing
the precepts of cultural competency, for participants with cultural barriers, and/or
no or limited-English proficiency resulting in barriers to employment.

I Cultural competence is defined as a set of congruent behaviors, attitudes,
and policies that come together in a system or agency or among
professionals that enable effective interactions in a cross-cultural
framework.

Il.  Participants with no or limited-English proficiency is defined as a person
who comes from a non-English speaking background and who has
sufficient difficulty speaking, reading, writing, or understanding the English
language and whose difficulties may deny such an individual the
opportunity to learn successfully in settings where the language of
instruction is English or to participate fully in the dominant society.

E. The contractor and its staff must abide by a policy developed by DFA that
describes acceptable and unacceptable NHEP participant conduct and dress.
This policy will be applicable to the contractor's staff delivering services at the
combined service locations.

F. The contractor must develop marketing and recruitment strategies to achieve
the agreed upon participant capacity at the twelve (12) combined service sites.

IV. Program Referral Guidelines

A. This contact will serve, through a CSP, those individuals referred by the NHEP
Employment Counselor Specialist (ECS), who have been determined eligible for
TANF related programs.

B. Referral guidelines are for those individuals who:

l. Have been assessed by an NHEP ECS and have an established
Employability Plan;

I Would benefit from a comprehensive vocational assessment and in-depth
career exploration to determine realistic and appropriate short and long-
term career goals, including the identification of an appropriate career
path and the steps necessary to accomplish their long-term career plan;

lll.  Would benefit from understanding appropriate workplace behaviors,
including but not limited to: employer expectations, appropriate attire,
and professionalism in the work place. May need training and preparation
in effective job seeking, as well as life skills, financial literacy, and

Southern NH Services, Inc. 21 0f 48 Contractor Initials: %
Standard Exhibit A — Amendment #1 2 ;3 , I[,
Combined Services Contract Date: /



NH Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Contract

VI.

VII.

VIH.

Xl

Xli.

X1.

parenting skills training to balance work and family responsibilities
effectively;

Would benefit from participation in job readiness classes designed to
develop the skills necessary to effectively balance work and family,
including but not limited to: time management, organizational skills,
stress management, self-confidence building, etc., to prepare parents for
the demands of obtaining and retaining full-time, unsubsidized
employment;

Have been unsuccessful in obtaining sustained unsubsidized employment
in their identified occupation and would benefit from the activities and
services available under the program;

Have been unable to demonstrate appropriate workplace protocols
including, but not limited to attendance, leave notification, tardiness, and
handling emergency situations as it pertains to workplace behaviors;

Would benefit from the development of necessary job search skills
including, but not limited to the creation of cover letters, resumes,
personal and professional reference, sample applications, job
interviewing and networking skills, etc. to prepare to seek, obtain and
retain unsubsidized employment and long-term connection to the labor
market;

Would benefit from being involved in a local support system where
information about effective job search techniques, job seeking tools, job
openings, local employers, labor market information and community
resources can be found,

Would benefit from obtaining and retaining unsubsidized employment
and/or needs to re-enter the workforce due to, but not limited to,
insufficient educational background or lack of marketable skills;

Would benefit from a work experience placement (WEP), on-the-job-
training (OJT), or other appropriate work related activity;

Would benefit from learning about what is necessary to secure long-term,
dependable child care and transportation, and other alternative
arrangements, to allow for long-term attachment to the labor market;

Would benefit from local WEP development in their community due to
barriers preventing attendance at a specified site; and/or

May have no or limited English proficiency.

C. The contractor will accept all referrals from the NHEP teams unless mutually
agreed upon by DFA and the contractor.

D. Capacity: The following table illustrates the number of required monthly
participant slots by geographic area and combined service activity for the CSP
on-site service capacity. The co-location of these services requires separate
classrooms and may involve separate computer labs and the computer systems
must be compatible?. Off-site program capacity will vary based on participants

right to retain the current systems in place.

? DFA currently funds data collection systems for TANF related contracted services. DFA reserves;the
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completing on-site activities. The figures given in the below table are DFA'’s
anticipated capacity and may vary depending on actual participation and
progression of participants through the Program:

Table 1
Locatons Total Partpant | On-ste WEP | 45/, Gl & Job
Skills Training Slots
Berlin 10 5
Claremont 20 14
Concord 20 10 10
Derry 10 5 5
Keene 25 13 12
Littleton 10 5 5
Laconia 10 5 5
Manchester 50 39 11
Nashua 35 20 15
Portsmouth 10 5 5
Rochester 38 23 15
Tamworth 10 5 5
Total 248 149 99

E. The 248 participants that will receive combined services under this contract at
the combined service locations listed above shall participate in the activities
listed in this Scope of Service. Priority will be given to people who need to
participate in core activities.

F. The contractor shall develop on-site WEP experiences from local area
organizations to provide work skills and work experiences to participants who
lack skilis to become immediately employable.

G. The contractor shall maintain no less than 500 community host sites with
multiple slots and of those at least 200 sites need to be active. Active is defined
as having been utilized within the previous 180 days. Of the 200 active sites, no
less than 125 slots will be filled on a monthly basis.

H. Additional participants to receive combined services are through off-site AWEP,
CWEP and OJT sites created in the community statewide. The contractor shall
develop and maintain work experience placement sites for participants with
limited exposure to the labor market, limited work histories, limited
transportation, potential barriers to employment, no or limited-English-
proficiency, have a vocational interest in a particular occupation, and/or needs
experience and exposure to that work situation, and/or needs to participate in a
work activity.
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[.  DFA recognizes that the demand for this program may periodically exceed
capacity at one or more locations. To minimize the potential for wait lists, the
contractor shall develop and implement a process to ensure participants
successfully move through contracted service activities or are otherwise
removed from the program if non-compliant.

V. Direct Service Requirements

A. The contractor must provide NHEP activities that meet the federal definition and
parameters as defined in 45 CFR 261.2 of the following activities:

l. Job readiness activities (JR - core) are designed to assist participants in
gaining the skills necessary to obtain and retain employment. Job
readiness includes a vocational assessment service to assess
standardized educational attainment through testing and interpretation,
assisting participants in determining vocational goals for self-sustaining
employment: and a career path to that goal. This vocational assessment
will result in the identification of short and long-term career goals, and the
existing availability of the identified occupations in the labor market.
Additional job readiness curriculum, including life skills training will be
provided;

1. Job search activities (JS - core) are designed to assist participants in
conducting facilitated job search leading to employment, to include the
creation of cover letters, resumes, applications, job interviewing skills,
and education on the utilization of existing labor market tools. This activity
will also include the provision of Job Club (JC), which entails: networking,
peer support, learning of suitable job openings and other job search
initiatives;

M. Alternative Work Experience Placements (AWEP - core) are designed to
place participants in voluntary work experience positions that are not
considered community service programs. The purpose of this activity, if
private sector employment is not available, is a work activity performed in
return for welfare that provides an individual with an opportunity to
acquire the general skills, knowledge, and work habits necessary to
obtain employment. The purpose of the work experience is to improve
the employability of those that cannot find unsubsidized employment.
The expectation is that the contractor develops sufficient and appropriate
AWEP host sites in order for participants to utilize this activity;

V. Community Work Experience Placements (CWEP - core) are designed as
work performed for the direct benefit of the community under the auspices
of public or nonprofit organization. This activity must serve a useful
community purpose, will be available from both the contractor's worksite
locations and in the community at non-profit organizations to improve the
employability of participants. Short-term training is also permitted as long
as such activities are of limited duration and are an integral part of a
CWEP. The expectation is that the contractor develop sufficient and
appropriate CWEP host sites in order for participants to utilize this
activity;

V. Job Skills Training Directly Related to Employment (JSTDRE -
secondary), which is defined as: training or education for job |skills
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required by an empioyer to provide an individual the ability to obtain
employment and advance or adapt to the changing demands of the work
place; and/or

VI. On-the-Job Training (OJT - core), which is defined as: training in the
public or private sector that is given to a paid employee while he or she is
engaged in productive work and that provides knowledge and skills
essential to the full and adequate performance of the job.

B. The contractor is required to abide by policy and guidelines developed by DFA
that describes acceptable and unacceptable participant conduct and dress. This
will be applicable to services delivered at the CSP locations.

C. The contractor shall:

l. Operate the CSP as a simulated work environment which provides WEP
work skills/work experience on and off-site to improve the employability of
participants not otherwise able to obtain employment;

. Provide information to program participants on the Earned Income Tax
Credit;

IIl. Supervise and monitor participants in all activities on a daily, on-going
basis;

V. Implement and operate an intake process for referred participants that
enter the Combined Service Program upon receipt of referral paperwork;

V. Perform outreach efforts to schedule vocational assessments upon a
participant being determined eligible and/or open for TANF financial
assistance;

VI. Hold daily participant review meetings to determine the most appropriate
activity in which the person will participate, either as a sole or combined
service, based on the vocational assessment, employment plan, and ECS
referral information, also taking into account the participants employment
history, skills, interests, ability, employment goals and employment
obstacles;

VII. Report and verify individual NHEP participant attendance/participation,
and reasons for absences with verifications if obtained, submitted no less
than weekly to the NHEP ECSs. Unscheduled absences shall be reported
the day of the absence;

VIil.  Provide individual progress reports to the responsible NHEP ECSs at
least bi-weekly;

IX. Develop recommendations for services to address barriers suspected or
identified for an NHEP participant for inclusion in the employment plan,
and/or provide community referrals;

X. Ensure that all necessary paperwork for the participant is completed
accurately and timely in order to determine the specific activity(s) the
participant will be assigned,;

XI. Ensure that all staffs are trained and work on a rotating basis between all
on-site work activities of the Combined Service Program when possible;
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Xll.  Collect from NHEP participants, verification of participation hours in this
program and verification of absences, if able. Provide the verifications to
the NHEP ECSs no less than weekly;

Xlll.  Make appropriate arrangements for accommodation of no or limited
English proficient related barriers or disability-related issues;

XIV. Develop training methods that incorporate a variety of adult learning
styles, practical and experiential methods that extend beyond participant
self-instruction, such as reading materials or audio/visual materials using
materials developed and published at the 8th grade reading level,

XV. Develop or adapt curriculum that will ensure full access to all contract
related activities to meet the needs of no or limited English proficient or
disabled participants, which may include the administration of the
Learning Needs Screening Tool, when a participant is suspected of
having a learning disability or lack of basic literacy;

XVIL.  Provide a plan to ensure that each participant participates in the hours
specified on the referral as part of the employment plan, which could be
less than a minimum of 20 hours of a core activity/work experience per
week, but shall not exceed the permissible hours as specified by the Fair
Labor Standard Act (FLSA). Participants may choose, or be required to,
participate for additional hours per the Employability Plan, in core or
secondary activities.

D. Activity specific conditions:
l. The contractor must design and deliver the following activities/services:

1. Job search/Job readiness curriculum that clearly identifies the
topics to be addressed in each of the below subject areas:

a. General skills assessment, to include: reading, listening,
writing, speaking, math, science skills and to determine an
individuals educational level;

b. Vocational assessment of career aptitudes and abilities, to
include but not limited to, vocational interest, work values,
and screening for learning disabilities and LEP;

C. Career exploration to include: exploration of local labor
market information specific to the chosen career goals,
utilizing all available resources and tools such as ONET,
NH Career Planning Guide, Job Match System, NH Works
Job Information Center, Economic Labor Market
Information, etc., career jobs, stop-gap jobs, non-traditional
jobs, availability of local employment in identified career
area;

d. The identification of short and long-term employment goals
in support of a career plan that leads towards full-time
unsubsidized employment and economic independence;

e. Soft skill attainment (appropriate workplace behaviors) to
include: understanding employer expectations relative to
work ethic, personal hygiene, and proper busjness

{
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communications, managing childcare and transportation for
employment, balancing work and family, problem resolution
in the workplace, managing family issues while maintaining
employment, attendance, sexual harassment, drug free
workplace, financial literacy, advantages of employment
and available employment transition services, etc.;

f. Job search to include: identification and instruction in the
use of appropriate job search tools, cover letter, résumé,
references, applications, job search and interviewing skills,
specific to an identified job placement and career goals;

il. Job Club entails networking, peer support, learning of suitable job
openings and other job search initiatives. The contractor shall:

1. Offer job club group activities such as identifying employment
leads, share employment resources, facilitate informational
interviews, conduct networking forums, provide presentations from
local businesses, conduct simulated interviews, etc.

. AWEP/CWEP work experience placements (WEPs) are designed to
improve the employability of those that cannot find unsubsidized
employment and provides participants with skills to increase employability
for immediate attachment to the local labor market. The contractor shall:

1. Develop host sites and slots that meet the career goals necessary
for immmediate attachment to the local labor market;

2. Develop and administer a pre-defined number of active WEP host
sites and slots per service delivery area. Host sites are considered
active if the WEP slot has been utilized in the last 180 days;

3. Implement a WEP agreement process as defined by DFA and be
designed for no more than 16 weeks, unless DFA has approved
an extension;

4. Ensure that all necessary enroliment paperwork for placement into
a WEP is completed accurately and timely;

5. Ensure that the participant and the WEP host site are fully

informed and adhere to the attendance verification requirements;

6. Ensure WEP host sites are informed and acknowledge participant
safeguards pursuant to RSA’s: 167:82-a Infringement on Rights of
Other Employees Prohibited; Limited Employee Status, 167:91-a
Infringement on Rights of Other Employees Prohibited, 167:91-b
Work Experience and Community Service Program Participants;
Workers' Compensation Eligibility;

7. Have appropriate arrangements for accommodation of language
barriers or disability issues in the WEP host site;
8. Prepare the participant for an interview with the WEP host site by

ensuring that the participant is prepared with a tailored resume
and application packet specific to the placement, refgrences,
results of a criminal background check if needed, and any other
materials pertinent to the specific placement;
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9. Provide the participant with an introduction to the WEP host site,
provide support to both the participant and the WEP host site, and
mediate any issues that arise during participant engagement at a
WEP host site;

10. Are designed to improve the employability of the participants;

11. Be developed for both on-site and off-site CWEPs/AWEPs for
participants; and

12. For CWEPs, the activity must include structured programs,
embedded activities and projects in which participants perform
work that serve a useful community purpose.

13. Job Skills Training Directly Related to Employment is a secondary
activity, for up to 10 hours weekly. This activity shali include, but is
not limited to, information that provides participants with education
or training for skills required by an employer to provide an
individual with the ability to obtain employment or to advance or
adapt to the changing demands of the workplace. This can include
English as a Second Language curriculum if it has been
determined necessary for the participant's entrance into,
advancement or success in the work force. The contractor shail:

14, Develop and provide a short-term training curriculum that contains
hands-on learning incorporating a variety of adult learning styles,
practical and experiential methods that extend beyond participant
self-instruction such as reading materials or audio/visual
materials, using materials developed and published at the 8th
grade reading level.

IV. On-the Job Training means training on the public or private sector
employment that is given to a paid employee while he or she is engaged in
productive work and that provides knowledge and skills essential for the
full and adequate performance of the job. The contractor shall:

1. Ensure that OJTs are developed for a minimum of 30 hours per
week;

2. Adhere to all pre-screening criteria associated with OJT
development provided by DFA;

3. Be familiar with WIA, NHEP and NHES OJT standard operation
procedures and processes;

4. Be proficient in the development of OJT opportunities in the local
labor market, as well as, in the marketing and executing of OJT
contracts;

5. Maintain, support and monitor participants in OJT placements for

the length of the contract;

6. Provide strategies for identifying participant OJT issues and
bringing them forward to the OJT Developer for appropriate
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7. Initiate case conferencing with NHEP to address participant
attendance and performance;

8. Collaborate with agencies such as Department of Labor
Workforce Investment Act, Department of Education, etc., to
secure possible funding and services.

Vi. Work Experience Placement (WEP) and On-The-Job Training (OJT) Site
Development

A The contractor must develop and maintain a sufficient number of AWEP,
CWEP and OJT sites through which participants will meet the program
requirements.

B. The contractor must provide sufficient workplace experience host sites and
slots that are developed based on the regional requirements and that meets
the estimated monthly participant volume per service delivery area.

C. The contractor must develop and maintain 500 host sites statewide at various
organizations, agencies and companies. It is expected that the SNHS will
maintain no less than 200 active host sites statewide. An active host site is
one that has placed a participant in an AWE or CWEP within the previous 180
days. Sites that have not had a placement within the previous 180 days will
not be considered active and should be moved to a non-active list. SNHS
must ensure that a list of host sites is consistently maintained, including
identifying active/non-active status, and is readily accessible to NHEP staff. .

D. The contractor must develop no less than 60 OJT placements per contract
year (excluding Carry-Overs), with no less than a 10% de-obligation rate.

E. The contractor will utilize a DFA verification process that provides timely,
accurate, and consistent attendance verification to the NHEP ECS of the
participant’s participation at the workplace setting.

F. The contractor must provide an expedited placement process for participants
referred to the program for which the NHEP ECSs already identified or
developed the AWEP/CWEP. An expedited placement is one that is
completed within 48 hours of the NHEP participant’s referral to this program.
DFA reserves the right to place participants directly into an AWEP/CWEP and
to submit the applicable WEP agreements and referral information to the
contractor for appropriate placement follow-up after the participant enters the
AWEP/CWEP.

G. The contractor shall develop remote AWEP/CWEP host sites and slots that
meet the needs of participants that live in excessively remote locations that
are not in proximity to the local labor market, community resources, etc.,
and/or are limited due to special circumstances.

H. The contractor shall ensure that host site pre-screening requirements are
identified and completed prior to placement of the participant into a CWEP,
AWEP or OJT, following an established DFA process.

l. The contractor will provide both a short-term on-site CSP and/or off-site WEP
activities, as follows:

I. Solicit projects that serve a useful community purpose. This includes
programs in fields such as: health, social service, environmental protition,
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education, urban and rural development, welfare, recreation, public
facilities, public safety and childcare.

I. Solicit projects from local area organizations that provide the opportunity
for work skill and work experience attainment for participants who lack
skills to become immediately employable;

IIl. Projects will be indexed to specify the skills required for entry into a WEP
activity, and to the extent possible consider the prior training, experience,
and skills of a recipient in making appropriate WEP assignments. Projects
shall enhance skills attainment and increase immediate employability.

Note: Significant changes due to factors such as changes in the NH Labor
Market, which may either result in an increase or decrease in the TANF
caseload, may necessitate a modification of the AWEP, CWEP and OJT
development criteria as set forth in this contract. DFA reserves the right, with a
sixty-day (60) notification to the contractor, to make said changes as deemed
appropriate.

VIl.Classroom Sites and Requirements

A. The contractor must provide twelve (12) service delivery sites® that meet with
DFA approval and the following requirements:

I.  One site per DFA district office catchment area for twelve (12) sites. The
catchment areas are: Berlin, Claremont, Concord, Conway, Derry, Keene,
Laconia, Littleton, Manchester, Nashua, Rochester, and Portsmouth and
serve the communities identified in Section [V, Program Referral
Guidelines, Paragraph D, Table 1.

Il. Ease of accessibility to NHEP participants;

iIl. Located in proximity to public transit routes, child care facilities,
communities with possible concentrations of NHEP participants, or a
combination thereof;

IV. Handicapped accessible and climate-controlled such that the program can
operate without interruption. The thermal standard being between
approximately 65 and 75 degrees.

V. Provide space and seating for activities for up to the number of participant
slots as identified in Section 4.2.B;

VI. Provide space for private consultations to maintain confidentiality of
records and discussions that relate to individual participants.

1. Space for private consultations will be made available to contract
or other DFA staff to conduct drop-in meetings with NHEP
participants, in addition to meeting the needs of the service
providers located at the combined service model facility.

2. The facility layout should provide for contiguous space (if possible)
for participants, private consultations and workspace that is as
flexible as possible, such as portable walls that can be
reconfigured to accommodate more participants if necessary

3 DFA reserves the right to reduce the number of delivery sites with sixty-day (60) advanced notice. :
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3. The contractor will be responsible for moving the equipment from
the existing CSP sites to the twelve (12) sites (if different from
current sites). The contractor's worksites must have sufficient
space to house all existing equipment and materials.

VII. All sites must meet all Americans with Disabilities Act requirements for
handicapped accessibility and have adequate parking for participants and
staff. Each worksite shall also have conference room meeting space for
the program, DHHS staff, and other individuals as appropriate, to hold
participant meetings or FANF-related meetings when necessary.

Vill.  Staffing Requirements

A. The contractor shall provide a staffing plan that demonstrates foreign
language proficiency and racial, ethnic, and cultural diversity sufficient to
serve the target population. Each staff member must be able to
demonstrate an understanding of and direct experience with the target
population as well as a willingness to work creatively with participants to
meet their needs and help them resolve their barriers.

B. The contractor must provide staffs assigned to this program that shall, at
minimum, meet the following requirements:

I Is of a sufficient number to deliver the contracted program services
and continue to do so without interruption due to vacations,
sickness, or vacancies. DFA reserves the right, with a 60 day
notice, to make adjustments in staff allocations and worksite
assignments;

Il Has a job title, and specified duties and responsibilities attached to
program delivery;

ll. If in a full-time position, works a 37.5 hour work week;

IV.  Whose criminal background check does not reveal violations or
convictions that could adversely affect the participants served
under this program;

V. Have read and signed a completed Statement of Confidentiality;

and
VI.  Adhere to the DFA Code of Ethics.
C. The contractor must provide and assign staffs, at minimum, for the

following program roles and responsibilities. It is important to note that all
staff will be required to provide coverage of services at the CSP on a, no
less than biweekly, rotating basis in the overall operation of the CSP
when possible.

I .67 FTE to serve as CSP Administrator with a Masters degree in
social work, psychology, education, or business/public
administration or a related field and a minimum of five (5) years
experience working with job readiness training, teaching,
community organization/outreach, program development or
administrative supervision; or
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Il. Bachelor's degree in social work, psychology, education, or
business/public administration or a related field and a minimum of
seven years experience working with job readiness training,
teaching, community organization/outreach, program development
and administrative supervision.

M. The responsibilities of the CSP Administrator shall include, but not
be limited to:

1. Providing contract development, negotiations, monitoring and
program evaluation;

2. Coordinating statistical, financial, program evaluation, site
capacity reporting, and other reporting requirements for the
program;

3. Providing training and supervision for all direct service
personnel, including subcontracted staff, in the conduct of the
program;

4. Working with NHEP teams and DFA to support and
coordinate the referral process statewide;

5.  Providing an ongoing system of program evaluation to ensure
program quality and effectiveness;

6. Guiding and direct the development of effective and
responsive community partnerships;

7. Guiding and direct staff activities with community resources,
NHEP, CSP Administration, child care resources,
transportation providers and employers to ensure there is a
collaborative approach to the provision of services to
participants;

8.  Monitoring the accuracy of participant work verification; and
9.  Other duties as agreed to through negotiation with DFA.

V. Two (2) FTE to serve as Regional Program Managers with a
Masters degree in social work, psychology, counseling, education,
or business/public administration or a related field and a minimum
of five (5) years experience working with job readiness training,
teaching, community organization/outreach, program development,
and administrative supervision; or

V. Bachelor's degree in social work, psychology, education, or
business/public administration or a related field and a minimum of
seven years experience working with job readiness training,
teaching, community organization/outreach, program development,
and administrative supervision. This position reports directly to the
CSP Administrator.

VI.  The duties of the CSP Regional Program Manager shall include,
but not be limited to:

1. Providing statewide technical assistance to CSP
Coordinators, monitor the application of policy and

» ’
Southern NH Services, Inc. 32 of 48 Contractor Initials: gé

Standard Exhibit A — Amendment #1 = ..
Combined Services Contract Date: A '13 2 ﬁ



NH Department of Health and Human Services

Combined Services

Contract

VII.

VIIL.

Southern NH Services, Inc.

Standard Exhibit A — Amendment #1

Combined Services Contract

procedures by direct service staff, the achievement of
performance goals and the quality of services provided by the
CSP Coordinators;

2. Providing back-up coverage for CSP Coordinators during
periods of absence or need;

3. Conducting annual performance evaluations in consultation
with the CSP Administrator, the for CSP Coordinators and
provide assistance in coordinating services between NHEP
ECS and CSP Coordinators

4.  Assisting the CSP Administrator in the hiring and training of
CSP Coordinators;

5.  Mediating and resolve differences or conflicts between NHEP
participants and CSP Coordinators and involving the
applicable NHEP ECS as needed, attend local NHEP partner
meetings, networking events, DFA training sessions,
statewide team meetings, or other events as assigned;

6. Communicating with program and direct service staff to
provide clarification of policies, introduction of program
changes and to respond to questions, ensure that CSP
Coordinators accurately maintain and update the New
HEIGHTS computer system by adhering to NHEP
requirements and other official releases.

7. Ensuring that community service projects are carried out
appropriately and that sponsoring agencies are satisfied with
the project's outcome, and other job duties as assigned by
the CSP Administrator.

One .60 FTE to serve as NHEP Operations Manager with a
Bachelors degree in social work, psychology, education, or
business/public administration or a related field and two (2) years
job development and employer outreach; with

1. Experience in supervising program staff that: assist
individuals in finding employment, knowledge of the
principles and methods of assessment and career
counseling; experience and/or an ability to demonstrate an
understanding of working with low-income populations or
hard-to-serve individuals; experience with, and/or a strong
familiarity with local and statewide educational and social
services; experience in or an ability to demonstrate skills in
job development and public relations with employers. This
position reports directly to the CSP Administrator.

The duties of the NHEP Operations Manager shall include, but not
be limited to:

1. Responsible for the overall development and coordination of
OJT and WEP development and placement services,
develop materials for and participate in “job fair” planning
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and events that offer opportunities for employers and NHEP
participants to meet and discuss employment;

2. Creating and submit monthly reports to the DFA Business
and Industry Coordinator (BIC) to measure performance of
these accountabilities, provide Statewide technical
assistance to OJT-CJS, monitor the application of policy and
procedures by direct service staff, the achievement of
performance goals and the quality of services provided by
the OJT-CJS;

3. Providing back-up coverage for OJT-CJS during periods of
absence or need, conduct annual performance evaluations
in consultation with the DFA BIC for OJT-CJS, provide
assistance in coordinating services between NHEP ECS and
OJT-CJS;

4. Assisting the CSP Administrator in the hiring and training of
OJT- CJS, mediate and resolve differences or conflicts
between NHEP participants and OJT-Community Job
Specialists and involving the applicable NHEP ECS as
needed,;

5. Attending local NHEP partner meetings, networking events,
DFA training sessions, statewide team meetings, or other
events as assigned, communicate with program and direct
service staff to provide clarification of policies, introduction of
program changes and to respond to questions, and other
duties as assigned by the NHEP Program Administrator.

Two (2) FTEs to serve as CSP OJT Developers with a Bachelors
degree in Marketing or Business Administration or related field.
Minimum two (2) years experience in career counseling, recruiting
candidates, marketing to employers and job development with
demonstrated placement success; with

1. Experience in job task analysis; marketing of OJT Programs
and various work program related services and training
incentives to area private sector businesses, non-profit
organizations, industries, associations,  faith-based
organizations, and local town/city departments through
statewide presentation meetings, employment networking
events and job fairs. This position reports directly to the
NHEP Operations Manager.

2. Job duties include but are not limited to:

a. Developing OJT opportunities for NHEP participants
and increasing the knowledge and understanding of the
NHEP goals and the need for business leadership and
collaboration in this process;

b. Performing cold calls and following up on any leads
provided by NHEP Operations Manager, DFA Business
& Industry Coordinator, NHEP Program Administrator or

1
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local NHEP teams or CSP staff, conduct ongoing
business outreach statewide for the purpose of
matching NHEP participants with employers for On-the-
Job Training opportunities;

c. Attending business led meeting/functions (e.g.,
Chamber of Commerce meetings, breakfast forums,
etc.) for the purpose of marketing NHEP participants to
prospective employers, attend employment expos, job
fairs, etc., including setting up an information booth if
appropriate, educate employers on the various incentive
and tax relief options available to employers;

d. Becoming proficient with traditional employment
resources, including state and/or local labor market
trends as well as NHES resources to include the ELMI,
ONET and NH Network online services to identify
potential employment growth opportunities that may be
of benefit to participants;

e. Disseminating new job/OJT prospects to NHEP teams
and CSP staff in order to increase employment
opportunities for NHEP participants statewide, provide
OJT presentations to CSP classrooms to increase OJT
awareness and referrals to NHEP participants and staff,
act on all referrals for placement services from the local
NHEP teams and CSP staff in a timely manner;

f. Marketing OJT program to local businesses and non-
profit organizations in demand occupational areas to
engage as NHEP OJT sites, arrange interviews with
OJT employers for NHEP participants;

g. Preparing and executing detailed and accurate OJT
contracts with employers according to NHEP, NHES,
and DOL expectations and regulations, monitoring of
participant progress at the OJT work site, and other
duties as assigned by the NHEP Operations Manager.

Sixteen (16) FTEs to serve as Combined Services Program
Coordinators that have a minimum of a Bachelors degree from an
approved college or university and a minimum of two (2) years of
professional work experience in social work, counseling, education,
staff training, employee development, or human resources; with

1. Experience in assisting individuals in finding employment,
knowledge of the principles and methods of assessment and
career counseling; experience or an ability to demonstrate
an understanding of working with low-income populations or
hard-to-serve individuals. Experience with and/or a strong
familiarity with local and statewide educational and social
services; experience in or an ability to demonstrate skills in
job development and public relations with employers, and
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experience in classroom or group instruction. This position
reports directly to the CSP Regional Program Supervisor.

2. Job duties include but are not limited to:

a. Providing orientation to NHEP participants entering
the CSP, provide a vocational assessment for each
NHEP participant and prepare a summary of the
assessment results to be provided to the NHEP ECS;

b. Teaching/facilitating classes and activities in the
areas identified in Section 4.3 of the RFP using a
variety of teaching and communication techniques
including computer-based models that allow
individuals to work independently and/or demonstrate
proficiency by testing-out of certain competency

areas;

C. Identifying job ready participants and assisting them
to conduct a professional job search leading to
employment;

d. Monitoring job search efforts of participants in the job

search activity by knowing the local labor market in
order to refer participants to appropriate employers,
referring participants to available jobs, following up
with job leads and job interviews, and participating in
mock interviews aimed at increasing job interviewing
skills.

e. Identifying and developing on-site WEP opportunities
in fields such as health, social service, environmental
protections, education, urban and rural
redevelopment, welfare, recreation, public safety and
child care, in collaboration with local non-profit
agencies, faith-based organizations, local
government entities or other community agencies;

f. Obtaining, executing and delivering structured
programs, embedded activiies and community
services projects, monitor participant attendance and
inform the NHEP ECS on a daily basis of any NHEP
participant attendance issues or absences;

g. Accurately tracking and verifying individual NHEP
participant participation in program, and provide
verification documentation to the NHEP ECS,
prepare and provide to the NHEP ECS regular
individual participant progress reports that include:
written observations of the participant’s performance,
a summary of the participant's progress in the
program, and recommendations for subsequent
NHEP activities appropriate for the participant;
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h.

Facilitating participant’s engagement with and use of
other community resources, while assisting
participants in resolving obstacles to participation that
may arise during his/her attendance in the CSP;

Completing written casework documentation as
defined in the resulting contract; and attending
scheduled staff training and meetings, meetings with
the local NHEP team, and local partner meetings.

Xl.  Ten (10) FTEs to serve as OJT-Community Job Specialists with a
Bachelors degree from an approved college or university in social
work, psychology, counseling, education or business administration
or a related field. Minimum of two (2) years of professional work
experience in counseling, teaching, social services or business
involving career counseling, employee development, social work or
human resources; with

1. Experience in assisting individuals in finding employment,
knowledge of the principles and methods of assessment and
career counseling; experience or an ability to demonstrate an
understanding of working with low-income populations or hard-
to-serve. Experience with and/or a strong familiarity with local
and statewide educational and social services; experience in
or an ability to demonstrate skills in job development and
public relations with employers. This position reports directly to
the Regional Program Supervisor position.

2. Job duties include but not limited to:

a.

Southern NH Services, Inc.
Standard Exhibit A — Amendment #1
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Identifying, developing and marketing OJT and WEP
opportunities in local non-profit agencies, faith-based
organizations, local government entities, and other
business and industry entities to develop work
experience host sites;

Participating and/or presenting the work skills
training/work experience program orientations, work
with the CSP Coordinators in assessing NHEP
participant skills and interests and assist NHEP
participants in selecting and securing appropriate work
experience placement;

Executing OJT and WEP agreements between NHEP
participants and host sites for no more than sixteen
(16) weeks unless approved by DFA, arrange NHEP
participant interviews with OJT/WEP host sites, provide
NHEP patrticipant orientation to OJT/WEP host site;

Monitoring NHEP participant progress at OJT/WEP,
provide job coaching and arrange workplace mentoring
for NHEP participants at the OJTMWEP host site,
mediate and provide problem resolution to remedy
issues experienced by the OJT/WEP host and/or the
NHEP participant;
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e. Communicating to the NHEP ECS any NHEP
participant needs for support services and to address
any remedial action or sanctions needed to remediate
NHEP participant behavior or performance issues
experienced by the host site employer,;

f. Collecting and submitting weekly to the NHEP ECS
NHEP participants work verification documentation,
collect and review work experience host site
evaluations at 4 (4) weeks to assess participant
progress, and at ten (10) weeks to determine the
appropriateness of extending the WEP agreement at
the same site

g. Providing assistance as needed to the NHEP ECS in
preparing the NHEP participants to transition from
WEP to OJT or into other countable NHEP work
activities to ensure continued participant engagement
toward meeting federal work participation
requirements;

3. Maintaining active WEP and OJT host site placement reports
on a weekly and monthly basis, discusses career interests with
NHEP participant in order to provide an appropriate and
meaningful WEP or OJT placement, and other duties assigned
by the Regional Program Supervisor.

XH. One (1) FTE CSP Program Resources Coordinator acts as an
internal mentor and consultant to CSP Coordinators in identifying,
recommending, and promoting continuous improvement in the CSP
program curricula, instructional methods, and participant
assessment tools. The position requires a Master's degree from a
recognized college or university in social work, psychology,
counseling, education, business administration, or a related field.
Minimum of four (4) years of professional work experience in
counseling, teaching, social services, or business involving
curriculum development, career counseling, employment
development and training, or human resources. Alternately, a
Bachelor’s degree in the above major disciplines along with six (6)
years experience in the above areas may be considered. The
Program Resources Coordinator must possess extensive
knowledge of teaching methods, educational standards, and adult
learner assessment methods (e.g. TABE, CASAS); experience in
classroom or group instruction, extensive knowledge of the
education/training needs and barriers of low income adult learners;
experience developing and writing comprehensive education
and/or training programs for adult learners; experience in assisting
individuals in finding employment; knowledge of career counseling
principles and practices; experience working with low-income
populations or hard-to-serve individuals (e.g., limited English
Speaking, learning disabled); and experience researching
data/information to solve program-related problems.
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1.  Job duties include but not limited to:

a.

Southern NH Services, Inc.
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Review, update, maintain, and provide technical
assistance to CSP Career Center staff on all curricula
and workshop content for major activities of the
Program, including Job readiness, Job Search, Job
Club, Work Skills Training, and CWEP Embedded
Training. Prepare report of observations, and
recommend any improvements to CSP Regional
Program Managers.

Keep current with the latest job readiness and job
search strategies.

Research and develop new Career Center curriculum
content as appropriate. Act as the archivist and ‘gate-
keeper’ for the distribution of all curriculum updates to
Career Center staff.

Coordinate information and keep current on all
vocational assessment tools used by CSP
Coordinators, including CASAS, TABE, WorkKeys, etc.

Help develop marketing strategy to promote WorkKeys
and National Career Readiness Certificate (NCRC).

Observe curriculum delivery, Job Ciub, Service
Bureau, and related activities at Career Centers and
recommend strategies or options for continuous
improvement relative to participant abilities and
vocational assessment job goals. Prepare report of
observations, and recommend any improvements to
CSP Regional Managers, NHEP Operations Manager,
and SNHS NHEP Administrator.

Edit and publish quarterly CSP Career Center
Newsletter

Research and maintain knowledge of developments in
HI-Set (formerly GED), Adult Basic Education, and
ESL. Propose approaches to complement these
instructional efforts using CSP contract resources and
equipment.

Work with the Career Pathways Specialist to identify
appropriate education/training programs that match the
NHEP participant's vocational assessment and long-
term career goals.

Research and analyze labor markets to identify
employer needs and labor shortages requiring specific
Work Readiness and job skills needed to meet area
labor demand.

an
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k. With supervisor approval, provide instruction as a
substitute CSP Coordinator in staffing shortage
situations.

Assist in the development and management of the on-
line NHEPMWPS Standard Operating Procedures
(SOP);

m. Advise Career Center staff regarding NHEP
participants with  potential learning difficulties,
recommend needed accommodations to ECS and
WPS Coordinator, and if requested, assist in
connecting them to appropriate services.

Xlll.  One (1) FTE to serve as Combined Service Program Assistant with
an Associates Degree or higher and two (2) years experience as
an Administrative Assistant or Project/Program Assistant; or a
combination of a High School Diploma (or GED) and four (4) or
more years of experience as an Administrative Assistant or
Project/Program Assistant may be considered. Knowledge of
modern office practices, procedures and equipment. Knowledge of
English, spelling and arithmetic. Knowledge of office record
keeping and reporting. Some knowledge of the principles and
practices of public administration. This position reports directly to

the CSP Administrator.
1. Job duties include but not limited to:
2. Use Microsoft Word and Excel, or required database

software to produce correspondence and ad hoc, monthly,
and quarterly financial or program-related reports; use e-
mail to communicate with internal and external contractor
staff and distribute reports and documents via same;

3. Designing and/or update various CSP Statewide Reports
in accordance with contractual guidelines at the start of
each State Fiscal Year, provide technical support and
training to program staff to ensure accurate and complete
reporting.

4. Collecting and reviewing local reports from CSP staff and
use Excel to compile Statewide CSP statistical reports on a
monthly, weekly, or annual basis, use New Heights case
management system to research TANF participant
information and support program operations; assist staff in
resolving technical issues pertaining to New Heights
access and use.

5. Entering and/or maintaining participant-related data (such
as demographic, program status changes, etc.) in the
electronic customer database and produce reports as
requested, maintain, revise, and distribute CSP policies,
directives, and procedures per supervisor instruction;
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6. Coordinate with the contractor and the NHEP staff for
training logistics and to arrange conference space, travel
directions and plans for the NHEP Program Administrator
or assigned staff, facilitate purchase of equipment and
office supplies for the CSP and maintain related records.

7. Processing and tracking payments for interpreting services
in the CSP, maintain and distribute the CSP staff contact
list, attend NHEP staff meetings as requested, present a
professional and positive image as an agency
representative, perform such other work-related activities
as required by the NHEP Program Administrator or their
designee.

IX. No or Limited-English Proficiency Combined Service Program Component

A. The contractor shall provide sufficient culturally and linguistically appropriate
supports/services to ensure equal access in all aspects of this contract.

B. In an effort to best meet the specialized need of those individuals, that are
unable to effectively engage in work program services due to potential
cultural or linguistic barrier, as part of the general scope of service, Statement
of Work, the contractor specifically serve a culturally and linguistically diverse
population. The contractor shall be responsible for the provision of these
services that will be delivered as part of a combined service program.

C. The goal of this statewide no or limited-English proficiency component is to
ensure that those individuals who have no or limited-English proficiency have
the same opportunity, through a combined service program, to gain the
necessary knowledge, skills, and abilities to effectively engage New
Hampshire's predominately English speaking employment labor market.

D. In order to most effectively prepare no or limited-English proficient individuals
with long term skills to navigate the employment environment in New
Hampshire labor markets, the contractor will ensure the provision of curricula
that both enhance participant immersion in predominantly English-speaking
activity environments and also provide to the extent possible for minimum on-
site coaching staff. Curricula will include either individual or group activities
such as CWEP, AWEP, English as a second language training, job skills
training, job readiness, and other activities.

E. Additionally, the contractor will provide a curriculum that allows for both
individual and group AWEP and CWEP emersion into predominately English-
speaking work environments that ultimately promotes self-sufficiency in local
labor markets.

F. The contractor will ensure the provision of a statewide language assessment
tool to allow for more defined case management and work program services.

G. The contractor will provide specialized services as relates to a no or limited-
English proficiency population, and/or through a contractual agreement with a
sub-contracted agency, for all or a portion of said services as stated in
Section 4.3 of the RFP.

I.  One (1) LEP CSP Coordinator; minimum qualifications to include:
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1. A Bachelors degree from an approved college or university in
social work, psychology, counseling, education or business
administration or a related field. A minimum of two (2) years of
professional work experience in counseling, teaching, social
services or business involving career counseling, employee
development, social work or human resources; with experience
assisting individuals in finding employment, integrating a no or
limited-English proficient population into a culturally different
labor market, knowledge of the principles and methods of
assessment and career counseling; experience or an ability to
demonstrate an understanding of working with low-income
populations or hard-to-serve individuals (e.g., no or limited-
English speaking, learning disabled).

2. Experience working with refugees and/or immigrants and the
agencies that serve them; experience with and/or a strong
familiarity with local and statewide educational and social
services; experience in or an ability to demonstrate skills in job
development with a no or limited-English proficient population,
and public relations with employers, and experience in classroom
or group instruction.

1. Job duties include but not limited to:

1. Teaching/facilitating classes and activities in the areas identified
in Section 4.3 of the RFP using a variety of teaching and
communication techniques including computer-based models that
allow no or limited-English speaking participants to work
independently and/or demonstrate proficiency by testing-out of
certain competency areas, to include basic computer Skills, e.g.,
(keyboarding; internet; and e-mail);

2. Coordinating and directing the operation of the Service Bureau, a
Community Service activity, that provides participants (trainees)
with on-site and off-site work assignments to gain skills for entry
into the local labor market and adherence to existing cultural
aspects of the local labor market skills, telephone skills, and
workplace survival skills;

3. Providing NHEP activity services including interviewing skills,
tailored resume development & writing, networking techniques,
and job search methods, conduct weekly orientation of no or
limited-English speaking individuals entering the program;
coliects baseline data on participants skill level, coordinate with
CSP Coordinators and supervises no or limited English speaking
individuals CSP activities;

4. Monitoring of no or limited-English speaking individual
attendance and informs the NHEP ECS of any participant
attendance issues; accurately tracks and verifies individual no or
limited- English speaking individuals work participation in the
CSP;
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5. Entering select data in New Heights; and provides verification
documentation to the local NHEP - ECS, tracks and documents
no or limited-English speaking individual progress through the
CSP and Service Bureau learning modules;

6. Communicating with the NHEP ECS to address no or limited-
English speaking individual barriers to employment requiring
support services and/or to address any remedial action or
sanctions needed to cure participant behavior or performance
issues in the CSP, review of no or limited-English speaking
individual evaluations to improve effectiveness of CSP activities;

7. Assisting the NHEP ECS in preparing the no or limited-English
speaking individuals for transition into a WEP, OJT, and/or other
countable NHEP work activities;

8. Ensuring continued participant engagement toward meeting
federal work participation requirements, coordinate with CJS to
review Orientation assessment materials, to develop a pertinent
Work Activity Plan with the no or limited-English speaking
individuals, and to select an appropriate WEP Host site;

9. Administration of a language assessment to determine the level
of English proficiency of no or limited—English speaking
individuals;

10. Assisting the CJS in developing and placing no or limited-English
speaking individuals in appropriate area WEP or OJT
opportunities that will build their occupational skills and increase
their ability to enter the job market;

11. Assisting as needed in the coordination of services between the
NHEP Local Teams and the CSP, provide full coverage for
and/or additional support to on-site staff, and other duties as
assigned.

H. The Bureau Chief of the DFA Bureau of Welfare to Work (BWW), or his or her
designee, reserves the right to participate in the hiring process and/or
approve all staff that work under this contract.

All employees operating under the provisions of the resulting contract
shall, in addition to their own reporting requirements, report to the
individual designated by the BWW Bureau Chief. DFA reserves the right
to remove any contracted employee from the program for unsatisfactory
services.

. Any sub-contracted staff shall be identified as such by the contractor, and

shall meet or exceed the staffing requirements articulated herein. DFA
reserves the right, with sixty-day (60) advanced notice, to disallow sub
use when the sub’s handling of staffing concerns is not satisfactory to
DFA.

X. Program Exit Guidelines

A. CSP participants will exit the WEP program when one of the following
conditions is met:
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I.  Successful completion of all activities;

[l. Employment of 20 or 30 hours or more, per week, based on the
participant’s required hours to meet federal participation;

Ill. Financial Assistance for Needy Families (FANF) closes; and/or

IV. The CSP is deemed inappropriate for the participant through consultation
with the NHEP team member by whom the participant has been referred
to the CSP.

B. Participants’ attendance, progress deficiencies, and/or behavioral issues that
constitute noncompliance, or affect the safety or welfare of other participants,
will require consultation with the NHEP ECS to determine continued
participation or termination from the CSP. In the instance of disagreement
between NHEP and the CSP as to the disposition of the participant, the
Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work or their designee will make the final decision
for termination from the CSP.

C. To promote the successful transition of participants from TANF assistance
into long-term unsubsidized employment through the provision of Federal
work activities including: vocational assessment, job readiness, job search,
community service, work experience, OJT, and job skills training directly
related to employment. All performance measures reports are to include the
specific data sets to substantiate the outcomes being reported. The
successful bidder must meet the following performance measures outcomes
of the program:

D. All participants, including those designated as having no or limited-English
proficiency, shall successfully exit contracted services. An individual that has
completed all their hours as assigned, and/or has left for employment, or
moved into another approved activity defines a successful exit. Individuals
that have not completed the hours as assigned due to leaving the program
early of their own wvolition, and/or have been placed in
noncompliance/sanction, or have not be granted an excused absence, are
not counted as part of the denominator for a successful exit.

I. Jobreadiness:

1. 80% of participants shall complete a vocational assessment
specifying short and long-term career plan per Section 4.3;

2. 80% of participants shall receive a WorkKeys certification per
Section 4.3;

3. 80% of participants shall exit the program with the necessary job

search tools, including an up-to-date resume, completed
application, job search and job interviewing skills per Section 4.3

of the RFP.
Il. Job search:
1. 80% of participants that complete the activity shall demonstrate

the ability to conduct an individualized job search using
standardized job search tools per Section 4.3.

lll. Community service: >¢
Southern NH Services, Inc. 44 of 48 Contractor Initials: 6'

Standard Exhibit A — Amendment #1 >
Combined Services Contract Date: & “-’{J’ /6



NH Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Contract

1. 80% of participants who have participated in community service
placements shall demonstrate the obtainment of work skills to
increase employability;

2. 60% of participants in community service placement shall
transition directly into an OJT or unsubsidized employment.

IV. Work experience:

1. 80% of participants who have participated in work experience
placements shall demonstrate the obtainment of work skills to
increase employability;

2. 60% of participants in work experience placement shall transition
directly into an OJT or unsubsidized employment.

V. On-the-job training (OJT):

1. 90% of participants who enter an OJT shall remain employed for
the entire length of the OJT contract period;

2. 90% of participants completing OJT contracts shall continue to be
in unsubsidized employment 12 months from the end of the
contract.

V1. Job skills training directly related to employment:

1. 80% of participants who complete job skills training activity shall
demonstrate the work skills necessary for the employment through
completion of related curriculum and reported satisfactory
performance in CSP activities per Section 4.3.

VII. General Program Measures

1. 80% of received participant satisfaction surveys will have an
overall score of 15 or above.

2. Vocational assessment results must be completed within five
business days from enroliment into the CSP.

3. Maintain a minimum of 500 WEP host sites, with no less than 200

of those being active each month, for the length of the contract.
An active WEP host site is defined as having been utilized within
the past 180 days;

4, Maintain a minimum of 125 participants in active WEP placement
slots each month. An active WEP placement slot is defined as
having been utilized within the past 180 days;

5. Develop a minimum of 60 OJT placements over the course of the
contract, with no more than 10% of placements being de-
obligated.

E. The contractor must demonstrate achievement of on-going progress towards
the above performance measure outcomes, reporting on a monthly basis and
otherwise meet the requirements set forth in the contract. All performance
measures reports are to include the specific data sets to substantiate the
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thirty days of notification. Corrective action plans shall be subject to DFA
approval. If after approval and implementation, the contractor remains out of
compliance, DFA reserves the right to take the following actions: withhold
payment, amend the corrective action plan, and/or may terminate the
contract, or any portion thereof, with sixty-day (60) advance written notice.

XIl. Reporting Requirements

A. The contractor shall develop program reporting requirements and the related
timeframes necessary for meeting those requirements, as approved by DFA.
A separate report shall be provided specific to those participants that have
been designated as having no or limited-English proficiency. Reporting
requirements for each activity shall include but not be limited to:

I. The contractor shall provide the following reports to include, but not

limited to:

1. Statewide CSP Monthly Vocational Assessment Reports

2. Enroliments for vocational assessments

3. Completion of all vocational assessments and any related

certificates earned.
II. Statewide CSP Attendance Report
1. Daily to NHEP Teams
2. Monthly to Weilfare to Work Bureau Chief

3. Statewide CSP Weekly Capacity Reports to NHEP Teams and
Welfare to Work Bureau Chief

4, Statewide CSP Monthly and year-to-date Critical Measures to
include, but not limited to:

a. Number of enroliments to the CSP and an accounting of
activity utilization.

b. Number/reason of participants exiting CSP services

C. Exits from the CSP, due to employment, to include but not
limited to:

i. Occupation (Job title)
ii. Number of weekly hours
iii. Hourly Wage
iv. Standard Occupational Code

d. Statewide CSP Weekly WEP host sites and slots availability
(active and inactive)

e. Statewide CSP Monthly OJT to include but not limited to:
i. Occupation (Job title)
ii. Number of weekly hours
fii. Hourly wage
Southern NH Services, Inc. 46 of 48 Contractor Initials:

Standard Exhibit A - Amendment #1 Q. 6
Combined Services Contract Date;Z A )



NH Department of Health and Human Services
Combined Services Contract

iv. Standard occupational code
V. Length of the contract with costs
vi. Specific vocational preparation code
f. Statewide CSP on-site WEP to include but not limited to:

i.  Number of on-site CWEP projects monthly and year-
to-date including:

e Number of projects (non-duplicative or recurring)

e Number of project hours (non duplicative or
recurring)

+ Number of participants engaged (non duplicative or
recurring)

+ Name of agencies requesting projects
¢ |dentification of skills to be acquired per project

g. Statewide CSP WEP to unsubsidized employment report to
include, but not limited to:

i. Occupation (Job title)
i. Number of weekly hours
iii. Hourly wage
iv. Standard occupational code
V. Specific vocational preparation code

B. The contractor shall provide monthly and year-to-date (or as otherwise stated
below) program reporting to include:

. Reporting individual progress reports to the responsible NHEP ECS at
least bi-weekly;

[I.  Number of participant referrals to the program by individual NHEP ECS;

lll. Number of enrolled participants identified as having a potential
language barrier as well as other communication barriers;

IV. Number of enrolled participants identified as having a potential learning
disability or difficulty;

V. Summary of waiting lists by location showing the additions and
deletions from the waiting list since the last reporting period.

VI. A report for participants for whom Tests of Adult Basic Education
(TABE) tests are administered with the basic scores of the test
identified. This report will be submitted by service location site and
individual NHEP participant;

C. DFA reserves the right to adjust reporting requirements with a sixty-day (60)
notice in order to improve the documentation of program services and
outcomes.
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D. All reporting requirements shall be provided to DFA in a format developed in
conjunction with DFA and in a system that is developed by the contractor with
DFA approval®.

*DFA currently funds data collection systems for TANF-related contracted services. DFA reserves\he
right to retain the current systems and to require the contractor on-site to collaborate on their use.
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Exhibit B-1 - Amendment #1
Budget Forms SFY 2016

New Hampshire gpartment of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS)
Budget Request for: NHEP Staffing Services (# 13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03)
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 (SFY 2016)

858,907.00

.

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 858,907.00 | § - $

2. Employee Benefits $ 267,925.00 | $ - $ 267,925.00

3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -

4. Equipment: $ 2,500.00 | $ - $ 2,500.00
Rental $ - $ - 3 -
Repair and Maintenance 3 500.00]1$ - $ 500.00
Purchase/Depreciation 3 2,000.00|$ - $ 2,000.00

5. Supplies: $ 2,300.00 | $ - $ 2,300.00
Educational 3 - $ - § -
Medical § - $ - 3 -
Office $ 2,300.001$% - 3 2,300.00

6. Travel $ 20,200.00 | $ - $ 20,200.00

7. Occupancy $ - $ - $ -

8. Current Expenses $ 1,070.00 | $ - $ 1,070.00
Telephone $ 950.001$ - $ 950.00
Postage $ 120.001$ - $ 120.00
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ B E - $ -
Insurance $ - 18 - $ -
Meeting Expenses $ - |8 - 3 -

9. Software $ - 18 - $ -

10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ - $ -

11. Staff Education and Training $ 2,500.00 | $ - $ 2,500.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ - $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory| $ - $ - $ -

$ - 13 - 3 .
Sub-Total Direct | $ 1,155,402.00 $ 1,155,402.00
Sub-Total Indirect | § - $ 107,452.39 | § 107,452.39
TOTAL $ 1,155,402.00 | $ 107,452.39 | $ 1,262,854.39 NOTE 1
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.3%

NOTE 1. indirect Costs are largely administrative costs which include Executive, Administrative and Support staff
whose duties are not assignable to a specific program (e.g., Executive Director, Fiscal Officer,
Director or Operations, Accounting staff, Clerical staff and Human Resources manager). These
costs encompass salaries, taxes, and fringe benefits of the latter plus the administrative portion of other
expenses including travel, space and utilities, telephone, copying, consumable supplies and other
contractual services. SFY 2016 & 2017 Indirect Cost remain unchanged at 9.3% .

Exhibit B- 1- Amendment #1, Budget Form SFY 2016 Contractor
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Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1
Budget Form SFY 2016

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
Budget Request for: NHEP Combined Service Program  (# 13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05)
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 (SFY 2016)
1. Total SalaryNEges 3 1,377,072.00 3 1,377,072.00 Note 2
2. Employee Benefits ] 482,434.00 $ 482,434.00
3. Consultants 8,000.00 $ 8,000.00
4. Equipment: b 37,000.00 $ 37,000.00
Rental $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance 3 29,000.00 B 29,000.00
Purchase/Depreciation $ 8,000.00 $ 8,000.00
5. Supplies: $ 84,779.00 $ 84,779.00
Educational $ 55,493.00 3 55,493.00
Medical $ - $ -
Office 29,286.00 ] 29,286.00
6. Travel $ 50,900.00 5 50,900.00
7. Occupancy ] 492,564.00 3 492,564.00
8. Current Expenses [ 42,863.00 $ 42,863.00
Telephone $ 35,142.00 3 35,142.00
Postage 5 1,217.00 $ 1,217.00
Subscriptions $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ -
Insurance $ 6,504.00 $ 6,504.00
Meeting Expenses $ - $ -
9. Software 3 17,500.00 $ 17,500.00
10. Marketing/Communications ] 10,860.00 ] 10,860.00
11. Staff Education and Training $ 4,000.00 4,000.00
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 260,634.00 $ 260,634.00 Note 3
13. Other (specific details mandatory| $ - $ N
3 - $ -
Sub-Total Direct | $ 2,868,606.00 $ 2,868,606.00
Sub-Total Indirect | $ - $ 266,780.36 | $ 266,780.36 Note 1
1 TOTAL $ 2,868,606.00 | $ 266,780.36 | $ 3,135,386.36
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.3%

Note 1 - Indirect Costs are largely administrative costs which include Executive, Administrative and Support staff whose duties are not assignable to a specific program (e.g.,
Executive Director, Fiscal Officer, Director of Operations, Accounting staff, Clerical staff and Human Resources Manager). These costs encompass salaries, taxes,
encompass salaries, taxes, and fringe benefits of the latter plus the admnistrative portion of other expenses including travel, space and utilities, telephone, copying,
consumable supplies and other contractual services. Indirect costs wil be shared with NH Community Action Agencies & MCRC involved in the operation and
support of the Combined Service Programs in their service areas through subcontract with SNHS. No change in the previous contract Indirect Cost Rate is proposed
for SFY 2016 & 2017.

Note 2 - Number of FTEs reduced from 43.07 in SFY 2014-15 to 38.67 in SFY 2016-17. Budget includes a 3% annual increase in wages.

Note 3 - Contains MCRC program expense, inciuding staff wages & salaries.

Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1, Budget Form SFY 2016 Contractor initials: (
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Exhibit B-2 Amendment #1

Budget Form
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
Budget Request for: NHEP Combined Service Program  (# 13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05)
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 (SFY 2017)
1. Total Salary/Wages $ 1,417,323.00 b 1,417,323.00
2. Employee Benefits $ 521,025.00 $ 521,025.00
3. Consultants $ 4,000.00 § 4,000.00
4. Equipment: 3 36,000.00 $ 36,000.00
Rental $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance 3 28,000.00 B 28,000.00
Purchase/Depreciation ¢ 8,000.00 $ 8,000.00
5. Supplies: $ 89,937.00 $ 89,937.00
Educational $ 56,419.00 $ 56,419.00
Medical $ - $ -
Office 5 33,518.00 3 33,518.00
6. Travel ] 50,900.00 $ 50,900.00
7. Occupancy ] 513,655.00 3 §13,655.00
8. Current Expenses 3 44,572.00 $ 44,572.00
Telephone 3 35,635.00 b 35,635.00
Postage $ 2,246.00 b 2,246.00
Subscriptions ] - $ -
Audit and Legal 3 - $ -
Insurance 3 6,691.00 $ 6,691.00
Meeting Expenses $ - $ -
9. Software ] 17,000.00 $ 17,000.00
10. Marketing/Communications 3 13,760.00 $ 13,760.00
11. Staff Education and Training [ 4,000.00 $ 4,000.00
12. Subcontracts/Agreements ] 264,891.00 $ 264,891.00 Note 3
13. Other (specific details mandatory| $ - $ -
$ - $ N
Sub-Total Direct | $ 2,977,063.00 ] 2,977,063.00
Sub-Total Indirect | § - 3 276,866.86 | 276,866.86 Note 1
1 TOTAL $ 2,977,063.00 | $ 276,866.86 | $ 3,253,929.8
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.3%

Note 1 - Indirect Costs are iargely administrative costs which include Executive, Administrative and Support staff whose duties are not assignable to a specific program (e.g.,
Executive Director, Fiscal Officer, Director of Operations, Accounting staff, Clerical staff and Human Resources Manager). These costs encompass salaries, taxes,
encompass salaries, taxes, and fringe benefits of the latter pius the admnistrative portion of other expenses including travel, space and utilities, telephone, copying,
consumable supplies and other contractual services. Indirect costs wil be shared with NH Community Action Agencies & MCRC involved in the operation and
support of the Combined Service Programs in their service areas through subcontract with SNHS. No change in the previous contract Indirect Cost Rate is proposed
for SFY 2016 & 2017.

Note 2 - Number of FTEs reduced from 43.07 in SFY 2014-15 to 38.67 in SFY 2016-17. Budget includes a 3% annual increase in wages.

Note 3 - Contains MCRC program expense, including staff wages & salaries.

Contractor Initials:
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Exhibit B -2 Amendment #1
Budget Form SFY 2017

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS)
Budget Request for: NHEP Staffing Services (# 13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03)
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 (SFY 2017)

$83.914.00 |

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 883,914.00 | § - $

2. Employee Benefits $ 295,484.00 | $ - $ 295,484.00

3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -

4. Equipment: $ 2,500.00|$ - $ 2,500.00
Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance 3 500.00]1% - 3 500.00
Purchase/Depreciation 3 2,000.001$ - 3 2,000.00

5. Supplies: $ 2,300.00 | $ - $ 2,300.00
Educational $ - $ - $ -
Medical $ - $ - 3 -
Office 3 2,30000$ - $ 2,300.00

[6. Travel $ 20,200.00 | $ - $ 20,200.00

7. Occupancy $ - 1S - $ -

8. Current Expenses $ 1,120.00 | $ - $ 1,120.00
Telephone $ 1,000.001$ - ¥ 1,000.00
Postage $ 120001 % - 3 120.00
Subscriptions 3 - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ - 3 -
Insurance $ - $ - $ -
Meeting Expenses $ - $ - $ -

9. Software $ - $ - $ -

10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ - $ -

11. Staff Education and Training $ 2,500.00 1 $ - $ 2,500.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - |3 - $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory| § - $ - $ -

$ - 13 - 3 "
Sub-Total Direct | $ 1,208,018.00 $ 1,208,018.00
Sub-Total Indirect | $ - $ 112,345.67 | $ 112,345.67
TOTAL $ 1,208,018.00 | $ 112,345.67 | § 1,320,363.67 NOTE 1
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.3%

NOTE 1. indirect Costs are largely administrative costs which include Executive, Administrative and Support staff
whose duties are not assignable to a specific program (e.g., Executive Director, Fiscal Officer,
Director or Operations, Accounting staff, Clerical staff and Human Resources manager). These
costs encompass salaries, taxes, and fringe benefits of the latter plus the administrative portion of other

expenses including travel, space and utilities, telephone, copying, consumable supplies and other
contractual services. SFY 2016 & 2017 Indirect Cost remain unchanged at 9.3% .

Exhibit B-2 Amendment #1 Budget Form SFY 2017 Contractor Initials: %

Page 1 of 2

Date: A -2/ )9




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section §672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act inciudes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and locai
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit C B@
Contractor Initials

Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations
and Whistleblower protections
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, coior, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Namg:

2 -2 K &)

Date N?WU Gale F. Hennesiy /
Title: Executive Direc

Exhibit C
Contractor Initials
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and Whistieblower protections
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financiali
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financia! assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G &
Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

j

Contractor Name; /

kb 2 2730 \\C)M\N

Date Name: | Gale F. Henness
Title: Executive Directdr
Exhibit G
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Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations
and Whistleblower protections
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State of Nefo Hampshire
Hepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed May 28, 1965. I further certify that it is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto

set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 3 day of April A.D. 2014

sy Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Jill Jamro

1. ' am a duly elected Officer of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on: _September 22, 2014
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director

, do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to

execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,

or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 23rd day of __February L2015
(Date Contract Signed)
4, Gale F. Hennessy is the duly elected

Executive Director

(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hillsborough

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

By Jill Jamro .
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL}

DIANE P, ERIKSON, Notary Public
My Commission Expires May 23, 2019
Commission Expires:

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

(Title of Contract Signatory)

<
Notary Public

23rd day of

1

February

, 2015,

July 1, 2005
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/'T'r"“'"""“"°""°’""°' SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

Hiberoughad Rocinhon Couts The Community Action Agency for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5040, Manchester, NH 03108
40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03103
(603) 668-8010 Fax: (603) 645-6734

RESOLUTIONS
(Approved by Board of Directors 9/22/14)

Resolved: The Board of Directors of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. authorizes Gale F.
Hennessy, Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer, Michael O’Shea, Fiscal Officer/Chief Financial
Officer, Deborah Gosselin, Chief Operating Officer or, in their absence, Denise Vallancourt,
Accounting Manager to sign contracts, checks and other documents on behalf of the Agency with the
following:

The State of New Hampshire including the Department of Health and Human Services: Division of
Family Assistance for TANF, NHEP, Workplace Success, CSBG, and Homeless Services; Division of
Public Health Services for WIC/CSFP; Division for Children, Youth & Families for Child Care
Resource and Referral Services; Office of Human Services/Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services
for Homeless Programs; Office of Minority Health & Refugee Affairs for Refugee Social Services.
The New Hampshire Office of Energy and Planning for the Weatherization Assistance Program,
Heating, Repair and Replacement Program, Senior Energy Assistance Services, and the Fuel
Assistance Program; the New Hampshire Department of Education for the Child & Adult Care Food
Program, Summer Food Service Program, English as a Second Language, Portsmouth Adult Basic
Education Program, and Adult Education/College Transitions at Portsmouth; the New Hampshire
Department of Resources and Economic Development for the WIA Adult & Dislocated Worker
Programs, and OJT National Emergency Grants; the New Hampshire Department of Safety for
Interpretation Services for Non-English Speakers and the Deaf and Hard of Hearing at Specified
Meetings.

The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families for
Head Start; U.S. Department of Labor/ETA for the YouthBuild Program; Office of Community
Services sponsored programs; the Corporation for National and Community Services for RSVP;
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development for Housing and Homeless Program.

The United Way of Greater Nashua; Heritage United Way; Monadnock United Way; United Way of
the Greater Seacoast; NH Charitable Foundation for the Western Hillsborough County Family Services
Program; Community Action Program Belknap/Merrimack Counties, Inc. for the Emergency Food
Assistance Program, (TEFAP), the HOME Investment Partnership Program, and the Senior
Community Service Employment Program; New Hampshire utility companies for Neighbor Helping
Neighbor, Electric Assistance Program (EAP), and NHSaves Home Energy Solution and Home Energy
Assistance Programs; City of Manchester; City of Nashua; City of Nashua-Brownfield Fund; New
Hampshire Housing Finance Authority; Manchester Housing and Redevelopment Authority; Nashua
Housing Authority for housing and community development programs; New Hampshire Community
Action Association; and any and all other Federal, State, Local, Public and Private Agencies seeking to
provide services consistent with the Mission of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. through
contractual relationships with Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.



Ve
ACCORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 1272372014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THiS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTACT Karen Shaughnessy
FIAI/Cross Insurance [ FHONE i (603) 669-3218 | FAX o) (603) 645-4331
1100 Elm Street .E#QIEES.S' kshaughnessy@crossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Manchester NH 03101 insurer A :Philadelphia Ins Co
INSURED iNnsurer 8 MEMIC Indemnity Company 11030
Southern NH Services INSURER C :
P.0O. Box 5040 INSURER D :

INSURERE :
Manchester NH 03108 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:CL.14122326339 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR] POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WVD POLICY NUMBER {MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 100,000
A | cLams-mane [ X | occur PHPK1273501 12/31/201412/31/2015| yep Exp (Any one person) | $ 10,000
X | Employee Benefits PERSONAL & ADVINJURY [ § 1,000,000
X | professional Liab GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
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AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea accident) $ 1,000,000
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ﬁbl.ngvNED iﬁ?ggULED IPHPK1273501 12/31/2014[12/31/2015] 8ODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
| NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
Underinsured motorist $ 1,000,000
X |UMBRELLALIAB | X | ocoUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 5,000,000
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B | WORKERS COMPENSATION 3102801290 WC STATU- OTH-
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A | Crime IPHPK1273501 12/31/201412/31/2015] Figeiity: $250,000
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NH Dept of Health & Human Services

Division of Family Assistance
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Mission Statement

The mission of Southern New Hampshire Services is to provide activities designed to assist low-
income participants, including the elderly poor, to secure and retain meaningful employment,
attain an adequate education, and make better use of available income; to ameliorate the causes
of poverty within the community; to meet urgent and immediaté and family needs, including
health, nutrition, housing and employment-related assistance; and to address problems and

barriers which block the achievement of self-sufficiency.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Southern New HaTIpshire Services, Inc.
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
July 31, 2013, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
April 30, 2014.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Organization’s internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the cffectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstalements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organization’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
controf that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with govemnance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations. contracts, and grant agrecments, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemmal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable tor any other purpose.

OQuellette &7 Associates, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

April 30,2014
Lewiston. Maine
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
Internal Control over Compliance and Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards Required bv OMB Circular A-133

To the Board of Directors
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Program

We have audited Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.'s (the Organization) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.’s major federal
programs for the year ended July 31, 2013. Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of Jaws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to each of its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc.’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards
and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However. our audit does not provide a legal determination of Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc.’s compliance.

1111 Lisbon Street ¢ Lewiston, Maine 04240 * Telephone: (207} 786-0328 & FAX: (207) 783-9377 » www.0acpas.net



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2013.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Southern New Hampshire Services,
Inc.’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southern New
Hampshire Scrvices, Inc.’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the dcsign or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged by governance.

Our considcration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purposc described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.



Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. as of and for the
vear ended July 31, 2013, and have issued our report thereon dated Apri) 30, 2014, which contained an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming
an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and
is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to preparc
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial sratements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records uscd to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Ouellette o7 Associates, PA.
Certified Public Accountants

April 30,2014
Lewiston, Maine



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013
Federal Grantor Federal Pass-Through
Pass-Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Pass-Through State of New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants,
and Children 10.557 1016781 $ 1,288,482
10.557 177198 106,452
1,394,934
Commodity Supplemental Food Program 10.565 1016781 178,469
10.565 177198 25,226
203,696
Pass-Through State of New Hampshire Department of Education
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 682,283
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 634 91,523
Farmers’ Market Promotion Income 10.168 NH-300-11 27,375
Partnership Agreements to Develop Non-Insurance Risk
Management Tools for Procedures 10.456  11-1E-53102-085 25,894
Beginning Farmer and Rancher Development Program 10.311 2011-49400-30626 128,077
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $2,553.782
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Direct Program
Section 8 Modcrate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy 14.249 $292,244
Pass-Through State of New Hampshire Division of Behavioral
Health
Supportive Housing Program 14.235 NH0037I§]T02080 34,539
Pass-Through Belknap Merrimack Community Action Program
Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing 14.900 _ 142,976
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Develonment -3 469,759



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
(Continued)
YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2013

Federal Grantor Federal Pass-Through
Pass-Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Labor:
Direct Program

Youth Build 17.274 243,972

Pass-Through State of New Hampshire Department of Resources
and Economic Development

WIA Cluster

WIA Adult Program 17.258 1018853 $ 1,234,623
WIA — Dislocated Workers 17.278 1018853 2,266,889
Total WIA Cluster 3,501,512
WIA — Incentive Grants - WIA Section 503 17.267 120,388
WIA ~ National Emergency Grants 17.277 1019830 986,348
Total U.S. Department of Labor 3 4,852,220

U.S. Department of Energy:
Pass-Through State of New Hampshire Governor’s Office

Of Planning
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons 81.042 1020297 $ 419,542
ARRA - Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons 81.042 CE861478 147,847

Pass-Through State of New Hampshire Community Development
Finance Authority

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 81.128 299.867
Total U.S. Department of Energy $ 867,256

U.S. Department of Education:
Pass-Through State of New Hampshire Department of Education

Adult Basic Education Program 84.002 27019, 37006 S 120,416
Total U.S. Department of Education $ 120.416.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

(Continued)

YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

Federal Grantor
Pass-Through Grantor
Program or Cluster Title

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Dircct Program

1leadstart

Pass-Through State of New Hampshire Office of Energy
And Planning

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Special Programs for the Aging Title 111 Pan B
Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers

Pass-Through State of New Hampshirc Departiment of Health
and Human Services

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Community Services Block Grant

Community Services Block Grant — Discretionary Awards

CCDF Cluster
Child Care and Development Block Grant

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child
Care and Development Fund

Total CCDF Cluster
Refugee and Entrant Assistance— Discretionary Grants

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Corporation for National and Community Services:
Direct Program

Retired and Senior Volunteer Program

Total Corporation for National and
Community Services

U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Pass-Through Regional United Way Agency -

Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Identifying Federal

Number Number Expenditures
93.600 N/A $ 5,602,743
93.568 1025872 11,154,583
93.044 1029455 10,791
93.558 1024239 2,479,149
93.569 1026138 1,226,648
93.570 101,306
93.575 1019818, 1019732 342,313
93.596 596,465
938,778
93.576 #90RE0179 21,976
$21,535974
94.002 $113,185
$ 113,185
97.024 $12.000
$12.000
330,524,592



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

NOTE 1: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting.  The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stares, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Theretore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-122,
Cost Principles for Non-profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

JULY 31, 2013
Section 1 Summary of Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: Uninodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(cs) identified? Yes ¥ No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes N None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes N No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs: ‘
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes N No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes N None reported
Type of auditors” report issued on compliance .
for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a)
of OMB Circular A-133? Yes v No
Identification of major programs:
Name of Federal Program or Cluster CFDA Number
WIA - Cluster
WIA Adult Program 17.258
WIA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants 17.278
WIA - National Emergency Grants 17.277
Community Services Block Gramt 93.569
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558
CCDF - Cluster
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care and
Development Fund 93.596
Head Start 93.600
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $915.738
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? v Yes No

Section 11 Financial Statement Findings

No matters are reportable.

Section 111 Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters are reportable.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization) which comprise the statement of financial position as of July 31, 2013, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
€ITor.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Organization’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Organization’s interal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion. the financial stalements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. as of July 31, 2013, and the changes in its
net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Other Information

The financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. as of July 31, 2012, were audiicd by
other auditors and are presented for comparative purposes. Those auditors expressed an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements in their report dated April 30, 2013.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
‘The combining schedule of financial position and the combining schedule of activities are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to preparc the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and ccrtain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to preparc the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated April 30, 2014 on
our consideration of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests on its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreemcnts,
and other matters. The purpose of this report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. The report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Governmeni Auditing Standards in considering Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Ouellette & Associates, PA.
Certified Public Accountants

April 30, 2014
Lewiston, Maine



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSIIIRE SERVICES, INC.

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2013 AND 2012

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Contracts receivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

FIXED ASSETS
Land
Butldings and improvements
Vehicles and equipment
Construction in progress
Total fixed assets

Less - accumulated depreciation

Net fixed assets

OTHER ASSETS
Restricted cash
Miscellaneous other assets

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

ASSETS

2013 2012
$ 5903425 $ 6,278,621
5,132,222 2,560,800
3,267,955 3,544,555
171,722 38,961
156,403 286,022
14,631,727 12,708,959
6,174,907 6,110,865
74,682,375 64,963,007
2,266,784 2,054,043
- 3,130,363
83,124,066 76,258,278
(20,615,347) (18,512,172)
62,508,719 57,746,106
3,949,332 3,690,350
428,401 438,349
4,377,733 4,128,699

$ 81,518,179

S 74,583,764

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes

Accrued compensated absences
Accrued other liabilities
Deferred revenue

Over applied overhead

Tenant security deposits

Current portion of long-term debi

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, less current portion

Capital advances
Total long-term liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$ 357,265 S 534375
725,726 489,653
623,845 700,421
588,848 538,991
2,036,804 2,955,714
115,916 402,758
283,073 272,432
288,892 185,875
5,020,369 6,080,219
5,522,103 5,812,225

66,264,647 59,363,943
71,786,750 65,176,168
76,807,119 71,256,387
4,711,059 3,327,377
$ 81518178 § 74,583,764

See independent auditor's report and accommpanying notes to the financial statements.

-
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2013 AND 20i2

2013 2012
REVENUES
Grant and contract support $ 35,821,702 S 39,204,276
Program service fees 658,277 773,869
Local funding 380,790 261,222
Rental income 6,979,990 6,455,382
Gifts and contributions 387,790 211,906
Interest and dividend income 65,515 5,229
Unrealized gain on investments 506,268 16,620
Transfer from RCA Acquisition - (99,592)
Miscellaneous 2,142,561 1,792,784
TOTAL REVENUES 46,942,893 48,621,696
EXPENSES
Program services:

Child Development 6,673,078 6,407,361

Community Services 1,244,487 1,401,685

Economic and Workforce Development 7,883,459 10,547,632

Energy 13,577,165 16,080,759

Hispanic-Latino Community Services 657,522 664,332

Housing and Homeless 234,137 229,264

Nutrition and Health 2,245,555 2,527,568

Special Projects 1,745,817 666,624

Volunteer Services 142,073 116,397

SNHS Management Corporation 2,181,224 1,728,474

Housing Corporations 7,424,231 6,586,162

Total program services 44,008,748 46,956,258
Support services:

Management and general 1,550,463 1,716,731
TOTAL EXPENSES 45,559,211 48,672,989
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,383,682 (51,293)
NET ASSETS - AUGUST 1, AS RESTATED 3,327,377 3,378,670
NET ASSETS - JULY 31 $ 4,711,059 $ 3,327,377

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

COMBINED STATEMENTS O CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31,2013 AND 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Loss on disposal of assets
Unrealized gain on investments
(Increase) decrease operating assets:
Coniracts rececivable
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Accrued comp. absences
Accrued other habilities
Deferred revenue
Over applied overhead
Tenant security deposits
Total adjustments
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of investments
Deposit to restricted cash accounts
Other financing activities
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt

Net proceeds from capital advances
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - AUGUST 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 31

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

See independent auditor's repoit and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2013 2012

$ 1,383,682 (51,293)
2,318,248 1,721,353

- 6,808

148,313 90,390
(506,268) (16,620)

276,600 1,660,191

(132,761) 293,924

129,619 37,031
(177,107) (108,207)
236,075 (30,413)
(76,575) (57,606)

49,858 266,479
(918,912) (441,061)
(286,842) 14,159

10,642 7,096
1,070,890 3,443,524

2,454,572 3,392,231
(7,229,171) (8,082,032)
(2,065,154) (345,888)
(258,995) (627,723)
9,947 (146,310)
(9,543,368) (9,201,953)

. 7,787,152
(187,105) (1,126,123)
6,900,704 -
6,713,599 6,661,029
(375,197) 851,307
6,278,621 5,427,314

§ 5,903,424 6,278,621
$ 243,709 270,033




SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 1:

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of the Organization

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. is an umbrella corporation that offers an array of services to
the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in New Hampshire’s Hillsborough County and
Rockingham County. The Organization's programs provide assistance in the areas of education,
child development, employment, energy and its conservation, housing and homelessness prevention.
The organization is committed to providing respectful support service and assisting individuals and
families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the causes of poverty. The primary
source of revenues is derived from govermmental contracts. Services are provided through:

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. SNHS Elderly Housing XI, Inc.

SNHS Management Corporation Rural Housing for the Elderly, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing, Inc. Rural Housing for the Elderly 1i, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing 11, Inc. Sundial Elderly Housing, Inc.

SNHS Elderly Housing 111, Inc. SNHS Ashland Elderly Housing, Inc.
SNHS Elderly [Housing IV, Inc. SNHS Farmington Elderly Housing, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing V, Inc. SNHS Greenfield Elderly Housing, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing V1, Inc. SNHS North Berwick Elderly Housing, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing VII, Inc. SNHS Northwood Elderly Housing, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing V111, Tne. SNHS Pittsburg Elderly Housing, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing IX, Inc. SNHS Raymond Elderly Housing, Inc.

SNHS Elderly Housing X, Inc.

Basis of Presentation

The Organizalion prepares its combined financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which involves the application of
accrual accounting; consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when eamed, and expenses
and losses are recognized when incurred. Nel assets, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets
of the Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted net assets — Unrestricted net assets of the Organization arc net assets that are
neither permanently restricted nor temporarily restricted by donor-imposed restrictions.

Temporarily resiricted net assets — Temporarily restricted net assets are net assets resulting
from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the Organization is limited by
donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled and
removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations.

Permanently restricted net assets — Permanently restricted net assets are net assets resulting
from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the Organization is limited by
donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be fulfilled or
otherwise removed by actions of the Organization.

The Organization has no temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets at July 31,
2013 and 2012.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 1:

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Combined Financial Statements

All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic combined
financial statements. The combined financial statements include the accounts of the following
corporations because Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. controls more than 50% of the voting
power.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. SNHS Elderly Housing X1, Inc.

SNHS Management Corporation Rural Housing for the Elderly, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing, Inc. Rural Housing for the Elderly II, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing II, Inc. Sundial Elderly Housing, Inc.

SNHS Elderly Housing 111, Inc. SNHS Ashland Elderly Housing, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing 1V, Inc. SNHS Farmington Elderly Housing, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing V, Inc. SNHS Greenfield Elderly Housing, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing VI, Inc. SNHS North Berwick Elderly Housing, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing V11, Inc. SNHS Northwood Elderly Housing, Inc.
SNHS Elderly Housing VIII, Inc. SNHS Pittsburg Elderly Housing, Inc.
SNHS Elderly llousing 1X, Inc. SNHS Raymond Elderly Iousing, Inc.

SNHS Elderly Housing X, Inc.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of combined financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of asscts and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results may differ from these amounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the combined statements of cash flows, the Organization considers all
unrestricted highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition

The Organization’s revenue is recognized primarily from federal and state grants and contracts
generally structured as reimbursed contracts for services and therefore revenue is recognized based
on when their individual allowable budgeted expenditures occur. Federal and state grant revenue
comprised 73% and 79% of total revenue in the fiscal years ended July 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Accounts and Contracts Receivable

All accounts and contracts reccivable are stated at the amount management expect to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Receivables are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting
primarily based on reimbursable contracts, grants and agreements. Balances outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are writien off through a charge to bad debt
expense and a credit to the applicable accounts receivable. Management does not believe an
allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is necessary at July 31, 2013 and 2012.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 1:

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Contributions and In-Kind Donations

Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the
restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other donor-
restricted support is reported as an increasc in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, (that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the combined statements of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. In-kind revenues and expenses represent fair market value of
volunteer services and non-paid goods which were donated to the Organization during the current
fiscal year. All in-kind revenues in the fiscal year 2013 and 2012 were generated through the Head
Start programs.

Investments

The Organization carries investients in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and
all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the combincd statements of financial position.
Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying combined
statements of activities.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets acquired by the Organization are capitalized at cost if purchased or fair value if
donated. It is the Organization's policy to capitalize expenditures for these items in excess of
$5,000. Major additions and renewals are capitalized, while repairs and maintenance are expensed
as incurred. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, which range from three to forty years. Depreciation expense for July 31, 2013 and
2012 was $2,318,248 and $1,721,353, respectively.

Fixed assets purchased with grant funds are owned by the Organization while used in the program
for which they were purchased or in other future authorized programs. However, the various
funding sources have a reversionary interest in the fixed assets purchased with grant funds. The
disposition of fixed assets, as well as the ownership of any proceeds is subject to funding source
regulations.

Inventory
Inventory is stated at lower of cost or market. Cost is determined generally on the first-in, first-out
basis.

Current Vulnerabilities Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions located in New
Hampshire and Maine. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Organization
(FDIC) up to $250,000 per financial institution. In addition, on October 2, 2008, the Organization
entered into an agreement with its principal banking partner to collateralize deposits in excess of the
FDIC insurance limitation on some accounts, As of July 31, 2013 and 2012, uninsured cash
balances amounted to $120,538 and $0, respectively. It is the opinion of management that the
solvency of the referenced financial institutions is not of particular concern at this time.

Advertising

The Organization uses advertising to promote programs among the people it serves. The
production costs of advertising are expensed as incurred.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Functional Allocation of Expenses

‘The costs associated with providing program services and management and general support services
are presented by natural classification on the combined statcment of functional expenses and have been
summarized on a functional basis on the combined statements of activities.

Income Taxes
The Organization qualifics as an organization exempt from income tax under Section 501 (c) (3) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Management has evaluated the Organization’s tax positions and concluded that as of July 31, 2013 and
2012, the Organization does not believe that it has taken any tax positions that would require the
recording of any additional tax benefits or liabilities within the next twelve months. Since tax matters
are subject 10 some degree of uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the Organization’s 1ax returns
will not be challenged by the taxing authorities and that the Organization will not be subject to
additional tax, penalties and interest as a result of such challenge. Generally, the Organization’s tax
returns remain subject to examination for three years after they were filed.

Subsequent Events

Management has made an evaluation of subsequent events through Aprl 30, 2014, which
represents the date on which the combined financial statements were available to be issued and
determined that any subsequent events that would require recognition or disciosure have been
considered in the preparation of these combined financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2012 combined financial statement presentation
to correspond to the current year's format. Net assets and changes in net assets are unchanged
due to these reclassifications.

RESTRICTED CASH

The housing projects are required to set aside amounts for the replacement of property and other
expenditures. These amounts are set aside in separate accounts and generally are not available for
operating purposes.

The housing projects are also required to put any surplus cash into a separate account. These
accounts are also not available for operating purposes.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures establish a framework to measuring
fair value within generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). That framework provides a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority 1o unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3
measurements).

13



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

JULY 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:
Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market
data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. If the asset or
liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market
activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets mcasured at fair
value. There have been no changes in the mcthodologics used at July 31, 2013 and 2012.

Mutual Funds and Money Markets: Valued at the closing price reported on the active market on
which the individual securities are traded.

The fair value by level of the Organization’s investments consisted of the following as of July 31:

2013
Fair Value at reporting date
Quoted
prices in
active Significant Significant
markets for other un-
identical observable observable
assets inputs inputs
Description Cost Fair Value {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Money Market $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000
Mutunal Funds 2,148.867 3,132,222 3,132,222 $ - $ -
Total $4,148,867 $5,132,222 $5,132,222 $ - S -
2012
Fair Value at reporting date
Quoted
prices in
active Significant Significant
markets for other un-
identical observable observable
assets 1nputs inputs
Description Cost Fair Value (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Mutual Funds $2.087,825 $2.,560,800 $2.,560,800 b3 - § -
Total $2,087,825 $2,560,800 $2,560,800 3 - 3 -

14



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

JULY 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 4:

NOTE §:

INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of investments as of July 31:

2013 2012
Fair Fair
Market  Unrealized Market Unrealized
Cost Value Gains Cost Value Gains
Money Market $2,0600,000 $2,000,000 $ - $ - 3 - % -
Mutual Funds 2,148,867 3,132,222 983,355 2,087,825 2,560,800 472,975
Total $4.148,867 $5132,222 $983.355 $2,087,825 $2.560.800 $_472,975
The activities of the Organization’s investment account are summarized as follows:
2013 2012
Fair Value — August 1 $2,560,800 $2,198,292
Additions 2,065,154 345,888
Distributions - -
Realized gains - -
Unrealized gains 506,268 16.620
Fair Value - July 31 $5,132,222 $2,560,800

CONTINGENT LIEN J. BROWN HOMESTEAD PROPERTY

In 1999, the town of Raymond, New Hampshire, conveyed land and buildings to Rockingham
Community Acton (RCA) for $1 and a morigage lien of $604,418. The buildings contain four
apartments limited to low-income seniors, office space for the Outreach operations, space for the
Food Pantry operation, and a common meeting room for use by Town of Raymond organizations.
The Town of Raymond included a requirement that the property be used for a social service
center for a period of 20 years, called the benefit period, after which this requirement terminates.

RCA granted the Town of Raymond a lien on the property, such lien to be paid from the proceeds
of any sale in the event that RCA sells or otherwise conveys the property within 20 years from the
date of the mortgage (1999), or if not paid at the time of the sale will run with the land 1o any
subsequent purchaser for the remaining benefit period. This mortgage lien has no scheduled
principle or interest payments and is forgivable at a rate of 1/20 each year of the benefit period
until it is completely forgiven in year 2019. The value of this lien at July 31, 2013 and 2012 is
$211,547 and $241,768, respectively.

The appraised value of the land and buildings at the time of the donation was $220,000. RCA has
operated its Raymond Community Action Center at the property since the transfer and plans to
continue to do so. Therefore, since RCA has no plans to sell or transfer this property the
contingent mortgage lien Hability has 1ot been included on these financial statements.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 6:

LONG-TERM DEBT

SNHS. Inc.
Mortgage payable to City of Manchester, secured by real
estate located in Manchester, NH. A balloon payment of
$11,275 was due on June 30, 2010. Interest is at 0.000%.

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located
on Temple St., Nashua, NH, payable in fixed monthly
principal installments of $1,833 plus interest through
2020. Interest is at 4.000%.

SNHS Management Corporation
Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located
on Allds St., Nashua, NH, payable in monthly
installments of $1,789 including interest through 2013.
Interest is at 6.480%.

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located
on Pine St., Manchester, NH, payable in monthly
installments of $2,678 including interest through 2013.
Interest is at 6.460%.

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located
on West Pearl St, Nashua, NH. Morigage will be
forgiven only if real estate remains low income housing
for 40 years. Interest is at 0.000%.

Mortgage payable to bank secured by real estate located
on Silver St., Manchester, NH, payable in monthly
installments of $2,731 including interest through 2014.
Interest is at 6.030%.

Morigage payable to bank, secured by real estate located
on Allds St, Nashua, NH, payable in fixed monthly
principal installments of $2,613 plus interest through
2016. Interest 1s at 2.996%.

Mortgage payable to MH Parsons and Sons Lumber,
secured by real estate located in Derry, NH, payable in
monthly installments of $3,715 including interest through
2031. Interest 1s at 5.500%.

Subtotal

16

2013

$11,275

370,669

170,000

154,688

245,625

512,740
$ 1,464,997

N
)
LS}

$11,275

392,669

17,879

18,320

170,000

177,246

276,981

528,637
$1.593,007



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 6:

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Subtotal Carried Forward

Housing Corporations
Mortgage payable between Key Bank and SNHS Rural
Housing for the Elderly, Inc., secured by real estate
located in Greenville, NH, payable in monthly
installments of $14,044 including interest through 2040.
Interest 1s at 5.120%.

Mortgage payable between Oppenheimer and SNHS
Elderly Housing, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Epping, NH, payable in monthly installments of $5,932
including interest through 2047, Interest is at 3.950%.

Morigage payable between the Town of Northwood and
SNHS Northwood Elderly Housing, Inc., secured by real
estate located in Northwood, NH. Mortgage will be
forgiven if real estate remains low income housing for 20
years and the entity does not generate residual receipts.
Interest is at 0.000%.

Mortgage payable between NHHFA and SNHS
Greenheld Elderly Housing, Inc.. secured by real estate
located in Greenfield, NH. Mortgage payments are based
upon surplus cash. Remaining balance due in 2040 or
upon sale of the property. Interest is at 0.000%.

Less: Current Portion
Long-term debt, net of current portion

2013

$ 1,464,997

2,473,538

1,327,460

95,000

450,000
$ 5,810,995

288,892
$ 5,522,103

$1,593,007

2,514,282

1,345,811

85,000

450,000
$ 5,998,100
_185.875

$5.812.225

Principal maturities for long-term debt for the subsequent fiscal years from July 31, 2013, are as

follows:

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Thereafter
Total

17

$ 288,892
138,160
293,874
115,331
119,923

4,854.815

$5.810,995



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 7:

CAPITAL ADVANCES

Housing Corporations
Capital advance between HHUD and Rural Housing for the

Elderly II, Inc., secured by real estate located in Nashua,
NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if rcal estate
remains low inceme housing for 40 years. Interest is at
0.000%.

Capital advance between HUD and Sundial Elderly
Housing, Inc., sccured by real cstate Jocated in Nashua,
NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real estate

remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest is
0.000%.

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Northwood
Elderly Housing, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Northwood, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real

estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
is at 0.000%.

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Farmington
Elderly Housing, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Manchester, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real
estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
is at 0.000%.

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing V, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Manchester, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real
estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest

1s at 0.000%.

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing 1II, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Rochester, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real

estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
1s at 0.000%

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing III, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Rochester, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real
estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
18 at 0.000%.

Subtotal

18

[
~
w

$ 3,167,200

4,081,600

3,460,700

2,827,000

2,948,700

2,485,859

3,522,500
$22.,493.559

N
~
1)

$3,167,200

4,086,600

3,460,700

2,827,000

2,948,700

2,485,859

3.522.500
$22,498.559



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 7: CAPITAL ADVANCES (Continued)

013 2012

Subtotal Carried Forward $ 22,493,559 $22,498,559

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing II, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Rochester, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven in real
estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
is at 0.000%. 2,966,900 2,966,900

Capital advance between HUD and Rural Housing for the
Elderly II, Inc., secured by real estate located in Nashua,
NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real estate
remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest is at
0.000%. 2,337,800 2,337,800

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing IV, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Nashua, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real
estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
is at 0.000%. 4,412,500 4,412,500

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Raymond
Elderly Housing, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Raymond, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real
estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
1s at 0.000%. 1,773,900 1,773,900

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Pittsburg
Elderly Housing, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Pittsburg, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real
estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
is at 0.000%. 1,481,082 1,479,700

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS North Berwick
Elderly Housing, Inc., secured by real estate located in
North Berwick, ME. Capital advance will be forgiven if
real estate remains low income housing for 40 years.
Interest is at 0.000%. 2,016,800 2,016,800

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Greenfield

Elderly Housing, Inc., secured by real estate located in

Greenfield, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real

estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest

is at 0.000%. 1,545,300 1,545,300
Subtotal $ 39,027,841 $39.,031.459
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 7:

CAPITAL ADVANCES (Continued)

Subtotal Carried Forward

Capital advancc between HUD and Ashland Elderly
Housing, Inc., secured by real estate located in Ashland,
NH. Capital advance will be forgiven in real estate

remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest is at
0.000%.

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing VI, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Bristol, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real

estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
is at 0.000%.

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing VI, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Manchester, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real

estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
is at 0.000%.

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing VII, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Manchester, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real

estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
is at 0.000%.

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing VII, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Manchester, NH. The advance is expected to be
converted into a mortgage once construction has been
completed. The Capital advance will be forgiven if real
estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
1s at 0.000%.

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing VIII, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Campton, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real
estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
1s at 0.000%.

Subtotal

20

2013

$ 39,027,841

3,426,100

2,711,900

5,143,400

3,242,700

2,530,404

2,352,500
$ 58,434,845

2012

$39,031,459

3,426,100

2,711,900

5,143,400

3,242,700

2,537,080
$56.,092,639



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 7:

NOTE &:

NOTE 9:

CAPITAL ADVANCES (Continued)
2013 2012
Subtotal Carried Forward $ 58,434,845 $56,092,639

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing 1X, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Plymouth, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real
estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
is at 0.000%. 2,341,700 1,911,105

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing XI, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Lancaster, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven in real
estate remains Jow income housing for 40 years. Interest
is at 0.000%. 3,136,902 -

Capital advance between HUD and SNHS Elderly
Housing X, Inc., secured by real estate located in
Woodstock, NH. Capital advance will be forgiven if real
estate remains low income housing for 40 years. Interest
is at 0.000%. 2,351,200 1,360,199

4 A A A ER LA L LE A
Total $.66264,647  $.59,363,943
OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases various facilities and equipment under several operating leases. Total
lease payments for the years ended July 31, 2013 and 2012 equaled $834,208 and $942,574,
respectively. The leases expire at various times through August 2015. Some of the leases contain
renewal options that are contingent upon federal funding and some contain renewal options subject
to renegotiation of lease terms.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for the operating leases as of July
31,2013:

2014 $184,383
2015 124,117
2016 20,322
Total $328.822

ACQUISITION

On July 1, 2011, Rockingham Community Action (RCA), a New Hampshire corporation, was
acquired by the Organization. The merger is classified as an acquisition by SNHS of RCA for no
monetary consideration. The Organization assumed all the assets, rights, powers, properties,
debts, liabilities and obligations of RCA. The acquisition was recorded in two phases, phase one
was recorded on July 1, 2011, resulting in a gain on acquisition of $1,582,641. Phase two was
recorded on November 1, 2011 and resulted in a loss on acquisition of $99,592.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

JULY 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 10:

NOTE 113:

NOTE 12:

NOTE 13:

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Organization has an Employer-Sponsored 403(b) plan offering coverage to all of its
employees. Participating employees must contribute at least 5% of their wages, while the
Organization contributes 10% of their wages. The pension expense for the years ended July 31,
2013 and 2012 was $745,558 and $727,576, respectively.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the
Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state
and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative directives, rules, and regulations are subject to
change by an act of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional administrative burden, 1o
comply with a change.

CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives contract funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for purposes
specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found not to have been
made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required to repay
the funds. No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if any,
have not yet been determined.

RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR NET ASSETS

The carrying value of the Capital Advance account, as related to Sundial Elderly Housing, Inc.,
was reduced to reflect additional information received from HUD subsequent to the issue date of
the July 31, 2012 financial statements. The restatement changed the beginning net assets for the
year ending July 31, 2012, but did not affect the change in net assets for that year. The
restatement 1s as follows:

Net Assets — July 31, 2011, Previously Reported $ 3,187,052
Capital Advance correction 191618
Net Assets — July 31, 2011, Restated 3,378,670
Change in Net Assets — Reported —(51.293)
Net Assets — July 31, 2012, Restated $3.327377
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SOUTIHERN NEW HAMPSHIRL SERVICES, INC.

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31,2013

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Conwracts receivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)
Prepaid expenses
Investory
Due from other corporations
Total current asscts

FIXED ASSETS
Land
Buildings and unprovements
Vehicles and equipment
Construction in progress
Total fixed assets
Less - accumulated depreciation
Net fixed assets

OTHER ASSETS
Restricted cash
Miscellaneous other assets

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payrol! taxes

Accrued compensated absences

Accrued other habilities

Deferred revenue

Over applied overhead

Tenant security deposits

Due to other corporations

Current portion of long-term debt
Total cuirent Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term debt, less current portion
Capital advances

Total loong-term babilitics

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

10/14/15/30740/
S0/80/81/82/81

0/845/1275 105 110
SNHS Rural Housing  Rural Housing
Management  for the Eiderly for the
SNHS, Inc. Corporation I Landing Ul Elderly
ASSETS

$ 324,607 S 4341831 S 57957 S 131,577
- 5,132,222 - -

3,101,953 160,854 - 5,088

- 171.722 - -

27,129 17,773 13,64) 17,539
2,335,165 869,303 - -
5,788,854 10,693,705 71,598 154,204
219,849 1,320,953 2,898 166,890
1,525,302 4,835,349 3,249,909 3,638,598
820,345 446,227 20,879 280,036
2,565,496 6,602,529 3,273,686 4,085,524
(1,168.580) (2.430,482) (1,031,352) (2,363,231)
1,396,916 4,172,047 2,242,334 1,722,293
12,372 202,529 175,234 659,015

- 137,555 - 145,918

12,372 340,084 175.234 804,933

$ 7,198,142 § 15205836 § 2489166 § 2,681,430

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$ 303,805 $ 7.565 § 1,884 % 7,429
361,235 512,462 3,180 5,984

- 623,845 - -

239,460 1,757 4,200 24,861
2,026,194 - 23 1,525
115,916 - - -
11,908 11,603 17,607 20,737
1,647,126 1,247,837 26,930 59,621
24,255 202,913 - 42,697
4,729,899 2,407,982 53,824 162,854
357,690 880,139 - 2,430,841

- - 3,167,200 -

357,690 880,139 3,167,200 2,430,841
5,087,589 3.288,121 3,221,024 2,593,695
2,110,553 11,917,715 (731,858) 87,735
7,198,142 S 15205836 S 2,485.166 § 2,681,430

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS b3

Sce independent auditor's repoit and accompanying notes 1o the financial statements.
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SOUTIIERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SFRVICES, INC.

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Schedule A (Continued)

JULY 21,2013
120 130 140 145
SNHS
Sundial Northwood SNHS Elderly
SNHS Elderly Elderly Elderly Housing
Housing Housing Housing Vil
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash S 29,642 S 73,459 S 41945 % 57,935
Investments . - R -
Contracts receivable (net) 50 10 - -
Accounts receivable (net) - - - -
Prepaid expenses 2,541 16,856 4,205 4,482
Inventory - - - -
Due from other corporations - - - -
Total current assets 32,233 90,325 46,150 62,417
FIXED ASSETS
Land 85,542 342,450 75,801 662,211
Buildings and improvements 1,106,277 4,020,210 3,479,774 4,419,703
Vehicles and equipment 30,733 43,109 20,831 35,003
Construction in progress - - - -
Total fixed asscts 1,222,552 4,405,769 3,576,406 5,316,917
Less - accumulaled depreciation (639,024) (1,689,379) (661,771) (373,583)
Net fixed assets 583,528 2,716,390 2,914,635 4,743,334
OTHER ASSETS
Restricted cash 288,144 259,988 82,684 110,928
Miscellaneous other assets 138,678 - - 4,028
Total other assets 426.822 259,988 82,684 114,956
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,042,583 § 3,066,703 S 3,043469 S 4,920,707
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 9269 § 3391 S 1,076 § 906
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 1,849 5,123 1,870 1,628
Accrued compensated absences - - - -
Accrued other liabilities 6,435 6.435 6,435 13,951
Deferred revenuc 640 524 725 1,420
Over applied overhead - - - -
Tenant security deposits 6,309 26,743 10,356 11,408
Due to other corporations 102,576 39,823 34,300 16,775
Current portion of long-term debt 19,027 - - -
Total current liabilities 137.805 82,039 54,762 46,088
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term debt, less current portion 1,308,433 - 95,000 -
Capital advances - 4,081,600 3,460,700 5,143,400
Total long-term liabilities 1,308,433 4,081,600 3,555,700 5,143,400
TOTAL LI1ABILITIES 1,446,238 4,163,639 3,610,462 5,189,488
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (403,655) (1.096,936) (566,993) (268,781)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S 1,042,583 § 3,066,703 S 3,043469 S 4,920,707

See independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes 1o the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Schedule A (Continued)

JULY 31, 2013
146 147 149 150
SNHS
OLPH 1A Farmington
OLPH I Construction  Elderly Housing
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 41,999 § 5183 % 50 S 63,426
Investments - - - -
Contracts receivable (net) - - -
Accounts receivable (net) - - - -
Prepaid expenses 2,779 - - 2,174
loventory - - -
Due from other corporations - - 447,553 -
Total current assets 44,778 5,183 447,603 65,600
FIXED ASSETS
Land 570,320 - - 267,538
Buildings and iinprovements 2,634,254 16,744 2,105,306 2,716,410
Vehicles apd equipment 24,100 18,124 28,403
Consiruction in progress - - - -
Total fixed assets 3,228,674 16,744 2,123,430 3,012,35]
Less - accumulated depreciation (135,950) - - (1.113,223)
Net fixed assets 3,092,724 16,744 2,123,430 1,899,128
OTHER ASSETS
Restricted cash 67,442 14,971 - 76,847
Miscellaneous other assets 2,222 - - -
Total other assets 69,664 14,971 - 76,847
TOTAL ASSETS 3 3,207,166 $ 36,898 $ 2,571,033 § 2,041,575
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 191§ 559 § 37 S 2,117
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 1,696 - - 2,318
Accrued compensated absences - - -
Accrued other liabilities 10,966 557 40,592 22,104
Deferred revenue 386 - - -
Over applied overhead - - - -
Tenant security deposits 7,169 4912 - 13,329
Duc to other corporations 27,895 27,466 - 18,027
Current portion of Jong-term debt - - - -
Total current liabilities 48,303 33,494 40,629 57,895
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term debt, less current portion - - - -
Capital advances 3,242,700 - 2,530,404 2,827,000
Total long-term liabilitics 3,242,700 2,530,404 2,827,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,291,003 33,494 2,571,033 2,884,895
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (83,837) 3,404 - (843,320)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS § 3,207,166 S 36,898 % 2,571,033 § 2,041,575

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes 1o the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JULY 31,2013

Schedule A (Conrinued)

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Contracts receivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Due [rom other corporations
Total current asscls

FIXED ASSETS
Land
Buildings and improvements
Vchicles and equipment
Construction in progress
Total fixed assets
Less - accumulated depreciation
Net fixed assets

OTHER ASSETS
Restricted cash
Miscellaneous other assets

Total other asscts

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes

Accrued compensated absenccs

Accrued other liabilities

Deferred revenuc

Over applied overhead

Tenant security deposits

Due 1o other corporations

Current portion of long-tenn debt
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-tcrm dcbt, lcss current portion
Capital advances

Total long-tenn liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $

155 160 170 175
SNHS Elderly  SNHS Elderly SNHS SNHS Elderly
Housing Housing 11 - Elderly Housing TI -
\'s Roberge Housing 111 Chasse
ASSETS
s 63,536 § 57,954 % 68,623 § 55.620
1,950 - 5,885 5,307
65,486 57,954 74,508 60,927
150,000 126.045 288,401 7,420
2,731,835 2,479,717 3,333,599 2,977,084
82,274 31,722 21,327 23,377
2,964,109 2,637,484 3,643,327 3,007,881
(549,817) (1,144,542) (1,252,726} (755,422)
2,414,292 1,492,942 2,390,601 2,252,459
63,820 125,477 301,994 148,549
63,820 125,477 301,994 148,549
$ 2,543,598 § 1676373 § 2.767,103 § 2,461,935
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
$ 1,984 S 4812 % 2,177 S 727
1,918 2,680 3,532 2,662
29,044 4,874 6,435 4,175
380 482 701 692
9,392 13,266 17,711 11,755
14,398 33,412 32,146 22,818
57,116 59,526 62,702 42,829
2,948,700 2,485,859 3,522,500 2,966,900
2,948,700 2,485,859 3,522,500 2,966,900
3,005,816 2,545,385 3,585,202 3,009,729
(462,218) (869,012) (818,099) (547,794)
2,543,598 $§ 1676373 S 2,767,103 ' 2,461,935

Scc indcpendent auditer’s repont and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Schedule A (Continued)

JULY 31,2013
180 185 190 200
Rural Housing  SNHS Elderty SNHS SNHS
for the Elderly Housing Raymond Pittsburg
11 - Lending ! 1AY Elderly Housing Elderly Housing
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash S 47314 S 71482 S 83,848 S 15,792
Investiments - - - -
Contracts receivable (net) - -
Accounts receivable (net) - - - -
Prepaid expenses 10,267 - - 2,198
Inventory - - R
Due from other corporations - - - -
Total current asscts 57,581 71,482 83,848 17,990
FIXED ASSETS
Land 7.89¢ 163,377 118,481 17.190
Buildings and improvements 2,502,229 4325072 1,754,048 1,598,635
Vehicles and equipment 14,382 21,625 29,433 10,472
Construction in progress - - - -
Total fixed assets 2,524,509 4510074 1,901,962 1,626,297
Less - sccumulated depreciation (869,163) (882,455) (717,284) (624,027)
Net fixed assets 1,655,346 3,627,619 1,184,678 1,002,270
OTHER ASSETS
Restricted cash 140,525 193,295 163,465 69,300
Miscellaneous other assets - - - -
Total other assets 140,525 193,295 163,465 69,300
TOTAL ASSETS S 1,853,452 § 3,89239 S 1431991 § 1,089,560
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 5 3619 § 1,440 S 790 S 1,402
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 3,067 2,790 1,849 1,347
Accrued comnpensated absences - - - -
Accrued other liabilities 4,200 25,058 28,610 8,254
Deferred revenue - - - 393
Over applied overhead - - - -
Tenant security deposits 12,288 15,840 8,397 4,725
Due to other corporations 22,182 20,634 28,517 124,058
Current portion of long-term debt - - - .
Total current liabilities 45,356 65,762 68,163 140,179
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term dcebt, less current portion - - - -
Capital advances 2,337,800 4,412.500 1,773,900 1,481,082
Total Jong-tenn liabilities 2,337,800 4,412,500 1,773,900 1,481,082
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,383,156 4,478,262 1,842,063 1,621,261
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (529,704) (585,866) (410,072) (531,701)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS § 1853452 $ 3.8923% § 1431991 § 1,089,560

Sce independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the financial siatements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Schedule A (Continued)

JULY 31,2013
210 220 230 235
SNHS North SNHS
Berwick Elderly Greenficld SNHS Ashiand SNHS Elderly
Housing Elderly Housing Elderly Housing  Housing V1
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 49947 § 38919 S 42872 S 18,047
Investments - - -
Contracts receivable (net) - - - -
Accounts receivable (net) - - - -
Prepaid expenses 7314 5.688 3,461 1,412
Inventory . . . -
Due from other corporations - - - -
Total current assets 57,261 44,607 46,333 19,459
FIXED ASSETS
Land 138.744 64,244 295,000 309,800
Buildings and improvements 1,934,264 1,979,799 2,989,901 2,571.271
Vehicles and equipment 32,836 21,466 82,112 20,356
Construction in progress - - - -
Total tixed assets 2,105,844 2,065,509 3.367,013 2,907,433
Less - accumulated depreciation (649,780) (625,940) (462,566) (289,812)
Net fixed assets 1,456,064 1,439,569 2,904,447 2,617,621
OTHER ASSETS
Recstricted cash 107,940 178,344 389,911 27,214
Miscellaneous other assels - - - -
Total other asscts 107,940 178344 389,911 27,214
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1621265 § 1,662,520 § 3,340,691 § 2,664,204
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 1,212 § 2311 S 3079 S 555
Accrucd payroll and payrol] 1axes 1,646 1,539 1,542 1,028
Accrued compensated absences - - - -
Accrucd other liabilities 6,435 6,435 25,472 21,529
Deferred revenue 449 - 863 -
Over applied overhead - - - -
Tenant security deposits 8,608 7,070 9.084 5,762
Due to other corporations 34,565 33,738 15,704 36,543
Current portion of long-tenn debt - - . -
Total current liabilitics 52,915 51,093 55,744 65,417
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term debt, less current portion - 450,000 - -
Capital advances 2,016,800 1,545,300 3,426,100 2,711,900
Total long-tenn liabilities 2,016,800 1,995,300 3,426,100 2,711,900
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,069,715 2,046,393 3,481,844 2,717,317
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (448.450) (383,873) (141,153) (113,023)
TOTAL LJABILITIES AND NET ASSETS  § 162i.265 § 1662520 § 3,340,691 $ 2,604,294

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.

28



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Schedule A (Continued)

Sce independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.

JULY 31,2013
240 245 250 255
SNHS Elderly  SNHS Elderly  SNHS Elderly  SNHS Elderly
Housing VIII Housing 1X Housing X Housing X1
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash S 33952 § 53,023 % 26,764 % 6.061
Investments - - R .
Contracts receivable (net) - - - .
Accounts receivable (net) - - - -
Prepaid expenses 936 1,203 1,663 -
Inventory - - - -
Duc from other corporations - - - -
Total current assets 34 888 54,226 28,427 6,061
FIXED ASSETS
Land 220,000 152,019 150.000 -
Buildings and improvements 2,281,821 2.349,58} 2,347,246 -
Vebicles and equipment 19,078 19.200 23,554 -
Construction in progress - - - -
Total fixed assets 2,520,899 2,520,800 2,520,800 -
Less - accumulated depreciation (83,176) (60,303) (41,759) -
Net fixed assets 2,437,723 2,460,497 2,479,041 -
OTHER ASSETS
Restricted cash 33,015 23,639 19,804 2,883
Miscellancous other assets - - - -
Total other assets 33,015 23,639 19,804 2,383
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2505626 S 2538362 § 2527272 § 8,944
LTIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 264 S 1,062 § 287 § 1,365
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 662 662 682 775
Accrued compensated abscnces - - - -
Accrued other liabilities 16,200 15,340 9,034 -
Deferred revenue 970 - 437 -
Over applied overhead - - - -
Tenant security deposits 4,696 57113 3,859 2,827
Due to other corporations 1,374 8,880 16,134 9,584
Current portion of long-tenn debt - - - -
Total current liabilities 30,166 31,657 30,433 14,55}
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-tenn deb, less current portion - - - -
Capital advances 2,352,500 2,341,700 2,351,200 -
Total long-term labilities 2,352,500 2,341,700 2,351,200 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,382,666 2,373,357 2,381,633 14,551
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 122,960 165,005 145,639 (5,607)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,505,626 $ 2538362 S 2527272 § 8,944
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Schedule A (Continued)

JULY 31,2013
257
SNHS Elderly
Housing X1 -
Construction Sub-Total Elimination Totals
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash S 60 $ 5903425 § - S 5903425
Investments - 5,132,222 - 5132222
Contracts receivable (net) - 3,267,955 - 3,267,955
Accounts receivable (net) - 17,722 - 171,722
Prepaid expenses - 156,403 - 156,403
Invemory - . - -
Due from other corporations 57,042 3,709,063 (3,709,063) -
Total current assets 57,102 18,340,790 (3,709,063) 14,631,727
FIXED ASSETS
Land 251,836 6,174,907 - 6,174,907
Buildings and improvements 2,772.431 74,682,375 - 74.682,375
Vehicles and equipment 45,780 2,266,784 - 2,266,784
Construction in progress - - - -
Total fixed assets 3,070,047 83,124,066 - 83,124 066
Less - accumulated depreciation - (20,615,347) - (20,615,347)
Net fixed assets 3,070,047 62,508,719 - 62,508,719
OTHER ASSETS
Restricted cash 10,003 3,949,332 - 3,949,332
Misceliancous other assets - 428 401 - 428.401
Total other assets 10,003 4.377,733 - 4,377,733
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,137,152 85,227,242 $§ (3,709,063) $ 81,518,179
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 250 S 357,265 % -3 357265
Accrued payroll and payrol) taxes - 725,726 - 725,726
Accrued compensated absences - 623,845 - 623,845
Accrued other liabilities - 588,848 - 588,848
Deferred revenue - 2,036,804 - 2,036,804
Over applied overhead - 115916 - 115,916
Tcoant security deposits - 283,074 - 283,074
Due 10 other corporations - 3,709,063 (3,709,063) -
Cunrent portion of long-tenm debt - 288.892 - 288,892
Total current liabilities 250 8,729,433 (3,709,063) 5,020,370
LONG-TERM LJABILITIES
Long-term dcbt, less current portion 5,522,103 - 5,522,103
Capital advances 3,136,902 66,264,647 66,264,647
Toral long-tcrm liabilitics 3,136,902 71,786,750 - 71,786,750
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,137,152 80,516,183 (3,709,063) 76,807,120
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted - 4,711,059 - 4,711,059
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS  $ 3,137,152 85,227,242 $ (3,709,063) $ 81,518,179

See independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Schedule B
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

10/15/30/40/50/
80/81/82/810/8
45 105 110
SNHS Rural Housing  Rural Housing
Management  for the Elderly for the
SNHS, Inc. Corporation IT Landing 11 Elderly

REVENUES

Grant/contract support $ 35,816,556 $ 5,146 % - § -

Program service fees 183,103 932,398 - -

Local funding 25,781 355,009 - -

Rental income 12,150 535,044 318,739 055,690

Gifts and contributions 337,169 50,621 - -

Special events and activities - - - -

Memberships - - - -

Interest Income 203 63,310 52 274

Unrealized gain on investments - 506,268 - -

In-kind 1,477,987 - - -

Miscellaneous 867,456 512,163 10,938 31,241
TOTAL REVENUES 38,720,405 2,959,959 329,729 987,205
EXPENSES

Program services:

Child Development 8,151,065 - - -

Community Services 1,244,487 - - -

Economic and Workforce Dev. 7.883,459 - - -

Energy 13,577,165 - - -

Hispanic-Latino Com. Services 657,522 - - -

Housing and Homeless 234,137 - - -

Nutrition and Health 2,245,555 - - -

Special Projects 1,745,817 - - -

Volunteer Services 142,073 - - -

SNHS Management Corporation 2,181,224 - -

Housing Corporations - 380,463 993,659

Total program services 35,881,280 2,181,224 380,463 993,659
Support services:

Management and general 1,550,463 - - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 37,431,743 2,181,224 380,463 993,659
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,288,662 778,735 (50,734) (6,454)
NET ASSETS - AUGUST 1 821,891 11,138,980 (681,124) 94189
NET ASSETS - JULY 31 $ 2,110,553 § 11917,715 § (731,858) § 87,735

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes o the financial statements.
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Schedule B (Continued)
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRFE SERVICES, INC.
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

120 130 140 145
SNHS
SNHS Sundial Northwoed
Elderly Elderly Eiderly SNHS Elderly
Housing Housing Housing Housing, VTI

REVENUES
Grant/contract support ) - 3 - $ - 8 -
Program service fees - - - -
Local funding - - -

Rental income 274,037 506,052 242,811 241,573
Gifts and contributions - - - -
Special events and activities - - - -
Memberships - - - -
Interest Income 719 97 27 37
Unrealized gain on investments - - - -
In-kind - - - -
Miscellancous 2,560 217325 4,943 8,372
TOTAL REVENUES 277,316 527,474 247,181 246 982

EXPENSES
Program services:
Child Development - - - -
Community Services - - - -
Economic and Workforce Dev. - - - -
Energy - - - -
Hispanic-Latino Com. Services - - - -
Housing and Homcless - - - -
Nutntion and Health - - - -
Special Projects - - - -
Volunteer Services - - - -
SNHS Management Corporation - - - -
Housing Corporations 343,354 569,593 349,862 344,213
Total program services 343,354 569,593 349,862 344,213
Support services:

Management and general - - - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 343,354 569,593 349.862 344213

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (66,038) (42,119) (102.081) (94,231)

NET ASSETS - AUGUST 1 (337,617) (1,054,817) (464,912) (174,550)

NET ASSETS - JULY 31 $  (403,655) § (1,096936) §  (566993) $  (268,78))

See independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Schedule B (Continued)
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

146 147 150 155

SNIIS Elderly SNHS SNHS Elderly
SNHS Liderly Housing, VIIA - Farmington Housing
Housing, VII Construction  Elderly Housing \'

REVENUES
Grant/contract support
Program service fees
Local funding
Rental income
Gifts and contributions
Special events and activities
Memberships
Interest Income
Unrealized gain on investments
In-kind
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENSES

Program services:
Child Development
Commumity Services
Economic and Workforce Dev.
Energy
Hispanic-Latino Com. Services
Housing and Homeless
Nutrition and Health
Special Projects
Volunteer Services
SNHS Management Corporation
Housing Corporations

Total program services

Support services:

Management and general

TOTAL EXPENSES
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS - AUGUST 1

NET ASSETS - JULY 31

h) - 3

190,924

2]

4,572

9,479

225,894

32

5,147

195,517

313,945

231,073

253,119

356,141

306,437

253,119

356,141

306,437

253,119

356,141

306,437

(57,602)

(26,235)

(42,196)

(801,124)

(75,364)

(386,854)

3 (83,837) §

$  (843,320) $

(462,218)

Sec independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Schedule B (Continued)

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

160

SNHS Elderly

Housing 11 -
Roberge

170

SNHS
Elderly
Housing 11T

175

SNHS Elderly

Housing I1 -
Chasse

180

Rural Housing
for the Elderly I
- Landing 1

REVENUES
Grant/contract support $
Program service fees
Local funding
Rental income
Gifts and contributions
Special events and activities
Memberships
Interest Income
Unrealized gain on investments
In-kind
Miscellaneous

8,552

380,697
98

8,541

$

315,685
50

8.177

$ -
279,930
44

79,761

TOTAL REVENUES

341,775

389,336

323,912

359,735

EXPENSES

Program services:
Child Development
Community Services
Economic and Workforce Dev.
Energy
Hispanic-Latino Com. Services
Housing and Homeless
Nutrition and Health
Special Projects
Volunteer Services
SNHS Management Corporatic
Housing Corporations

394,036

431,872

398,026

332,634

Total program services
Support services:
Management and general

394,036

431,872

398,026

332,634

TOTAL EXPENSES

394,036

431,872

398,026

332,634

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - AUGUST 1

(52,261)

(816,751)

(42,536)

{775,563)

(74,114)

(473,680)

27,101

(556,805)

NET ASSETS - JULY 31 $

(869,012) $

(818,099) $

(547,794)

3 {529,704)

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Schedule B (Continued)
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

185 190 200 210
SNHS Elderly SNHS SNHS SNHS North
Housing Raymond Pittsburg Berwick Elderly
v Elderly Housing Elderly Housing Housing
REVENUES
Grant/contract support $ - - 3 - $ -

Program service fees - - -
Local funding - - -

Rental income 310,845 212,016 144,900 253,366
Gifts and contributions - - -

Special events and activitics - - -
Memberships - - -

Interest Income 59 56 19 35

Unrealized gain on invesiments - - - -
In-kind - - - -
Miscellaneous 10,322 4,595 1,748 6,400
TOTAL REVENUES 321,226 216,667 146,667 259,801

EXPENSES
Program services:
Child Development - - - -
Community Services - - - -
Economic and Workforce Dev. - - - -
Energy - - - -
Hispanic-Latino Com. Services - - - -
Housing and Homeless - - - -
Nutrtion and Health - - - R
Special Projects - - - .
Volunteer Services - - - -
SNHS Management Corporation - - - -
Housing Corporations 413,680 269,976 235,644 305,101

Total program services 413,680 269,976 235,644 305,101
Support services:

Management and general - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 413,680 269,976 235,644 305,101

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (92,454) (53,309) (88,977) (45,300)
NET ASSETS - AUGUST 1 (493,412) (356,763) (442,724) (403,150)
NE'T ASSETS - JULY 31 $ (585,866) 3% (410,072) 3 (331,701) § (448,450)

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Schedule B (Continued)
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

220 230 235 240

SNHS
Greenfield SNHS Ashland SNHS Elderly = SNHS Elderly
Elderly Housing Elderiy Housing  Housing VI Housing VIIT

REVENUES
Grant/contract support $ - 8 - % - § -
Program service fees - - - -
Local funding - - - -
Rental income 216,497 202,617 151,804 145,692
Gifts and contributions - - . -
Special events and activities - - - -
Memberships - - - -
Interest Income 52 109 12 14
Unrealized gain on investments - - - -
In-kind - - - -
Miscellaneous 3,876 5,052 3,242 172,015

TOTAL REVENUES 220,425 207,778 155,058 317,721

EXPENSES
Program services:
Child Development - - - -
Community Services - - - -
Economic and Workforce Deyv. - - - -
Energy - - - -
Hispanic-Latino Com. Services - - - -
Housing and Homeless - - - -
Nutrition and Health - - - -
Special Projects - - - -
Volunteer Services - - - -
SNHS Management Corporation - - - -
Housing Corporations 251,768 271,645 225,198 189,991
Total program services 251,768 271,645 225,198 189,991
Support services:
Management and general - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 251,768 271,645 225,198 189,991
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (31,343) (63,867) (70,140) 127,730
NET ASSETS - AUGUST 1 (352,530) (77,286) (42,883) (4,770)
NET ASSETS - JULY 31 $ (383,873) § (141,153) § (113,023) § 122,960

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Schedule B (Continued)
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

242 245 250 252

SNHS Elderly
SNHS Elderly SNHS Elderly Housing X -
Housing IX Housing X Construction

REVENUES
Grant/contract support $ - 3 - 3 - ¥ -
Program service fees - - - -
Local funding - - - -
Rental income - 134,452 80,141 -
Gifts and contributions - - - -
Special events and activities - - - -
Memberships - - - -
Interest Income 30 31 32 2
Unrealized gain on investments - - - -
In-kind - - - -
Miscellaneous 105 181,303 170,424 -

TOTAL REVENUES 135 315,786 250,597 2

EXPENSES
Program services:
Child Development - - - -
Community Services - - - _
Economic and Workforce Dev. - - - .
Energy - - - -
Hispanic-Latino Com. Services - - - -
Housing and Homeless - - - -
Nutrition and Health - - - -
Special Projects - - - -
Volunteer Services - - - -
SNHS Management Corporation - - - -
Housing Corporations 135 146,717 104,933 2
Total program services 135 146,717 104,933 2
Support services:
Management and general - - - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 135 146,717 104,933 2

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS - 169,069 145,664 -

NET ASSETS - AUGUST 1 - (4,064) (25) -

NET ASSETS - JULY 31 3 - 3 165,005 § 145,639 § -

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Schedule B (Continued)
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

255
SNHS Elderly
Housing XI Sub-Total Elimination Totals

REVENUES

Grant/contract support 3 - $ 35821702 $ - $ 35,821,702

Program service fees - 1,115,501 (457,224) 658,277

Local funding - 380,790 - 380,790

Rental income 5,652 6,979,990 - 6,979,990

Gifts and contributions - 387,790 - 387,790

Special events and activities - - - -

Memberships - - - -

Interest Income 12 65,515 - 65,515

Unrealized gain on investments - 506,268 - 506,268

In-kind - 1,477,987 (1,477,987) -

Miscellaneous 252 2,142,561 - 2,142,561
TOTAL REVENUES 5,916 48,878,104 (1,935,211) 46,942,893
EXPENSES

Program services:

Child Development - 8,151,065 (1,477,987) 6,673,078

Community Services - 1,244,487 - 1,244,487

Economic and Workforce Dev. - 7,883,459 - 7,883,459

Energy - 13,577,165 - 13,577,165

Hispanic-Latino Com. Services - 657,522 - 657,522

Housing and Homeless - 234,137 - 234,137

Nutrition and Health - 2,245,555 - 2,245,555

Special Projects - 1,745,817 - 1,745.817

Volunteer Services - 142,073 - 142,073

SNHS Management Corporation - 2,181,224 - 2,181,224

Housing Corporations 11,479 7,881,455 (457,224) 7,424,231

Total program services 11,479 45,943,959 (1,935,211) 44,008,748
Support services:

Management and general - 1,550,463 - 1,550,463
TOTAL EXPENSES 11,479 47,494,422 (1,935,211) 45,559,211
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (5,563) 1,383,682 - 1,383,682
NET ASSETS - AUGUST 1 (44) 3,327,377 - 3,327,377
NET ASSETS - JULY 31 $ (5,607) $ 4,711,059 § - § 4,711,059

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, PA.

\CERTTFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Keith H. Allen, CPA, MST. Gary A. Wigant, C.PA.

Mark R. Carrier, C.PA, CVA. C. Joseph Wolverton, C.P.A, CVA.
George A. Roberge, C.PA.

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S COMPILATION REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have compiled the accompanying schedules of revenues and expenses — by contract of Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. as of July 31, 2013. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying
schedules of revenues and expenses — by contract and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance about whether the schedules of revenues and expenses — by contract are in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the schedules of revenues and
expenses — by contract in accordance with aceounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America and for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the schedules of revenues and expenses — by contract.

Our responsibility is to conduct the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
objective of a compilation is to assist management in presenting financial information in the form of
schedules of revenues and expenses — by contract without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance
that there are no material modifications that should be made to the schedules of revenues and expenses —

by contract.
Ouellette &I Associates, P A
Certified Public Accountants
April 30,2014
Lewiston, Maine

1111 Lisbon Street » Lewiston, Maine 04240 o Telephone: (207) 786-0328 » FAX: (207) 783-9377 » www.oacpas.net



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

State of NH Governor's Office of Energy & Community Services
Headstart Program

For the Period

August 1, 2012 to July 31, 2013

Fund # 305

REVENUES
Program funding
Other revenue
In-kind
Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue
Total revenue

EXPENSES
Payroll
Payroll taxes
Fringe benefits
Workers comp. insurance
Retirement benefits
Consultant and coatractual
Travel and transportation
Conference and meetings
Occupancy
Advertising
Supplies
Equip. rentals and maintenance
Insurance
Telephone
Postage
Printing and publications
Subscriptions
Interest
Depreciation
Assistance to clients
Other direct expense
Miscellaneous
In-kind
Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

See independent accountant's compilation report.
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$

4,318,481
15,195
1,208,138
16,903

5,558,717

2,353,404
249,913
633,247

17,708
109,467
24,935
47,245
494
262,272
1,458
131,595
5,987
10,691
34,206
1,898
6,710
35
7,650
12,535
53,077
17,006
1,208,138
369,046

5,558,717



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

State of NH Governor's Office of Energy & Community Services
LIHEAP Program

For the Period

October 1, 2012 to July 31, 2013

Fund # 630-13

REVENUES
Program funding $ 10,495,875
Other revenue 569
In-kind -
Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue -

Total revenue 10,496,444

EXPENSES
Payroll 439,100
Payroll taxes 47,818
Fringe benefits 98,175
Workers comp. insurance 923
Retirement benefits 18,686
Consultant and contractual 19,097
Trave] and transportation 5,107
Conference and meetings 719
Occupancy 39,211
Advertising -
Supplies 15,817
Equip. rentals and maintenance (7,793)
Insurance 791
Telephone 15,587
Postage 19,029
Printing and publications -
Subscriptions 27
Interest -
Depreciation 8,678
Assistance to clients 9,779,632
Other direct expense 388
Miscellaneous 316
In-kind -
Administrative costs (4,874)

Total expensces 10,496,434
Excess of expenses over revenue 10

See independent accountant's compilation report.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2013

State of NH Govemor’s Office of Energy & Community Services
LIHEAP Program

For the Period

August 1, 2012 to September 30, 2012

Fund # 630-12

REVENUES
Program funding
Other revenue
In-kind
Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue
Total revenue

EXPENSES
Payroll
Payroll taxes
Fringe benefits
Workers comp. insurance
Retirement benefits
Consultant and contractual
Travel and transportation
Conference and meetings
Occupancy
Advertising
Supplies
Equip. rentals and maintenance
Insurance
Telephone
Postage
Printing and publications
Subscriptions
Interest
Depreciation
Assistance to clients
Other direct expense
Miscellaneous
In-kind
Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

See independent accountant's compilation report.
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352,180
3

352,183

120,301
10,786
23,194

253
4,370
6,354
3,877

595
6,740

23,461
10,820
10,302
2,662
1,258

17

125
127,068
352,183



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2013

State of NH Governor’s Office of Energy & Community Services

Early Headstart Program

For the Period

August 1, 2012 to July 31, 2013
Fund # 300

REVENUES
Program funding
Other revenue
In-kind
Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue
Total revenue

EXPENSES
Payroll
Payroll taxes
Fringe benefits
Workers comp. insurance
Retirement benefits
Consultant and contractual
Travel and transportation
Conference and meetings
Occupancy
Advertising
Supplies
Equip. rentals and maintenance
Insurance
Telephone
Postage
Printing and publications
Subscriptions
Interest
Depreciation
Assistance to clients
Other direct expense
Miscellaneous
In-kind
Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

See independent accountant's compilation report.

43

$ 1,284,262
4,430

269,849
41,386

1,599,927

697,797
68,699
142,545
5219
44,602
3,573
8,405
102
103,555
333
32,780
2,842
1,486
15,585
138

844
15,521
42,825
31,255
4351
269,849
107,621

1,599,027



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2013

Electric Energy Assistance

For the Period
August 1, 2012 to July 31, 2013
Fund # 665

REVENUES
Program funding
Other revenue
In-kind
Allocated corporate unrestricied revenue
Total revenue

EXPENSES
Payroll
Payroll taxes
Fringe benefits
Workers comp. insurance
Retirement benefits
Consultant and contractual
Travel and transportation
Conference and meetings
Occupancy
Advertising
Supplies
Equip. rentals and maintenance
Insurance
Telephone
Postage
Printing and publications
Subscriptions
Interest
Depreciation
Assistance to clients
Other direct expense
Miscellaneous
In-kind
Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

See independent accountant's compilation report.
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117,143
582,023

3

699,169

387,669
41,380
79,138

813
13,898
14,982

4,807

228

45,763
78
20,372
3,027

380
14,578
13,088

27

323

243
58,375
699,169
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GALE F. HENNESSY

EXPERIENCE

January 1976 - Present
CEO & Executive Director - Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
Community Action Agency for Hillsborough County, NH
Responsible for overall Agency administration, including fiscal, program
development and implementation, evaluation, grants development, public relations
coordination, liaison with community groups, public and private agencies as well as
interaction with advisory committees and the Board of Directors.

State, Regional and National Activities.
President — NH Community Action Association — 1981 - Present

Representative of the State of New Hampshire on the Executive Committee of the
New England Community Action Association — 1976 - Present

Representative of the New England Community Action Association to the Board of
Directors of the National Community Action Partnership -- 1978 - Present

Chairman of the New England Community Action Association Conference
Committee — 1975 - 1988

Member - Board of Directors, CAPLAW -- 1994 - Present

January 1968 - 1976
Deputy Director - Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
Responsible for overall Agency administration, including fiscal, program
development and implementation, evaluation, grants development, public relations
coordination, liaison with community groups, public and private agencies as well as
interaction with advisory committees and the Board of Directors.

March 1967 - 1968
Operation HELP Director
Responsible for operating the largest self-help, information referral and direct service
program funded by OEO in Hillsborough County, Operation HELP including staff
direction, program implementation and development, grants development, and
coordination of Board of Directors as well as evaluation of the needs of the poor of
Hillsborough County.



Gale F. Hennessy

Page 2

1967

1964 - 1965

1962 -1966

1961-1962

Acting Director Operation HELP

Responsible for implementation of the first OEO funded local initiative program in
Hillsborough County, Operation HELP. Participated in the concept, design and
implementation of this first anti-poverty activity. Established the first outreach
office in Milford, followed by a second office in Nashua. Participated in the
recruitment, selection and training of the original Operation HELP staff. Supervised
the staff in contacting of local officials, OEO outreach activities as well as
establishing mini-offices in the twenty-nine towns of Hillsborough County.

Assistant Principal, Wilton High School

Responsible for the administration of a medium size New Hampshire high school
including scheduling, curriculum development, audio-visual program development,
and overall educational administration.

Chairman, Social Studies Department, Wilton High School

Responsible for the overall supervision of the Social Studies Department including
curriculum design and implementation of modern educational techniques, staff
coordination and evaluation of the entire social studies department.

Teacher-Coach, Wilton High School

Responsible for developing social studies curriculum grades 8 - 12 as well as
implementation of modern educational techniques. Served as coach for baseball and
basketball teams as well as coordination and scheduling of those and other athletic
events.

Teacher and Assistant Principal, Cornish School

Responsible for school administration, recreation and athletic programs, discipline
throughout the educational complex, class scheduling and supervision of staff
members. Worked with staff and local school board on updating curriculum,
evaluation and assessing current staff.

EDUCATION

Graduated Peterborough, NH High School 1956

BA Degree in Government, University of New Hampshire 1961

Graduate Work: University of New Hampshire and Keene State College
Certified Community Action Professional — Community Action Partnership 1993

AFFILIATIONS

New England Community Action Association - Member, Board of Directors
Community Action Partnership — Member, Board of Directors

New Hampshire Community Action Association - President

CAPLAW, Inc. - Member, Board of Directors



EXPERIENCE

1976 - Present

1973 - 1976

1973 - 1974

1969 - 1973

EDUCATION

1972 - 1974

1970 - 1972

MICHAEL O’SHEA

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Community Action Agency for Hillsborough County, N H
Fiscal Officer / Deputy Director

Responsible for overseeing all organization fiscal operations,
including general ledgers, budget preparation, purchasing,
insuring fiscal accountability, monitoring cash management
systems, contracting independent annual audits, and
insuring acceptable accounting standards and procedures.
Responsible for maintaining fiscal and accounting practices
in accordance with funding source requirements and policies
of the SNHS Board of Directors.

Accountant

Assistant to comptroller in all agency accounting functions.
Programs included: CETA - Department of Labor; Elderly
Nutrition - State Council on Aging; Head Start - Dept. of
Health, Education and Welfare; Administration, Office of
Economic Opportunity; and various other Federal and State
grants.

Major responsibilities included reporting to management as
well as the various Government agencies on all fiscal affairs.
Duties included monthly financial reports, budgets, general
ledger, accounts payable, receivable, and payroll.

Social Worker

Helped with running of food co-op. Distributed surplus
foods. Certified needy people for fuel loans. Placed high
scholars in jobs through Rent-A-Kid.

Jordan Marsh, Portland, Maine
Shuttle driver responsible for passengers and mail from
Portland to Boston and return. Stock boy.

New Hampshire College, Manchester, NH
B.S. Accounting. Major courses in Accounting and Math.

Andover Institute of Business, Portland, Maine
A. S. Accounting. Major courses in Accounting and Math.



DEBORAH A GOSSELIN

EXPERIENCE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.,
(1979 - Present)
Manchester, NH

Chief Operating Officer (1997 — Present)

e Coordinate the operations of more than two dozen current programs and implement new programs, all
providing services for economically disadvantaged population

e The diverse component programs which require an integrating factor for effective management, targeting
of resources and fiscal responsibility to the agency, to each other and to the general community

* Work with developmental staff to start-up, integrate with other component program through initial
orientation of new Program Directors
Facilitate meetings
Develop partnerships with community agencies who can lend support

e Serve as resource person for development and implementation of management skilis, techniques and
trainings.

Head Start/Child Development Director (1994 — 1997)
¢ Administered federally funded Head Start Program
¢ Duties included Grant writing, program planning implementation, evaluation responsible for development
and coordination of the major components of the Head Start program; education, health, mental health,
social services, parent involvement, nutrition, disabilities and transportation.

Family Services Director (1982 — 1994)

o Administered several federally funded energy programs

¢ Duties included program planning, implementation, evaluation

+ Designed programs with private sector which included: Neighbor Helping Neighbor, Residential Low
Income Conservation and Residential Space Heating Programs
Developed strong relationships with community organizations and funding sources
Served as the state chairperson of New Hampshire's Fuel Assistance Directors Association
Acted as liaison between Community Action Agencies and the Governor's Office of Energy and Planning
Also provided supervision and training to program coordinator, oversaw the budget, approved final
selection of staff for Accompanied Transportation and Parent Aide Programs.

Field Coordinator (1980 — 1983)
o Assisted the Director of the Fuel Assistance Program
o Trained, supervised and evaluated staff
¢ Implemented program outreach activities
¢ Wrote public service announcements and press releases.

Community Liaison (1979 - 1983)
o Established sociai service network through Hillsborough County
¢ Informed the general public about agency services and program criteria
o Started Citizen's Advisory Council.

Head Start Lead Teacher/Family Coordinator
(1977 — 1979)
Nashua and Manchester, NH
* Responsible for classroom management of pre-school children and daily planning geared towards
individual needs
e Conducted parenting skills workshops and home visits
¢ Developed a Parent Advisory Council and coordinator of the Curriculum Committee.



EDUCATION & TRAINING

Bachelor of Science, Early Childhood Education — Cum Laude
University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH

Southern New Hampshire University Graduate School of Business
Non-Profit Management for Community Development Organizations

Head Start Program In-Service Training
Rivier College, Nashua, NH
Perspectives of Parenting and Multi-culturism

NH Office of Alcohol and Drug Prevention
Life Balance and Stress Solutions
National Business Women's Leadership Association
National Seminars Group, Rockhurst College

UNH Continuing Education, Nashua, NH
Whole Language in the Early Years (K-3)

Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH
Diagnostic and Remedial Reading

NH Office of Alcohol and Drug Prevention
Parenting Conference

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT / RECOGNITIONS

CCAP, Certified Community Action Professional

Governor’'s Task Force to Study Temporary Assistance to Needy (TANF) HB1461

Served as Sub-committee — Transportation, Chairperson

NH Works Operator Consortium Committee, Member

New Hampshire Employment Program, Oversight Team Member
Seniors Count Coordinating Committee, Member

Greater Manchester Association of Social Agencies (GMASA), Executive Committee Member

James B. Sullivan Services Leadership Award

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PAST

Seniors Count Home Maintenance Committee
Manchester Community Resource Center, Board of Directors
Kiwanis International



Frank Boudreau

HIGHLIGHTS OF QUALIFICATIONS

Over 30 years experience developing & managing workforce development programs.
Proven management & supervisory skills resulting in solid record of achievement.
Strong analytical skills with particular attention to detail and follow-up.

Skillful problem-solver able to offer solutions and options to new challenges.
Effective team member who can forge productive working relationships.

AN NN N

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

1999 - Present Southern NH Services, Inc., Manchester, NH

NH Employment Program Administrator (10 years) managing statewide programs &
contracts related to the NH Employment Program, a NH Division of Family Assistance
program that provides employment & training activities and post-employment services
to public assistance recipients. Statewide Workforce Development Program
Administrator responsible for Welfare-to-Work, NH Employment Program, and
Workforce Investment Act Programs for the NH Community Action Agencies (4 years).

1984-1999 New Hampshire Job Training Council, Concord, NH

Statewide Director of Adult Training & Services (6 months); Director of Planning &
Quality Assurance (3.5 years); Associate Director of Program Development (5 years);
Quality Assurance Manager (3 years); Program Designer (3 years).

1977-1984 Southern NH Services, Inc., Manchester, NH

Director of Employment & Training Operations (5 Years) covering Hillsborough County
NH; Program Monitoring Supervisor (2 years).

1974-1977 Hillsborough Human Development Administration, Bedford, NH

Information System Supervisor (2 years); Program Planner/Grant Developer (1 year).

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

PROGRAM PLANNING

¢ Researched and analyzed demographic, economic, and labor market data to construct the foundation
for annual employment and training plans required by the US Department of Labor.

¢ Worked closely with State Agencies and community-based organizations in the preparation and
writing of the annual employment and training plans and joint grant applications for Federal & State
funding.

¢ Collaborated with senior management and staff to allocate $7 - $10 Million in Federal funds
annually to the most effective mix of training and services resulting in achievement of annual
performance goals.

¢ Presented program plans and policy options to the Board of Directors for their consideration and
action.

¢ Negotiated directly with the US Department of Labor, Workforce Opportunity Council, and NH

Department of Health & Human Services regarding changes to program plans and contracts.



Frank Boudreau . SNy P

TRAINING DEVELOPMENT

¢ Identified job growth opportunities for low-income families, dislocated workers, and public
assistance recipients through economic research, labor market analysis, and direct work with area
businesses to identify skill shortages and assess their employment and skill training requirements.

¢ Organized numerous business and industry consortia and coordinated delivery of 100+ skill
training projects (e.g., PC Board Assembly, Welding & Fabrication, Precision Equipment
Manufacturing, and Customer Service) averaging 90% Completion and resulting in hundreds of
newly skilled workers for participating companies.

¢ Negotiated several million dollars worth of group skill training contracts with high-quality training
providers throughout New Hampshire for unemployed and/or unskilled workers.

OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT

¢ Managed complex staffing and service contracts with NH Department of Health & Human Services
valued at more than $2,500,00 annually.

¢ Administered a workforce contract management system encompassing several hundred training
contracts serving 1,000 trainees annually with a budget of $2,000,000 - $3,000,000 — without any
fiscal or audit exceptions.

¢ Developed a fair, competitive process to secure cost-reasonable training; analyzed proposal budgets
and content; and awarded contracts to 100+ training providers yearly.

¢ Hired and directed the work activities of more than 40 professional, technical, and management
staff.

¢ Consistently met or exceeded yearly-Federal and State performance standards and measures.

¢ Worked with Executive Director and the Board of Directors on workforce policy issues affecting
hard-to-employ individuals and presented training projects to the Board for funding.

PROGRAM QUALITY & EVALUATION

¢ Established Program Quality Assurance systems and procedures to provide reliable information
about contractor training performance and to monitor program operations.

¢ Developed and maintained organization-wide performance standards against which program success
was measured.

¢ Contracted and collaborated with an independent research firm to collect post-program participant
follow-up data to evaluate the long-term impact of training and customer satisfaction.

¢ Analyzed and interpreted management reports and data; formulated recommendations for policy and
program improvement.

EDUCATION

Master of Public Administration, University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Bachelor of Arts, Government, Saint Anselm College, Manchester, NH

OTHER PROFESSIONAL TRAINING

Achieving Extraordinary Customer Service (Kaset International,1995); Conducting a Training
Analysis (University of No.Texas, 1995); Program Design & Evaluation for Adult Learning
(Manchester CLL, 1994); Negotiation Skills (University of New Hampshire, 1993); Systematic
Curriculum & Instructional Development Workshop (Ohio State University,1993); Total Quality
Management & the Continuous Improvement Process (Lockheed/Sanders, 1992); Harvard Summer
Institute for Employment & Training (July ,1976). Computer literate in Excel and MS-Word; credit
courses completed in Computer Information Systems, Data Base Management Concepts, MultiMedia
Applications, C Programming, Computer Networking Novell 3.x . Certified Workforce Development
Professional, National Association of Workforce Development Professionals.



Matthew Russell

Experience:

Southern New Hampshire Services
Regional Program Manager — Workplace Success February 2015 — Present

(@]

O
O
O
O

Oversee the day-to-day operations of 5 offices and 17 staff members located throughout NH.
Collaborate with regional CAP and DHHS stakeholders to ensure smooth program delivery.
Ensure contract goals and objectives are met and accurately reported.

Monitor reports and other data groups to identify area in need of improvement or updating.
Provide staff with new hire and incumbent trainings to maximize the program’s effectiveness.

Field Support Manager - New Hampshire Employment Program April 2013 — February 2015

(@]

o O O

Provided statewide supervision for 16 contracted Employment Counselors working in the NHEP.
Routinely conducted detailed analysis to measure the performance of individuals and teams.
Ensured staff was provided with adequate training and support to meet all performance goals.
Worked closely with DFA’s Assessment and Intervention Unit and the Business and Industry Unit.

Workplace Success Program — Program Coordinator February 2011 — April 2013

O
O

O
O

Managed the daily operations of up to 60 TANF recipients in a work-simulated environment.
Facilitated daily work skills training lessons on topics designed to increase participants’
employability in the evolving and increasingly competitive job market.

Conducted vocational assessments to assist in career planning process.

Assisted with curriculum development as part of Continuous Improvement Committee.

Work Opportunities Unlimited March 2008 — February 2011
Career Resource Specialist

O
O
O

Managed all aspects of the Vocational Rehabilitation programs for Manchester and Salem.
Responsible for training new staff, report writing and billing preparation.

Delivered high quality service and established strong professional relationships, which lead to
significant growth in both School and VR programs.

Developed Person Center Plans, Individual Education Plans, Job Analysis, Retention Plans
Vocational Assessments and Employment Preparation Screenings.

Worked with a diverse population of individuals with various disabilities such as: Learning
Disabilities, Emotional Disabilities, ADHD, Autism Spectrum Disorders, and Mental
Retardation, etc.

Lock Wood Technology July 2002 — Aug. 2005
Inventory Controller

o Team leader and onsite point of contact for many substantial contracts including: Google, Avaya,
British Telecom, etc.
o Executed contracts nationwide and abroad in the following European countries: Belgium,
Germany, Netherlands, Switzerland, Austria, Italy and Luxemburg.
Education:

University of Massachusetts, Boston
BA Sociology



Caroline Martin

Profile

Skills

New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) Operations Manager with a proven record of providing
creative and sensible solutions to improve NHEP operations.

Leadership focused

Familiar with writing rules and policy

Experience in researching laws on Federal and State levels
Great communication skills

Effective problem solving skills

Strong written and verbal communication skills

Skilled in creating and analyzing reports

e Knowledgeable in studying client outcomes

Career Accomplishments

¢ Designed and supervised research project to analyze the effectiveness of a current contract
e  Supervised the technical support for an online assessment tool
e  Worked with management to design new communication methods for clients

Professional Development Accomplishments

¢ Completed the DHHS’s Supervisor Certificate Program through NH DHHS Human Resources
Organization Development and Training Services (ODTS), 2014
e Completed New Supervisor Training through NH DHHS ODTS, 2013

Education

Granite State College - Concord, NH
Master of Science: Leadership, 2014-Present

Granite State College
Bachelor's Degree in Human Service Administration, 2012-2013, 4.0 GPA
. Summa Cum Laude
. Awarded the Alumni Learner Association Scholarship, 2013
. Awarded the Osher Reentry Scholarship based on essay entry, 2012-2013

Professional Experience

NHEP Operations Manager 2015-Present
Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
e Supervise the Operations Support and Contract Reports Unit for the Bureaus of Welfare to Work
¢ Supervise OJT Developers
e  Monitor the consistency in the application of Work Experience Program (WEP) and On-the-Job
Training (OJT) policy and procedures, achievement of quantitative goals, and the quality of services
regarding program staff
¢ Oversee of the pre-screening process for all OJT referrals as well as reviewing all OJT contracts prior
to submittal to NHES
s Attend local NHEP Team Partner meetings, networking events, DFA training sessions, NHEP
statewide team meetings, SNHS training sessions or other events as assigned

BWW Operations Supervisor 11 2014-2015
Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
s Supervise the Operations Support and Contract Reports Unit for the Bureaus of Welfare to Work
¢ Attend regular meetings with management to decide best case practice for the field
¢  Supervise special project
¢  Spear-head all changes to the Field Workers Guide



BWW Operations Supervisor 2013-2014
Southern New Hampshire Services - Manchester, NH

e Supervised the Operations Support and Contract Reports Unit
o  Tracked and analyzed reports related to program outcomes
e Provided feedback focused on program outcomes to Bureau of Welfare to Work Bureau Chief

BWW Operations Specialist 2013-2013
Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
e Tracked and analyzed reports related to program outcomes
e Provided feedback focused on program outcomes to Bureau of Welfare to Work Bureau Chief
e Met with TANF administrators to discuss ideas to improve tracking of program outcomes
e Continued other duties from BWW Assistant position

BWW Operations Assistant 2011-2013
Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
e Design and maintain various databases using Microsoft Access
e Collaborate with the Welfare to Work Bureau Chief and Field Support Managers to maintain and
revise the Field Workers Guide for Employment Counselor Specialists

e Communicate changes in the Field Workers Guide to Field Support Managers, Employment Counselor

Specialists, the training unit, and Division of Family Assistance employees
e Compose On The Job-Training Contracts reports for the Business and Industry Coordinator

Process all incoming On The Job Training Contracts which includes sending a letter and original copy

to the employer, creating electronic and paper files for each contract, and distributing copies of the
contract to the Business and Industry Coordinator, Field Support Managers, and Employment
Counselor Specialists
Ensure OJT invoices are being received in a timely manner and send reminder letters to employees
Liaison for employers with questions on filling out OJT Invoices

e Compose reports to highlight strengths and weaknesses regarding results of monitoring Employment
Counselor Specialists and CSP surveys utilizing the information entered in the Access databases
Provide Technical Support regarding Microsoft Office to fellow staff as needed

e  Create various documents for the Welfare to Work program such as calendars and certificates for the
Employment Counselor Specialists



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Gale F. Hennessy Executive Director $191,009 0.00% $0.00

Michael O’Shea Fiscal Officer $140,595 0.00% $0.00

Deborah Gosselin Chief Operating Officer $113,404 0.00% $0.00

Frank Boudreau NHEP Administrator $ 77,477 100.00% $77,477

Matthew Russell CSP Regional Manager $ 51,924 100.00% $51,924

Caroline Martin NHEP Operations Manager § 46,858 100.00% $46,858




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIR;-J ‘
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9330 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9330
FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Terry R. Smith

G
. &, YO
_ Director . @

April 15, {9)} S\ / 400/‘0

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Family Assistance to enter into a
contract with Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc., 40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03301 (Vendor
#177198), to provide staffing, employment and training services as required by the New Hampshire Employment
Program, in an amount not to exceed $9,304,228.96, effective July 1, 2013, or date of Governor and Council
approval, which ever is later, through June 30, 2015.

_ Funds to support this request are anticipated to be.available in the following account in State Fiscal Years
2014 and 2015 upon the avallablllty'and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with
the authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and amend the related terms of the contract without
further approval from the Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-45-450010-61270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVSC, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, EMPLOYMENT

, SUPPORT
State Fiscal Year | Class/Account . Class Title : . Current Modified Budget
2014 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $4,567,197.26
2015 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $4,737,031.70
Total ' : - $9,304,228.96
EXPLANATION

This contract will allow the Division of Family Assistance to provide staffing, employment and training
services as required by the New Hampshire Employment Program. These services shall be provided by the
contractor’s staff to New Hampshire residents who receive funds through the Federal Temporary Assistance to
Needy Families Program, as defined in 45 CFR 261 — Ensuring That Recipients Work. The goal is to move
_ residents receiving program funds towards self-sufficiency through the dignity of unsubsidized employment.

Program participants may also have no or limited English proficiency, thereby requiring additional. culturally and
linguistically appropriate support/service to ensure access to all aspects of the New Hampshire Employment
Program.

Should Governor and Council not approve this award, the Division of Family Assistance faces a federal
penalty of between $2 million dollars and $4 million dollars for any year in which it does not meet federal



Her Excellency, Governor Marg = . Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

April 15,2013
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welfare to work participation outcomes as defined in Federal Regulation 45 CFR 261.50. This penalty can
escalate if the Division of Family Assistance fails to meet outcomes in consecutive years.

The Vendors for the -Staffing Services and Combined Services Programs were selected through
competitive bid process. The Request for Proposal #13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03 was issued September 19, 2012
and #13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05 was ‘issued on October 3, 2012. These Request for Proposals were posted on the
. Department of Health and Human Services website and bidders conferences were held. Two experienced
“evaluation teax;ns each consisting of three (3) Department of Health and Human Services employees with
- knowledge of the program requirements; knowledge of business and financial management; and an understanding
of the _State Revised Statutes Annotated, Administrative Rules and the Division of Family Assistance policy

qvernmg the operation of the New Hampshire Employment Program evaluated these proposals. Southern New
Hampshire Services was the highest scoring vendor for both the Staffing Services and the Combined Semces
Programs. The attached bid summary identifies the evaluators and their scoring of the proposal.

The contract performance requirements will be reviewed quarterly and will be based on the following
benchmarks

e The Division of Family Assistance shall designate the performance evaluation criteria, specific
performance goals and outcome measures pursuant to RSA 167:77, New Hampshire Employment
Program and Family Assistance Program and RSA 167:77-c, V, Outcome Measurement System.

+ - New Hampshire Employment Teams and individual members of the teams must meet no less than a

50% (ﬁﬁy percent) “All Families” participation rate pursuant to RSA 167:77-a, Work Participation
Rates, and 45 CFR 261.22, Work Activities.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 75% Federal Funds, 25% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program. :

Approved by: X' ).,
Nicholas A. To
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families in providing opportunities for
citizens to achieve health and independence. .



Bid Summary RFP # 13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03

Evaluation Phase Weight/Maximum Points Southern New Hampshire
: Services, Inc.

I. Evaluation of Minimum Pass/Fail Pass

Requirements

l. Corportation/Agency 30% - 300 points 286

Organization and Project Staff

L. Scope of Work 50% - 500 points 428.7

IV. Cost Proposal 30% - 300 points 168.3

Total Score 100% - 1,000 points 883

RFP #13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03 Evaluation Team

1. Karin Drewniak — Policy Writer, Division of Family Assistance, Program Operations,

~ Policy Unit.
2.
3.
Human Services,

Office of Finance.

Karyl Provost — Administrator Il, Division of Family Assistance, Support Services Unit.
Debra Bourbeau — Manager of the Data Management Unit, Division of Health and

' Bid Summary RFP # 13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05

“Arbor E&T, LLC

Evaluation Phase Weight/Maximum Points | Southem New
Hampshire Services, dba ResCare
Inc. Workforce Services
I. Evaluation of Minimum | Pass/Fail Pass Pass
Requirements »
ll. Corportation/Agency 30% - 300 points 300 279.2
Organization and Project
Staff .
Ill. Scope of Work 50% - 500 points 481.7 430.3
IV. Cost Proposal - 20% - 200 points 185 173.3
Total Score 100% - 1,000 points 966.7 882.8

RFP #13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05 Evaluation Team

1. Connie Manus — Busmess Administrator [, Department of Health and Human Serv:ces

Office of Finance.

Operations Unit.

Bid Summary
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Kerry Nelson — Administrator, Division of Family Assistance, Support Services Unit.
Lindsay Bubeau — Program Specialist Il, Division of Family Assistance, Program

4/23/2013




Bid Summary RFP # 13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03

In accordance with NH RSA 21-1:22-a and NH RSA 21-1:22-b, Requesté for
Proposals Section 3, Evaluation of the Proposals, details the followrng phases for
evaluation to be considered for this proposal.

Evaluation Phase

Weight/Maximum Points

Southem New Hampshire
Services, Inc.

I. Evaluation of Minimum Pass/Fail Pass
Requirements

Il. Corportation/Agency 20% - 200 points 879
Organization and Project

Staff

l1l. Scope of Work 50% - 500 points 890

1V. Cost Proposal 30% - 300 points 880

Total Score 100% - 1,000 points 2649/3 = 883

RFP #13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03 Evalnation Team

1. Karln Drewniak — Policy Writer, Division of Family Assistance, Program
Operations, Policy Unit.
2. Karyl Provost — Administrator Il, Division of Family Assistance, Support Services

Unit.

-3. Debra Bourbeau — Manager of the Data Management Unit, DIVISIOﬂ of Health
and Human Services, Office of Finance.

Bid Summary RFP # 13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05

In accordance with NH RSA 21-1:22-a and NH RSA 21-1:222-b, Requests for |
Proposals Section 3, Evaluation of the Proposals, details the following phases for
evaluation to be considered for this proposal.

Evaluation Phase

Weight/Maximum Points

Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc.

o

l. Evaluation of Minimum Pass/Fail Pass
Requirements
lI. Corportation/Agency 20% - 200 points 983
Organization and Project
| Staff
I1l. Scope of Work 50% - 500 points 961
IV. Cost Proposal 30% - 300 points - 956
Total Score 100% - 1,000 points 2900/3 = 966.66

Bid Summary

Page 10f 2

4/23/2013




Evaluation Phase

Weight/Maximum Points

Arbor E&T, LL.C dba

ResCare Workforce
Services

I. Evaluation of Minimum Pass/Fail Pass

Requirements ' - - - e e

Il. Corportation/Agency 20% - 200 paints 853

Organization and Project '

Staff

)ll. Scope of Work 50% - 500 points 850.5

IV. Cost Proposal '30% - 300 points. 945

Total Score 100% - 1,000 points 2648.5/3 = 882.83

REP #13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05 Evaluation Team

1. Connie Manus — Business Admlnlstrator i, Department of Health and Human
Services, Office of Finance.

~ 2. Kerry Nelson — Administrator, Division of Family As&stance Support Services

Unit.

3. Lindsay Bubeau ~ Program Specialist i, Division of Famnly-Assustance, Program

Operations Unit.

Bid Summary
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Combined Services Program and New Hampshire Employment Program Staffing
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
"1. IDENTIFICATION. ‘ '
1.1  State Agency Name _ 1.2  State Agency Address -
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Division of Family Assistance Concord, NH 03301
1.3 Contractor Name ' 1.4 Contractor Address
Southern New Hampshire Serivces, Inc . 40 Pine Street
Manchester, NH 03103
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 118 Price Limitation
Number . A
603-668-8010 _ 102-500731 June 30, 2015 . $9,304,228.96
19 Contractmg Ofﬁcer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Mary F. MJller ' , 603-271-9330 '
1.11 Contracto Slgnature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Gale Hennessy, Executive Director

cknowledgement Wf NH | County of_Hillsborough

2/13,

on_/\ , before the undersigned officer, personally appwed the person 1dent1ﬁed in block 1.120r satxs(qqtq 'roven to be the
in block

person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in thg.é&g
1.12. S
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace X

ELona P Gibaor, WW | B
[Seal] . 2
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace ",'

Diane P. Erikson, Admini?&ive Assistant
1.14 St € tur . : 1.15 Name and.Title of State Agency Signatory

t

Terry R. Smith, Director

116 A p\m'v‘&l'by/the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:
1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)
!
o RN
By: : on:. Zo . 2003
d ASeanmne P HE—rm ., ;dﬂmne,.,) n AW

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is mcorporated herem by reference
(“Services”). - I

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completlon Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall.the State be liable for any '
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of -
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block. 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ -
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, ‘or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the ;
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL. o

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwxse authonzed in writing, durmg the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a_combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials:
Date:




8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”): ‘
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
rvices, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor, Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole experise, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: G J
Date: _ ¢



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the pérson proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement. )

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective -
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in

- the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of

this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of -
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: &Qﬁ :

Date: 7



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit A

Scope of Services
Combined Staffing and Combined Services Programs Scope of Service

#13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03

1. General Terms and Conditions of Services
A. All Contractor employees operating under the provisions of this contract shall in addition to their
own reporting requirements, report to the individual designated by the Commissioner of the

Department of Health and Human Services who shall have authority for the Bureau of Welfare to

Work (BWW).

The individual identified by the Commissioner of the Department of Health and Human

Services shall also be directly responsible for the operations of the New.Hampshire

Employment Program and shall have oversight of this contract and the performance

measurements contained herein.

. In accordance with RFP#13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03 issued September 5, 2012, this contract
may be extended for two (2) 2-year periods without further competitive bidding.

1. Extension of this contract is contingent upon the satisfactory performance by the SNHS
of all services required.

2. Extension of this contract is further contingent upon approval by the New Hampshire
Govemor and Executive Council,

lil.  Under this New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) Staffing contract, the SNHS,
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS), will provide services to participants in the NHEP
who are receiving Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF). The-contractor will:
1.  Provide management, direct-service, and administrative staff to serve under the New

Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP); :

2. Provide supervision of contract services and admlnlstratlve staff to operate and support
all aspects of central office and field office service delivery;

3. Provide all NHEP team members and administrative staff with a cohesive link for
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) clients to other needed services by
establishing relationships with other public, private-and oommunity agencies and
organizations that provide a variety of resources and services to low income individuals
and families;

4. All of the contractor staff will provide services to partlcxpants according to the State of
New Hampshire calendar of business.days. Hours of operation will be 8:00 AM to 4:30
PM, Monday through Friday. Only with the expressed permission of DFA Management,
may any of the offices be closed early, and/or the hours of operation changed.

5. Inherent in meeting the requirements of this contractis-the ability of the contractor to
bring to NHEP the expertise, experience and knowledge to established statewide
community relationships that will enhance and increase the NHEP ability to move low-
income individuals to financial independence through employment.

6. The Division of Family Assistance (DFA) is the single State agency that administers
NHEP and retains final authority on all policy matters and NHEP communications.

IV. The contractor will be required-to recruit and hire individuals with professional background,
expernience and expertise to provide the services required in this contract. This includes but
is not limited to persons with proven knowledge and experience in the area of employment,
labor market information and training services with the ability to motivate and inspire
participants to attain and achieve their identified occupational short and long term career
goals. The contractor’s staff hired for or assigned to NHEP shall have experience that
demonstrates proficiency in teamwork, communication and interpersonal skills.

1. The contractor must provide staff assigned to this program that shall, at minimum, meet
the following requirements:
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(a) Is of a sufficient number to deliver the contracted program services and continues to
do so without interruption due to vacations, sickness, or vacancies. DFA reserves
the right, as needed, to make adjustments in staff allocations and worksite
assignments;

(b) Each of the contractor’s staff shall have a job titie, and specified duties and
responsibilities attached to program delivery, however, all contractor staff shall also
demonstrate the versatility to be cross trained in all areas of program position,
functions and activities.

(c) Ifin a full-time position, works thlrty-seven (37) and one-half (1/2) hours per week;

(d) The contractor’s staff whose criminal background check does not reveal violations or
convictions that could adversely affect the participants served under this program;

(e) The contractor's staff that have read and signed a completed Statement of
Confidentiality; and-

(f) Adhere to'the DFA Code of Ethics.

V. All of the contractor’s staff assigned to the NHEP will have accountability to the DFA, Bureau
Chief of Welfare to Work. In ali matters of performance under this contract, the BWW
Bureau Chief will have the highest level of authority and supervision.

V1. The Bureau Chief of the DFA BWW, or his or her designee, reserves the right to participate
in the contractor’s hiring process and/or approve all of the contractor’s staff that work under
this contract.

VIl. Ali employees operating under the provisions of this contract shall, in addition to their own
reporting requirements, report to the individual designated by the BWW Bureau Chief. DFA
reserves the right to remove any contracted employee from the program for unsatisfactory
services.

VIil. Any sub-contracted staff shall be ldentlﬁed as such by-the contractor, and shall meet or

- exceed the staffing requirements articulated herein. DFA reserves the right, with sixty (60)
days advanced notice, to disallow sub-contract use when the sub-contractor’s handling of
staffing concerns are not satisfactory to DFA. ‘.

IX. The contractor is requiréd to make every effort to fill vacancies within six (6) weeks of the
date of vacancy but no longer than ten (10) weeks from the date of vacancy. The contractor
will be required to make.arrangements for program services to be maintained during periods
when vacancies or extended absences occur, through replacement or reassignment of staff.
In the case of an extended absence for more than six weeks, a replacement or a
reassignment shall be made at the discretion of the BWW Bureau Chief, or his designees.

X. The contractor will be required to develop Standard Job Descriptions (SJD’s) for each of the
contracted full or partial positions that are specific to the background, experience, expertise
and job duties of that position. DFA shall have the right to review and make
recommendations to these SJD's. . _

The contractor will provide and maintain staffing levels as follows:
1. Seventeen (17) Full Time Equivalent (FTE) front-line staff to serve as Empioyment

Counselor Specialists (ECS) of the NH Employment Program interagency teams.

(a) Full-time employment of ECS staff is thirty-seven (37) and one-half (1/2) hours per
week.

(b) Minimum quallﬁcatlons for ECS staff will be:

(i) Education: Bachelor's degree from an approved college or university with major
study in social work, psychology, education, human services, sociology,
counseling, behavioral science or a related field; and

(i) Experience: One (1) year of experience as an ECS Trainee or three years in
social work, counseling, family services, education, staff training, employee
development, employment counseling, recruitment, or human resources, or

(iii) Education: Associate’'s degree from an approved college or university with
major study in social work, psychology, education, human services, sociology,
counseling, behavioral science or a related field; and
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(iv) Experience: Three (3) years of experience as an ESC Trainee or five (5) years
in social work, counseling,-family services, education, staff training, employee
development, employment counseling, recruitment, or human resources; or.

(v) A combination of education and experience that demonstrates an ability to fulfil
the duties of an ESC.

(vi) This position reports directly to the Field Support Manager (FSM) with
programmatic oversight by the NHEP Administrator.

(vu) Dutles of the ECS staff include:

Provide group and one-on-one employment counseling to NHEP
participants and conduct presentations at orientation sessions;

2. Assess and evaluate an NHEP participant's work experience, educatlon
apfitudes, interests, and personal-characteristics to develop and write an
employability plan with the participant and determine the degree of physical,
social and emotional limitations to help the partnc:pant identify, understand
‘and overcome barriers to employment;

Provide employment focused-case management services;

Determine appropriate NHEP activities, mcludmg contracted services and

referral to Workforce Investment Act (WIA) services as appropriate;

Authorize NHEP program and support services;

‘Monitor employability plans and provide case management services while

the participant is eligible*for NHEP and for the extended case management

‘period after the closing of cash assistance; .

7.- Apply the policy and procedures of the NHEP program as contained in the -

_ Precision Case Managéement- Field Workers Guide, training manual, policy
releases, DFA Family Assistance Manual and clarifying memos;

8. Attend training to maintain level:of competency:-and expertise in policy and
skills needed toeffectively implement NHEP policy; keep abreast of local

 employment-and training opporlumtles labor market conditions, tools and
resources; and become proficient in the use of the New HEIGHTS computer
system.

9. Develop and maintain ongoing working. relatxonshlps wuth local and state
agencies, community organizations, and employers to develop child care
and transportation arrangements, activities supporting employment, support
services and employment and training opportunities;

10. Enter all NHEP actnv:ty information on the New HEIGHTS System in a timely
manner; '

11. Support NHEP goals, objectlves and team concept, and work collaboratively
with other team members in the delivery of employment, training, barrier
resolution, education, job preparafion and support services; and

12. Other duties as assigned by the Field Support Manager, NHEP
Administrator or the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work, and/or their designee.

(c) NHEP ECS’ will refer participants/applicants for participation in approved Federal

activities. Depending on client need, program requirements and necessary federal
participation hours required for clients to be in compliance, participants can engage
in any and all activities for the required number of hours allowed per federal law at

42 USC 607, (c).

2. Three (3) FTE to serve as Field Support Manager (FSM) with oversight of one or more
NHEP local teams.

(a) Full-time employment of FSM staff is thirty- seven (37) and one-half (1/2) hours per

week.
(i) Minimum qualifications for FSM staff will be:

1. Bachelor’s degree from an approved college or university with a major study
in social work, psychology, education, human services, sociology,
counseling or behavioral science; and

on Mo
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2. Six (6) years experience as a social worker or counselor in a public or
private social service agency with three (3) years in a supervisory or
management level position; or

3. A combination of education and experience that demonstrates an ability to ~
fulfill the duties of a Field Support Manager.

(i) This position reports directly to the NHEP Administrator with programmatic
oversight by the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work.

(b) The duties of the Field Support Manager (FSM) are to:

(i) Communicate NHEP performance goals, standards-and expectations to NHEP
teams and supervisors;

(i) Ensure correct application of NHEP policies and procedures;

(iii) Review individual and team performance and .initiate corrective action to meet
performance measures;

(iv) Provide policy support and clarification to local NHEP teams;

(v) Provide assistance and resources as needed for fair hearings;

(vi) Provide systems support to assure that New HEIGHTS procedures, work-
around(s), changes, and updates are communicated to teams;

(vii) Consult with NHEP/New HEIGHTS Help Desk, and/or Bridges contact person,
and/or Bureau of Data Management, and/or Child Development Unit;

(viii). -~ ... Present to Program Administrators for discussion and clarification issues
raised by the NHEP Local Teams; and

(ix) Conduct performance evaluations for ECSs and local supervisory staff.

(x) Act:as the liaison when conducting, coordinating and facilitating communication
meetings between NHEP and its contractor.

: (x|) ‘Other duties-as assigned by the NHEP Admlnlstrator or the Bureau Chief of
» Welfare to Work, and/or their designee.
3 One (1) FTE to serve as BWW Operations Specialist (BWW-OS).
. (@) Ful-time employment of BWW OS staff is thlrty-seven (37) and one-half (1/2) hours
o rperweek: T :
(b) Minimum qualifications for BVWV 0S staff will be:

(i) Bachelor's degree from a recognized college or university with major study in
Human Services, Business, or Program Management. Each additional year of
approved formal education may be substituted for one year of required work
experience.

(i) Threeyears professxonal or paraprofesswnal experience in program monitoring
and evaluation. Each additional year of approved work experience may be
substituted for.one (1) year of required formal education; or

(iii) A combination of education and experience that demonstrates an ability to fulfill

- the duties of the BWW Operations Specialist (BWW-OS).
(c) This position reports directly to the NHEP Administrator, with programmatic
oversight by the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work.

. (d) . The duties of the BWW Operations Specxahst is to:

i (i) Conduct remote ECS case reviews in conjunction with the Field Support
~ Manager, of local NHEP teams to ensure correct application of NHEP policies
~ and procedures, effective Precision Case Management (PCM) practices &

- outcomes, meeting of performance measures (especially Client Participation
Rates) and initiation of corrective action to meet performance measures.

(i) Make recommendations for policy revisions based upon NHEP team input and
Field Support Manager consensus;

(i) Consuit with NHEP/New HEIGHTS Help Desk, and/or BRIDGES contact
person, and/or the DHHS Bureau of Data Management, and/or the DHHS Child
Development Unit;

(iv) Address questions, and possible policy and systems conflicts thrqugh
discussion within the Field Support Managers and the TANF unit, addressing
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any identified changes that are needed with the Program Administrators,
systems or policy staff as appropriate;

(v) Review all available statistics and repqrts, including ‘scrubbing’ ECS caseloads
to increase participation rates; research Exempt & Employed Reports;

(vi) Compare reports and statistics to performance measures and work with NHEP
field staff to improve program performance, and review monitoring results from
DHHS Quality Assurance Unit, if available;

(vii) Coordinate and organize documents & reports submitted from field staff, check
for accuracy and consistency; enter data and record in designated application
software (e.g., New HEIGHTS, Bridges); prepare BWW reports; and file
documents appropriately;

(viij) Update and distribute electronically revisions to the PCM Manual Track and
report PCM outcome data;

(ix) Provide support to the BWW On-the-Job Training Program (OJT) supports to
include: NHEP and WIA OJT contract monitoring, employer invoicing, client
and employer site evaluations oversight; develop tracking sheets and other
related information and disséminate identified information to NHEP field staff,
compiling recidivism-data and track OJT volume and outcomes. Use Word,
Excel, or required database software to produce correspondence and ad hoc,
monthly, and quarterly financial or program-related reports; use e-mail to
communicate with internal and external customers and distribute reports and
documents via same; '

(x) Collect client caseload, exit, and outcome data (e.g., volume of Sanctions,
number of open, closed, or denied cases); input transactions into Excel and/or
New HEIGHTS database; and use Excel and New HEIGHTS data to update
existing management reports or produce other ad hoc reports as needed;

(xi) Investigate and address concerns and complaints received from within DFA,
outside agencies and contract agencies;

(xii) Other duties as assigned by the NHEP Administrator or the Bureau Chief of
Welfare to Work, and/or their designee.

4, One (1) FTE to serve as Welfare to Work Program Assistant (WAW-PA).
(a) Fuli-time employment of WVAW-PA staff is thirty-seven (37) and one—half (1/2) hours
per week.
(b) Minimum qualifications for WIW-PA staff will be:
(i) Associates Degree or higher and two (2) years experience as an Administrative
Assistant or Project/Program Assistant; a combination of a High School Diploma
(or GED) and four (4) or more years of experience as an Administrative
Assistant or Project/Program Assistant may be considered; or

(i) A combination of education and experience that demonstrates an ability to fulfill

the duties of a WIW-PA; with ‘

(iiiy Knowledge of modern office practices, procedures and equipment. Knowledge

of English, spelling and arithmetic.

(iv) Knowledge of office record keeping and reporting.

(v) Some knowledge of the principles and practices of public administration.

(c) This position reports directly to the NHEP Administrator. The duties of the WIW-PA
is to:

(i) Coordinate production and flow of financial information between the vendor's
fiscal office, the NHEP Administrator and DF A Contracts Administrator as
requested;

(i) Use Microsoft Word and Excel, or required database software to produce
correspondence and ad hoc, monthly, and quarterly financial or program-
related reports; use e-mail to communicate with internal and external agency
staff and distribute reports and documents via same; \

4
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(i)
(iv)
v)
(vi)

(vii)

Design and/or update various NHEP and Statewide Reports in accordance with
contractual guidelines at the start of each State Fiscal Year (SFY);

Provide technical support and training to program staff to ensure accurate and
complete reportlng

Collect and review local reports from NHEP staff and use excel to complle
Statewide NHEP Statistical Reports on a monthly, weekly, or annual basis;
Use New HEIGHTS case management system to research TANF client
information and support program operations; assist staff in resolvmg technical
issues pertaining to New HEIGHTS access and use;

Enter and/or maintain participant-related data (such as demographic, program
status changes, etc.) in the electronic customer database and produce reports
as requested;

(viii) Maintain, revise, and distribute policies, directives, and procedures per

()

()
()

supervisor instruction;

Facilitate purchase of equipment and office supplies and maintain related
records.

Process and track payments as needed.

Maintain and distribute the staff contact list, and other duties as assigned by
the NHEP Administrator or the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work, and/or their
designee.

5. .33 FTE NHEP Administrator: '
(a) Full-time employment of the Administrator is in accordance with SNHS personnel
policies governing this level of administration.
(b) Minimum qualifications for the Administrator will be:

0
(it)

(iii)

Bachelor's degree from an approved college or university with a major study in
social work, psychology, education, human services, sociology, counseling or
behavioral science; and

Six (6) years experience as a soaal worker or counselor in a publicor private
social service agency with three (3) years in a supervisory or management
level position; or

A combination of education and expenence that demonstrates an ability to fulfill
the duties of the NHEP Administrator.

(c) The duties of the NHEP Administrator is to:

0]
(i)
(iii)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)
(vii)

Establish and monitor NHEP program objectives as directed by the Bureau
Chief of Welfare to Work, and or his designee;

Make major policy decisions in collaboration with the Bureau Chief of Welfare
to Work, and/or his designee;

Ensure interagency coordination in program development and problem
resolution; Coordinate the delivery of NHEP policy and procedure training for
NHEP teams;

Provide supervision of agency-related matters for the contract NHEP FSM, and
the BWW Operations Assistant; and,;

Serve as the.contract administrator and be responsible for the overall
management and coordination of this contract.

The contractor shall oversee the contract on a day-to-day basis and shall be
responsible for:

Ensuring that the contractor’s staff carry out their functions described in this
contract and the standard job descriptions, and adhere to project schedules,
NH-DHHS policy and procedures, and performance measures and standards;

(viii) Interfacing directly with the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work, and/or his

(i%)
()

CA/DHHS/100213

designee, and the Contracts Administrator;
Providing data, information and reports to DFA as requested; and
Other duties as agreed to through negotiation with DFA.
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2. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

A

B.

mm o o

The contractor must provide services described herein uniformly throughout the State of New
Hampshire at locations designated by DFA.

The contractor shall deliver services in accordance with the mission, goals, policies, and
procedures of NHEP, along with applicable State and Federal Laws and Regulations as indicated
in this contract, and the RFP, and shall train all the contractor’s staff on the duties, responsibilities,
requirements and provisions of this contract.

The contractor-will be required to accept.all applicants and recipients referred by DFA in
accordance with established NHEP policies.

The contractor will be required to ensure that program requrrements and philosophy are
consistently applied to all participants and/or their families.

The contractor must deliver services with a high degree of respect for the participants, sensitivity
to their circumstances, and in a manner that builds self-esteem and motivation.

The contractor staff will be required to attend meetings and/or training programs as required by
DFA. Advance notice of meetlngs and tralmng sessions, to the extent possible, shall be provided
by DFA.

The contractor will have the ability to mamtaln and preserve records and any other documentation
in the SNHS’ possession, that were used in the administration of the resultant contract, for a

-period of three years from the close of the Federal fiscal year in which the contract ends.

The contractor acknowledges that all curriculums based matenal employer and work experience
development falls under the onus of DFA. -

The contractor is required to maintain the confi dentrallty of all partlcxpant information that is
acquired, by any means including computer access, in accordance with DFA confidentiality
requirements. The contractor will be required to insure that access to participant information is
limited to only those contractor staff that have a need to:-know in order to perform-their job duties.
The contractor must also.insure that all staff are trained on the DFA confidentiality requirements
and that all of the contractor’s staff sign a confidentiality statement attesting to the fact that DFA
confidentiality requirements are understood and will be observed.

The contractor must have the ability to respond to any state or federal audits under this contract
within fifteen (15).calendar days after receiving the audit report and rnmate correctjve action as

necessary.

3. CONTRACT PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

A.

B.

Provision of Program Services

. The contractor’s staff hired under this contract are expected to administer program services
as specified in the definitions of allowable activities as described in the Personal v
Responsibility and Work Opportunrty Act of 1996 as amended by the Deficit Reduction Act of
2005 and federal regulatrons at 45 CFR 261.2 and adhere to any new passed federal
legislation that may be enacted during the operation,of a contract with DFA to provide these
services. Should such legislation conflict with the Scope of Services, the parties will enter
into good faith negotiations to reach mutual agreement on a contract addendum or
amendment, and if applicable, seek Governor and Executive Council approval thereof:

. Meet the conditions set forth under the Fair Labor Standards Act and State law found at
RSA 167:77 — 167:92 and administrative rules pursuant to He-W 637.

Work Participation Rates

. NHEP Local Teams and individual members of the teams must meet no less than a 50%
(fifty percent) "All Families” participation rate pursuant to RSA 167:77a, and 45 CFR 261.21.
Federal law requires adherence to these rates and failure to do so results in a substantial
financial penalty to the federal TANF block grant.

ll.  Participation rates are reported quarterly to the Federal government via their prescribed
reports. These reports will be used to determine compliance with this performance standard.
The data comes from New HEIGHTS as identified by field staff and monitored by:the local
office managers and the FSM. \

C

CA/DHHS/100213 Page 7 of 30 Contractor Initials_{ /€
Exhibit A pate 1271



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit A

lil.  Verification of the participant activities and documentation of good and satisfactory progress
must be present in the participant case record and entered into New HEIGHTS.

IV._ Implementation of this standard will be effective with the implementation of this contract.

C. Precision Case Management — Field Workers Guide

. NHEP Team members are required to refer to and follow the procedural guidelines set forth
in the BWW PCM - Field Workers Guide to ensure best case practice and program
implementation effectiveness.

II.  Team members will be evaluated for adherence to a best standard of practice, no less than
once every twelve (12) months in a rolling calendar year.

ill.  FSMs are required to refer to-and follow the procedural guidelines set forth in the BWW PCM
~ Field Workers Guide, and FSM-Guide when available.

D. Evaluation of Performance o

I.  DFA shall designate the performance-evaluation criteria, specific performance goals, and
outcome measures to be utilized. Any deficiencies identified shall be presented and
discussed with the NHEP: Teams and FSMs, in conjunction:with the NHEP Administrator,
and the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work, and/or his designee as needed.

ll.  Corrective action plans, if required, shall also be requested and reviewed by the NHEP
Program Administrator and the Bureau Chief of Welfare to Work. The FSM are responsible
for the implementation of corrective action to ensure that performance standards are met.

Ill. A DFA standardized ranking iristrument shall be.utilized during the operation of this contract
period. Any of the following methods may be used, but are not limited to, by the FSMs or
other designated individuals to verify performance

On-site observation;:
" Review of managementfeports-
* Interviews with'consumers; ‘
Federal and State momtonng ‘of policies, procedures and Case management and

" Random sampling of wse records
IR QIR N

Dhwn =
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4. QUARTERLY EVALUATION REVIEWS

A. A quarterly contract evaluation meeting shall take place with the NHEP Administrator, BWW
Bureau Chief, Contracts Administrator, or designees, following the end of each quarter. The
purpose of the meeting is to review and evaluate how well the requirements of the contract are
being met, what changes, if any, are needed, and to jointly develop a plan of action for the
remainder of the contract.

B. Atthe end of each quarter, a formal performance evaluation meeting will be held with the NHEP
Administrator, BWW Bureau Chiéf, and TANF Administrator, or designees. The purpose of the
meeting is to review and evaluate how well the NHEP teams are meeting the federal participation
rates, the federal performance criteria and the performance criteria established by DFA Bureau of
Welfare to Work. Itis expected that informal performance meetings will be held on the remainder
of the months. Each meeting shall result in a report that rates each of the performance areas and,
if there are deficiencies, provides a correctlve action plan to correct-the deficiencies.

3
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to 4:30 PM Monday through Friday.1 Only with the expressed permission of DFA
Management, may any of the offices be closed early, and/or the hours of operation changed.

VII. The contractor is advised that during the term of the contract, DFA reserves the right to
modify services in this contract to conform to federal or state regulatory changes to the
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) Block Grant Program or the NHEP, or any
other State and Federal related regulation.

VIIL. If changes to the scope of service are necessary as a result of regulatory

IX. changes, the contractor and DFA will enter into good-faith negotiations of the services and
the costs associated with the delivery of those services. '

2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards
A. DHHS recognizes that culture and language have considerable impact on how individuals access
and respond to health and human services. Culturally and linguistically diverse populations
experience barriers in efforts to access services. To ensure equal access in all aspects of this
project, DFA expects the contractor to provide culturally and linguistically appropriate services
according to the following guidelines:
1.  Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community;
ll.  Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with consumers with
respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse énvironment;
lll. Offer consumers a forum through which clients have the opportunity to provide feedback to
the contractor regarding culturat and linguistic issues that may deserve response;
IV. Effective outreach and networking methods to engage and build trust with individuals with
respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse home environments, if applicable; and
V. Provide lnterpretatlonlcommumcatlon assistance services for those individuals who need it.
B. This section provides an overview of the allowable NHEP activities further defined at 45 CFR
261.2, and in Section 4.3: Direct Service Requirements being procured through this contract. The
purpose of the provision of these activities is to ensure that the program operates within federal
and state law, regulations and administrative rules. Using both quantitative and qualitative ©
outcome frieasures the goal is to move clients towards self-sufficlency through the digmtyof
unsubsidized employment The NHEP activities prowded will be as follows:
. Job readiness services to assist participants in gaining the skills necessary to obtain and
retain employment.
. Job readiness includes: v
1. Avocational assessment service to assess standardized educatlonal attainment through
testing and interpretation, to assist participants in' determining vocational goals for self-
sustaining employment and a career path to that goal. This vocational assessment will
result in the identification of short and long-term career goals, and the existing
availability of the identified occupations in the labor market. Additionaljob readiness
curriculum, including life skills training will be provided; and
2. Job search to assist participants in conducting effective job search leading to
employment, to include the creation of cover letters, resumes, references, applications,
job interviewing skills, job follow-up etiquette and techniques and education on the
utilization of existing labor market tools and information. This activity will also include the
provision of Job Club, which entails: peer support, building effective networking skills,
hosting employer quest visits, appropriate use of program resources, displaying, and
teaching program participants how to leaming of suitable job openings which ex15t in
their local labor market and other job search initiatives; and
3. Alternative Work Experience Placement (AWEP), defined as an activity that places
participants in voluntary work experience positions that are not considered community
service programs. The purpose of this activity, if private sector employment is not

' DFA reserves the right to alter the hours of operation, with sixty (60) days advanced notice.
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#13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05

1.
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General Terms and Conditions of Service

A

All Contractor employees operating under the provisions of this contract shall in addition to their
own reporting requirements, report to the individual designated by the Commissioner of the
Department of Health and Human Services who shall have authority for the Bureau of Welfare to
Work.

. The individual identified by the Commissioner of the Department of Health and Human
Services shall also be directly responsible for the operations of the New Hampshire
Employment Program and shall have oversight of this contract and the performance
measurements contained herein.

II.  In accordance with RFP#13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05 issued on October 3, 2012, this contract
may be extended for two (2) 2-year periods without further competitive bidding.

lll.  Extensions of this contract are contingent upon the sat:sfactory performance by the
contractor of all services required.

IV. Extension of this contract is further contingent upon approval of the New Hampshire

~ Govemor and Executive Council.

Under this Division of Family Assistance (DFA), New Hampshire Employment Combined Services
Program, herein known as CSP, the contractor, Southem New Hampshire Services (SNHS) will
provide services to participants in the New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) that are
receiving Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF). Participants served may also be
designated as having no or limited English proficiency to the degree that they are unable to
effectively engage in-general work program services, thereby requiring additional culturally and
linguistically appropriate supports/services be provided that ensures equal access in all aspects
of this contract.

Under this Combined Service Program (CSP) the contractor will provide the following work
activities per 45 CFR 261.2 and RSA 167.77 through 167.92, which include: job readiness, job
search, community service program, work experience, job skills training directly related to
employment, and On-the Job Training. Participants will acquire general skills, knowledge and
work habits necessary to obtain and retain gainful employment, and obtain occupations in support
of long term self sufficiency. _

The contractor shall provide these services on a statewide basis to cover up to twelve (12)

geographic locations identified in Table 1 of this contract. In addition to the services described

above, the contractor will operate a combined service facility where TANF-related services will be
delivered to NHEP partncupants The contractor will be responsible for the overall operation of the
facility and the provision of the work activities as identified above.

Proposed plans to sub-contract any part of this contract, if any, are to be clearly outlined.

. Any partnership must demonstrate mutually understood and well-articulated roles and
responsibilities, as well as a collaborative process between partners to monitor program
quality and to resolve differences or operational problems.

ll.  The sub-contracts should describe the role(s) and responsibilities of each entity under the
same guidelines established by this contract.

lll.  The Contract Administrator must approve each sub-contract prior to signature. DHHS
reserves the right to request changes to any contract presented for approval.

IV. The contractor is the established single point of contact for DFA and will be responsible for
ali deliverables associated with this contract. Any proposed programmatic or operational
changes within the partnering organizations will require prior approval by DFA. DFA
reserves the right to remove any subcontracted partner from the project for unsatisfactory
services.

V. The contractor is responsible for tracking outcomes and developing or changing tracking
systems to align with any requests made by DFA. 1t is the SNHS's responsibility to maintain
detailed records of its activities and required deliverables.

V1. All contractor staff and sites will be open and providing services to participants according to
the State of New Hampshire calendar of business days. Hours of operation will be,8:00 AM
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available, means a work activity performed in return for welfare, that provides an
individual with an opportunity to acquire the general skills, knowledge, and work habits
necessary to obtain employment. The purpose of the work expenence is to improve the
employability of those that cannot find unsubsidized employment. The expectation is
that SNHS will develops sufficient and appropriate AWEP host sites in order for clients
to utilize this activity. This activity shali be provided pursuant to RSA 167:82-a and
167:91a-b; and

4. Community Work Experience Placement (CWEP), defined as work performed for the
direct benefit of the community under the auspices of public or nonprofit organization.
This activity must serve a useful community purpose, will be available from both the
contractor’s worksite locations and in the community at non-profit and public
organizations to improve the employability of participants. Short-term training is also
permitted as long as such activities are of limited duration and are an integral part of a
CWEP. The expectation is that the contractor will develop sufficient and appropriate
CWf—:P host sites in order for clients to utilize this activity. This activity shall be provided
pursuant to RSA 167:82-a and 167:91a-b; and

5. Job Skills Training Directly Related to Employment (JSTDRE), which is defined as:

-training or education for job skills required by an employer to provide an individual the

ability to obtain employment or advance or adapt to the changes demands of the work
place; and

6. On-the-Job Training (OJT), which is defined as: training in the public or private sector
that is given to a paid employee while he or she is engaged in productive work and that
provides knowledge and skills essential to the full adequate performance of the job.

C. The Combined Services Program must be designed to provide for open enroliment-and open exit
by NHEP participants. Referred NHEP participants must be able to enter the program upon the

. contractor’s receipt of referral paperwork from NHEP or be placed onthe program waiting list, if
appropriate. :Section 4.2.C of the RFP identifies the maximum participant capacity to be served at .-
each:combined service site by activity. AWEP, CWEP and OJT piacements off-site in'the
community are in addition to the maximum capacity identified in Table 1 of this contract.

D. NHEP ECSs will refer participants/applicants for participation in the above six activities.
Depending on client need, program requirements.and necessary federal participation hours
required for clients to be in compliance, participants can engage in any and all activities for the
required number of hours-allowed per federal law at 42 USC 607, (c). Under this same section
and in federal regulations at 45 CFR 261.34, an individual’s participation in job search-and job

" readiness assistance can count for a maximum of six weeks in a fiscal year (no more than four
consecutive weeks). This can be extended to 12 weeks in a fiscal year if a State meets the
definition of a “needy State” under the Contingency Fund provisions of the law. At the time of this
writing, NH meets this definition.

E. All program services for NHEP activities shall:

. Meet the definitions of allowable activities as described in the Personal Responsibility and

" Work Opportunity Act of 1996 as amended by the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 and federal
regulations at 45 CFR 261.2 and adhere to any newly passed federal legislation that may be
enacted during the operation of this contract with DFA to provide these services. Should
such legislation conflict with the agreed upon Scope of Services in this contract, the parties
will enter into good faith negotiations to reach mutual agreement on a contract addendum or
amendment, and if applicable, seek Governor and Executive Council approval thereof;

Il. Be provided in a manner to allow participants to meet the minimum participation
requirements of core and secondary activities. The contracted sites will be open for the
provision of program services to participants for no less than 35 hours per week, and;

Ill.  Meet the conditions set forth under the Fair Labor Standards Act and State law found at RSA
167:77 — 167:92 and administrative rules pursuant to He-W 637.
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3. Organization/Agency Requirements

A. The contractor must provide statewide services that meet the federal TANF work participation
requirements as stated in the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Act of 1996 as
amended by the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 and federal regulations at 45 CFR 261.2.

B. The contractor must carry out the direct service requirements as defined in this contract.

. The contractor must have the ability and experience to:

1. Provide job readiness and job search activities that teach job seeking and life skills to ensure
participants are able to effectively prepare, seek, obtain, and ultimately retain unsubsidized
employment;

lll.  Provide vocational assessment and evaluatton testing that identifies potential participant
deficits, barriers; and strengths that would lead to the identification of short and long-term
career goals, and skills necessary to utilize labor market information in support of those
goals;

IV. Provide community service actlvmes while building work skills and i mcreasung employability
for participants;

V. Develop both AWEP and CWEP host sites and slots for participants with limited exposure to
the labor market, limited work histories, and potential barriers to employment. These
activities shall assist the participant to acquire the general skills, knowledge and work habits
necessary to obtain employment and to improve the employability of individuals otherwise
unabie to obtain unsubsidized employment;

VL. Develop OJT opportunities that provide training in the public and private sector that is given
to a paid employee while he or she is engaged in productive work. These opportunities also
provide the knowledge and skills essential for a full and adequate performance of the job;

VII. Provide job development, employer outreach, networking, familiarity with local.labor market

" trends and conditions, job attainment resources and tools, associated with attaching {ow-
income individuals to the labor market;

VIl Work with low income families with barriers to long-term attachment to the labor market, with
the ability to support participants in work actMtles while provndlng problem-solvmg

“assistance whenever situations arise; :

IX. Operate a program that addresses the provision of work skill attainment in order to promote
success'in the workplace and long-term attachment to the labor market utifizing simulated
work environment construct concepts;

X. ~ Develop, access, and promote the use of local commumty resources such as assisting
-participants with access to childcare, transportation providers, clothing, housing, financial
literacy, substance abuse, domestic violence, and other barriers to employment, in support
of program goals;.

XI. - Work with people with no or limited English proficiency; understand the concepts of cultural
competency; promote effective integration and adaptation of individual cultural differences
into the local labor market; recognize and respect individuals in terms of values, potential,
and cultural experiences in-order to advance successful workplace integration;

Xll. Acquisition, development, and managing facilities to accommodate a variety of services

: within a singular setting.

C. The contractor and its staffs must have the qualifications, educational competencles and
professional experience needed for responsible management and delivery of the activities as
outlined in this scope of work.

D. The contractor must have the ability and expenence to provide services, utilizing the precepts of
cultural competency, for participants with cultural barriers, and/or no or limited-English proficiency
resulting in barriers to employment.

I.  Cultural competence is defined as a set of congruent behaviors, attitudes, and policies that
come together in a system or agency or among professionals that enable effective
interactions in a cross-cultural framework.

ll.  Participants with no or limited-English proficiency is defined as a person who comes from a
non-English speaking background and who has sufficient difficulty speaking, reading, writing,
or understanding the English language and whose difficulties may deny such an ingi

C
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the opportunity to learn successfully in settings where the language of instruction is English
or to participate fully in the dominant society.

E. The contractor and its staff must abide by a policy developed by DFA that describes acceptable
and unacceptable NHEP participant conduct and dress. This policy will be applicable to the
contractor’s staff delivering services at the combined service locations.

F. The contractor must develop marketing and recruitment strategies to achieve the agreed upon
participant capacity at the twelve (12) combined service sites.

4. Program Referral Guidelines
A. This contact will serve, through a CSP, those individuals referred by the NHEP Employment
Counselor Specialist (ECS), who are low-income adults and teenage parents who have been
determined eligible for FANF related programs.
B. Referral guidelines-are for those participants who:

.  Have been assessed by an NHEP ECS and have an established Employability Plan. Clients
will be expected to participate in vocational assessments prior to being assess by an NHEP
ECS;

1. Would benefit from a comprehensive vocational assessment and in-depth career exploration
to determine realistic and appropriate short and long-term career goals, including the
identification of an appropriate career path and the steps necessary to accomplish their long-
term career plan

. Would benefit from understanding appropriate workplace behaviors, including but not limited
to: employer expectations, approprlate attire, and professionalism in the work place. May-
need training and preparation in effective job seeking, as well as life skills training to balance
work and family responS|bll|t|es effectively;

IV. Would benefit from participation in job readiness classes designed to develop the skills.
necessary to effectNe]y balance work and family, including but not limited to: time
management, organizational skills, stress management, self-confidence building, etc., to "
prepare parents for the demands of obtaining and retaining full-time, unsubsidized
employment;

V. Havebeen unsuccessful in obtaining sustained unsubsidized employment in their identified
occupation and would benefit from the activities and services available under the program.

V1. Have been unable to demonstrate appropriate workplace protocols including, but not limited
to attendance, leave notification, tardiness, and handling emergency situations as it pertains
to workplace behaviors, ‘

Vil. Would benefit from the development of necessary job search skills including, but not limited
to the creation of cover letters, resumes, personal and professional reference, sample
applications, job interviewing and networking skills, etc. to prepare to seek, obtain and retain
unsubsidized employment and long-term connection to the labor market;

Vill. Would benefit from being involved in a local support system where information about
effective job search techniques, job seeking tools; job openings, local employers, labor
market information and community resources can be found.

IX. Would benefit from obtaining and retaining unsubsidized employment and/or needs to re-
enter the workforce due to, but not limited to, insufficient educational background or lack of
marketable skills;

X. Would benefit from a work experience placement (WEP), on-the-job-training (OJT), or other
appropriate work related activity;

XI. Would benefit from leaming about what is necessary to secure long-term, dependable child
care and transportation, and other alterative arrangements, to allow for long-term
"attachment to the labor market;

XIl. Would benefit from local WEP development in their community due to barriers preventing
attendance at a specified site; and

Xil. May have no or limited English proficiency.

XIV. The contractor will accept alf referrals from the NHEP teams unless mutually agreed upon by
DFA and the contractor.

CA/DHHS/M00213 Page 13 of 30 Contractor Initials f’ ég‘ ;
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C. Capacity: The following table illustrates the number of required monthly participant slots by
geographic area and combined service activity for the CSP on-site service capacity. The co-
location of these services requires separate classrooms and may involve separate computer labs
and the computer systems must be compatible2. Off-site program capacity will vary based on
participants completing on-site activities. The figures given in the below table are DFA's
anticipated capacity and may vary depending on actual participation and progression of
participants through the Program:

Table 1 — Capacity requirements

Locations g:\t::@ﬂ:gg On"ssitit\s/vEP JS\l/\?Fg}.ﬁasbs-gslqugnjbb
: r Skills Training Slots -
Berlin , 10 , 5 - |5
Claremont 29 19 110
Concord 33 21 12
Derry 10 5 5
Keene ‘125 S I B 12
Littleton 110 SR - R 15
Laconia , : 29 .l 12
Manchester 68 ' lag 20
Nashua ‘ 35 * 120 .- 15
Portsmouth 110 s |5
Rochester |38 23 15
Tamworth 110 . S 5 5
Total {307 . 190 121

D. The 307 participants that will receive'combined services under this contract at the combined

service locations listed above shall participate in the activities listed in this Scope of Service.
. Priority will be given to people who:need to participate in core activities.

E. The contractor shall develop on-site WEP experiences from local area organizations to provide
work skills and work experiences to participants who lack skills to become immediately
employable.

F. The contractor shall maintain no less than 750 community host sites with multiple slots and of
those at least 425 sites need to be active. Active is defined as having been utilized within the
previous 180 days. Of the 425 aclive sites, no less than 400 siots will be filled on a monthly basis.

the current systems in place.
CA/DHHS/100213 Page 14 of 30 Contractor initials /6

—
Exhibit A pate \["VLTY

2 DFA currently funds data coliection systems for TANF related contracted services. DFA reserves the rig\gz retain



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit A

G. Additional participants to receive combined services are through off-site AWEP, CWEP and OJT
sites created in the community statewide. The contractor shall develop and maintain work
experience placement sites for participants with limited exposure to the labor market, limited work - -
histories, limited transportation, potential barriers to employment, no or limited-English-proficiency,
have a vocational interest in a particular occupation,-and/or needs experience and exposure to
that work situation, and/or needs to participate in a work activity.

H. DFA recognizes that the demand for this program may periodically exceed capacity at one or
more locations. To minimize the potential for wait lists, the contractor shall develop and
implement a process to ensure participants successfully move through contracted service
activities or are otherwise removed from the program if non-compliant.

5. Direct Service Requirements

A. The contractor must provide NHEP . activities that meet the federal def nition and parameters as

defined in 45:CFR 261.2 of the following activities:

. Job readiness activities (JR - core) are designed to assist participants in galnmg the skills
necessary to obtain and retain'employment. Job readiness includes: a vocational
assessment service to assess standardized educational aftainment through testing and
interpretation; assisting participants in determining vocational goals for self-sustaining

- employment: and a career path to that goal. This vocational assessment will result in the
identification of short and long-term career goals, and the existing availability of the identified

" occupations in the labor market. Addltlonal jOb readiness curriculum,; including life skills
training will be provided;

. Job search activities (JS - core) are desngned to. assnst participants in-conducting facilitated
job search leading to employment, to include the creation of cover letters, resumes,
applications, job interviewing skills, and education on the utilization of existing labor market
tools. This activity will also include the provision of Job Club: (JC); which entails: networking,

- peer support, learning of suitable job openings and other job search initiatives;-

lll.  Alternative Work Experience Placements (AWEP - core) are designed to place participants
in voluntary work experience positions that.are not considered oommunity sefvice programs.
The purpose of this activity, if private sector.employment:is not available, is a work activity
performed in return for welfare that provides an individual with an opportunity to acquire the

:geéneéral skills, knowledge, and work habits_necessary to obtain employment. The purpose of
"the work éxperience.is to :mprove the employability of those that cannot find unsubsidized
employment. The expectation is that the contractor develops sufficient and appropriate
AWEP host sites in order for clients to utilize this activity;

IV. Community Work Experience Placements (CWEP - core) are de5|gned as work performed
for the direct benefit of the community under:the auspices of public or nonprofit organization.
This activity must serve a useful community purpose, will be available from both the
contractor’s worksite locations-and in the communlty at non-profit organizations to improve
the employability of participants: Short-term training is also permitted as long as such
activities are of limited duration and are an integral part of a CWEP. The expectation is that
the contractor develop sufficient and appropriate CWEP host sites in order for clients to
utilize thls activity;

V. Job SklllS Training Directly Related to Employment (JSTDRE - secondary), which is defined
as: tralmng or education for job skills required by an employer to provide an individual the

, abihty to obtain employment and advance or adapt to the changing demands of the work

place;

V1. On-the-Job Training (OJT - core), which is defined as: training in the public or private sector
that is given to a paid employee while he or she is engaged in productive work and that
provides knowledge and skills essential to the full and adequate performance of the job.

B. The contractor is required to abide by policy and guidelines developed by DFA that describes
acceptable and unacceptable participant conduct and dress. This will be applicable to services
delivered at the CSP locations. \\

\
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C. The contractor shall:

.
m
V.

VI,
Vi,
VIIL.

IX.

XI.
XH.

Operate the CSP as a simulated work environment which provides WEP work skills/iwork
experience on and off-site to-improve the employability of clients .not otherwise able to obtain .
employment,

Provide information to program partrcnpants on the Earned Income Tax Credit;

Supervise and monitor clients in all activities on a-daily, on-going basis;

Implement and operate an intake process for referred participants that enter the Combined
Service Program upon receipt of referral paperwork from NHEP;

Perform outreach efforts to schedule vocational assessments upona client.being deterrmne
eligible and open for TANF financial assistance;

Hold daily client review meetings to determine the most appropriate actrvrty in which the
client will participate, either as a sole or combined service, based on the vocational
assessment, employment plan; and-ECS referral information, also taking into account the
participants employment history, skills, interests, ability, employment goals and employment
obstacles; : :

Report and verify individual NHEP participant attendancelpartncrpatlon and reasons for

- absences with verifications if obtained, submitted no less than weekly to the-NHEP ECSs.

Unscheduled absences shall be reported the day of the absence; .

Provide individual progress reports to the responsible NHEP ECSs at least. ‘bi-weekly;
Develop recommendations for-services to-address barriers suspected or.identified for an
NHEP participant for inclusion in'the employment plan, and/or provide community referrals;
Ensure that all necessary paperwork for the participant is completed accurately and timely in

>order to determine.the specific activity(s) the client:will.be assigned;

Ensure that all staffs are trained and work on:a rotating basis.between all on-site work

-activities of the Combined Service Program;

Collect from NHEP.participants, verification of p'artlcapatxon hours in thls program and
verification of absenoes if able Provide the verifications to the NHEP ECSs no less than

. weekly; -

Xl

XIV.

Make appropnate arrangements for acoommodatlon of no or limited Enghsh prof icient
related barriers or disability-related issues;

Develop training methods that incorporate a variety. of adult Ieamrng styles practlcal and
experiential methods that extend beyond participant self-instruction, such as-reading

" materials or audio/visual materials using materials developed and published at the 8th grade

XV.

XV

reading level;

Develop or adapt curriculum that will ensure full access to all contract related actlwtres to
meet the needs of no or limited English proficient or disabled participants, which may-include
the administration of the Leaming Needs Screening Tool, when a participant is suspected of
having a leamning disability or lack of basic literacy;

Provide a plan to ensure that each participant participates in the hours specified on the
referral as part of the employment plan, which could be less than a minimum-of 20 hours of a
core activity/work experience per week, :but shall not exceed the permissibie hours as

specified by the Fair Labor Standard Act (FLSA). Participants may choose, or be required to,

participate for additional hours per the Employability Plan, in core or secondary activities.

D. Activity specific conditions:

CA/DHHS/100213 Page 16 of 30 Contractor Initials,

The contractor must design and deliver the following activities/services:
1. Job search/Job readiness curriculum that clearly identifies the topics to be addressed in
each of the below subject areas:
(a) General skills assessment, to include: reading, listening, writing, speaking, math,
science skills and to determine an individuals educational level,
(b) Vocational assessment of career aptitudes and abilities, to include but not limited to,
vocational interest, work values, and screening for learning disabilities and LEP;
(c) Career exploration to include: exploration of local labor market informatioq specific
to the chosen career goals, utilizing all available resources and tools such'gs ONET,

7
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NH Career Planning Guide, Job Match System, NH Works Job Information Center,
Economic Labor Market Information, etc., career jobs, stop-gap jobs, non-traditional
jobs, availability of local employment in identified career area;

(d) The identification of short and long-term emiployiment goals in support of 3 career ™~ ™~

plan that leads towards full-time unsubsidized employment and economic
independence; '

(e) Soft skill attainment (appropriate workplace behaviors) to include: understanding
employer expectations relative to work ethic, personal hygiene, and proper business
communications, managing childcare and transportation for employment, balancing
work and family, problem resolution in the workplace, managing family issues while
maintaining employment, attendance, sexual harassment, drug free workplace,
financial literacy, advantages of employment and available employment transition
services, etc.;

() Job search to include: identification and instruction in the use of appropriate job
search tools, cover letter, résumé, references, applications, job search and
interviewing skills, specific to an identified job placement and career goals;

f.  Job Club entails: networking, peer support, learning of suitable job openings and other job
search initiatives. The contractor shall:

1. Offer job club group activities such as identifying employment leads, share employment
resources, facilitate informational interviews, conduct networking forums, provide
presentations from local businesses, conduct simulated interviews, etc.

lil. AWEP/CWEP work experience placements (WEPs) are designed to improve the
employability of those that cannot find unsubsidized employment and provides participants
with skills to increase employability for immediate attachment to the local labor market. The
contractor shall:

1. Develop host sites and slots that meet the career goals necessary for immediate
attachment to the local labor market; .

2. Develop and administer a pre-defined number of active WEP host sites and slots per
service delivery area. Host sites are considered active if the WEP slot has been utilized
in the last 180 days;

“3. Implement a WEP agreement process as defined by DFA and be designed for no more

than 16 weeks, unless DFA has approved an extension; A

4. Ensure that all necessary enrollment paperwork for placement into a WEP is completed
accurately and timely;

5. Ensure that the participant and the WEP host site are fully informed and adhere to the
attendance verification requirements;

6. Ensure WEP host sites are informed and acknowledge participant safeguards pursuant
to RSA’s: 167:82-a Infringement on Rights of Other Employees Prohibited; Limited
Employee Status, 167:91-a Infringement on Rights of Other Employees Prohibited,
167:91-b Work Experience and Community Service Program Participants; Workers'
Compensation Eligibility;

7. Have appropriate arrangements for accommodation of language barriers or disability
issues in the WEP host site;

8. Prepare the participant for an interview with the WEP host site by ensuring that the
participant is prepared with a tailored resume and application packet specific to the
placement, references, results of a criminal background check if needed, and any other
matenals pertinent to the specific placement;

9. Provide the participant with an introduction to the WEP host snte provnde support to both
the participant and the WEP host site, and mediate any issues that arise during
participant engagement at a WEP host site;

10. Are de5|gned to improve the employability of the participants;

11. Be developed for both on-site and off-site CWEPS/AWEPs for participants; and

12. For CWEPs, the activity must include structured programs, embedded activities and
projects in which participants perform work that serve a useful community purpgse.
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13.

14.

Job Skills Training Directly Related to Employment is a secondary activity, for up to 10
hours weekly. This activity shall include, but is not limited to, information that provides
participants with education or training for skills required by an employer to provide an
individual with the ability to obtain employment or to advance or adapt to the changing
demands of the workplace. This can include English as a Second Language curriculum
if it has been determined necessary for the partncspant’s entrance lnto advancement or
success in the work force. The contractor shall:

Develop and provide a short-term training curriculum that contains hands-on leaming
incorporating a variety of adult learning styles, practical and experiential methods that
extend beyond participant self-instruction such as reading materials or audio/visual
materials, using materials developed and published at the 8th grade reading level.

IV. On-the Job Training means training on the public or private sector employment that is given
to a paid employee while he or she is engaged in productive work and that provides
knowledge and skills essential for the full and adequate performance of the job. The

contractor shall:

1. Ensure that OJTs are developed for a minimum of 30 hours per week

2. Adhere to all pre-screening criteria associated with OJT development provided by DFA;
3. Be familiar with WIA, NHEP and NHES OJT standard operation procedures and

4.
5.
6.

CA/DHHS/100213

processes;
Be proficient in the development of OJT opportunities in the local labor market, as well
as, in the marketing and executing of OJT contracts;

Maintain, support and monitor participants in OJT placements for the length of the
contract;

Provide strategies for identifying participant OJT issues and bringing them forward to the
OJT Developer for appropriate discussion and resolution;

“Initiate case conferencing with-NHEP-to address-partieipant-attendance-and

performance;
Collaborate with agencies such as Department of Labor Workforce Investment Act,
Department of Education, etc., to secure possible funding and services.
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6. Work Experience Placement (WEP) and On-The-Job Training (OJT) Site Development

A. The contractor must develop and maintain a sufficient number of AWEP, CWEP and OJT sites

- through which participants will meet the program requirements.

B. The contractor must provide sufficient workplace experience host sites and slots that are .
developed based on the regional requirements and that meets the estimated monthly participant -
volume per service delivery area.

C. The contractor must develop and maintain 750 host sites statewude at various organizations,
agencies and companies. It is expected that the SNHS. will maintain no less than 425 active host
sites statewide. An active host site is one that has placed a participant in an AWE or CWEP
within the previous 180 days. Sites that have not had a placement within the previous 180 days
will not be considered active and should be moved to a non-active list. SNHS must ensure that a
list of host sites is consistently maintained, including identifying active/non-active status, and is
readily accessible to NHEP staff. It is anticipated that approximately 25% of statewide NHEP
caseload will be participating on a monthly basis through this contract in AWEP and/or CWEP
placements necessxtatmg that a sufficient number of active slots be available/maintained within
said host sites. :

D. The contractor must develop no Iess than 84 OJT placements per contract year, with no less than
a 10% de-obligation rate.

E. The contractor will utilize a DFA venﬁcatlon process that prowdes timely, accurate, and consistent
attendance verification to the NHEP. ECS of the client's participation at the workplace setting.

F. The contractor must provide an expedited placement process for participants referred to the
.program for which the NHEP ECSs already identified or developed the AWEP/CWEP An
expedited placement is one that is completed within 48 hours of the NHEP participant's referral to
this program.  DFA reserves the right to place participants directly into an AWEP/CWEP and to
submit the applicable WEP agreements and referral information to the contractor for appropriate
placement follow-up after the participant enters the AWEP/CWEP .

G. The contractor shall develop remote AWEP/CWEP host sites and slots that meet the needs of
clients that live in excessively remote Iowtxons that are not in. proximity to.the local labor market,
community resources, etc., and/or are fimited due to specnal circumstances. -

H. . The:contractor shall ensure that host site pre-screening requirements are |dent|f ed and
completed prior to placement of the participant into a CWEP, AWEP or OJT, following an
established DFA process.

I.  The contractor will provide both a short-term on-site CSP and/or off-site WEP actlvmes as
follows: -,

L. Sohcnt projects that serve a useful commumty purpose This mcludes programs in fields
such as: health, social service, environmental protection, education, urban and rural
development, welfare, recreation, public facilities, public safety and childcare.

Il. Solicit projects from local area organizations that provide the opportunity for work skill and
work experience attainment for participants who lack skills to become |mmed|ately
employable;

lil. Projects will be indexed to specify the skills required for entry into a WEP activity, ‘and to the
extent possible consider the prior training, experience, and skills of a recipient in making
appropriate WEP assignments, Projects shall enhance skills attainment and increase
immediate employability.

Note: Significant changes due to factors such as changes in the NH Labor Market, which may resuit in
either an increase or decrease in the TANF caseload, may necessitate a modification of the AWEP,
CWEP and OJT development criteria as set forth in this contract. DFA reserves the right, with a sixty-day
(60) notification to the contractor, to make said changes as deemed appropriate.
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7. - Classroom Sites and Requirements - = -
A. The contractor must provide twelve (12) service dehvery srtess that meet wrth DFA approval and
the following requirements:

. One site per DFA district office catchment area for twelve (12) sites. The catchment areas
are: Berlin, Claremont, Concord, Conway, Derry, Keene, Laconia, Littleton, Manchester,
Nashua, Rochester, and Portsmouth and serve the communities identified in Attachment 3.

lIl.  Ease of accessibility to NHEP"participants; '

lil." Located in proximity to public transit routes, ‘child care facilities, communities with possible
concentrations of NHEP participants,‘or a combination thereof;

IV. Handicapped accessible and climate-controlled such:that the program can operate without
interruption. The thermal standard being between:approximately' 65 and 75 degrees.

V. Provide space and seating for activities for up to the number of participant slots as identified
in Table 1 of this contract;

V1. Provide space for private consultations to malntarn conﬂdentrahty of records and discussions
that relate to individual participants.

1. Space for private consultations will be made available to contract or other DFA staff to
conduct drop-in meetings with NHEP participants, in addition to meeting the needs of
the service providers located at the combined service model facility.

2. The facrllty layout should provide for contrguous space (if possible) for participants,
private Consultations and workspace that is as flexible as possible, such as portable
walls that can be reconﬁgured to accommodate more participants if necessary

3. The contractor will‘be responsible for'moving the equipment from the existing CSP sites
to the twelve (12) sites (if different from’curfent sites). - The contractor’s worksites must
have sufficient space’ fo housse 4l existing equipment and materials. :

4. All sites must meet all Americans with Disabllities Act requirements for handicapped -
accessibility and have adequate: parkrng for participarits and staff. Each worksite shall
also have conference room meeting space for the program, DHHS staff, and other
mdrvnduals as appropriate, to hold particrpant meetrngs or FANF-related meetings when
necessary.

8. Staffing Requirements

A. The contractor shall provide a staffing plan that demonstrates foreign Ianguage proficiency and
racial, ethnic, and cultural diversity sufficient to serve the target populatlon Each'staff member
must be able to demonstrate an understanding of and direct experience with the target population
as well as a'willingness to work creatrvely with partlcrpants to meet therr needs and help them
resolve their barriers. -

B. The contractor must provide staffs assigned to this program ‘that shall at minimum, meet the
following requirements:

I, Is of a sufficient number to deliver the contracted' pi’ogram -gervices and continue to do so
without mterruptlon due to vacations;, srckness or vacancies. DFA reserves the right, on a
quarterly basis, to make adjustments in staff allocations and worksite assignments;

Il. Has ajob title, and specified duties and responsibilities attached to program delivery;

Ifl. Ifin a full-time position, works a 37.5 hour work week;

IV. Whose criminal background check does not reveal violations or convictions that could
adversely affect the participants served under this program;

V. Have read and signed a completed Statement of Confidentiality; and

VI. Adhere to the DFA Code of Ethics.

N
LY
\
1Y

® DFA reserves the right to reduce the number of delivery sites with sixty (60) days advanced notice.
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C. The contractor must provide and assign staffs, at minimum, for the following program roles and
responsibilities. It is important to note that all staff will be required to provide coverage of services
at the CSP on a, no less than biweekly, rotating basis in the overall operation of the CSP.

. .87 FTE to serve as CSP Administrator with a Masters degree in social work, psychology,
education, or business/public administration or a related field and a minimum of five (5)
years experience working with job readiness training, teaching, community
organization/outreach, program development or administrative supervision; or Bachelor's
degree in social work, psychology, education, or business/public administration or a related
field and a minimum of seven years experience working with job readiness training, teaching,
community organization/outreach, program development and administrative supervision.

1. The responsibilities of the CSP Administrator shall include, but not be limited to:

(a) Providing contract development, negotiations, monitoring and program evaluation;

(b) Coordinating statistical, financial, program evaluation, site capacity reporting, and
other reporting requirements for the program;

(c) Providing training and supervision for all direct service personnel, including
subcontracted staff, in the conduct of the program;

(d) Working with NHEP teams and DFA to support and coordinate the referral process
statewide; ' '

(e) Providing an ongoing system of program evaluation to ensure program quality and
effectiveness; ‘

() Guiding and direct the development of effective and responsive community
partnerships; ‘

(g) Guiding and direct staff activities with community resources, NHEP, TANF
Administration, child care resources, transportation providers and employers to
ensure there is a collaborative approach to the provision of services to participants;

(h) Monitoring the accuracy of participant work verification; and

- (i) Other duties as agreed to through negotiation with DFA..

. Two (2) FTE to serve as Combined Service Program Supervisors with a Masters degree in
social work, psychology, counseling, education, or business/public administration or a
related field and a minimum of five (5) years experience working with job readiness training,
teaching, community organization/outreach, program development, and administrative
supervision; or Bachelor's degree in social work, psychology, education, or business/public
administration or a related field and a minimum of seven years experience working with job
readiness training, teaching, community organization/outreach, program development, and
administrative supervision. This position reports directly to the CSP Administrator.

1. The duties of the CSP Supervisor shall include, but not be limited to:

(a) Providing statewide technical assistance to CSP Coordinators, monitor the
application of policy and procedures by direct service staff, the achievement of
performance goals and the quality of services provided by the CSP Coordinators; -

(b) Providing back-up coverage for CSP Coordinators during periods of absence or
need;

(¢) Conducting annual performance evaluations in consultation with the CSP
Administrator, the for CSP Coordinators and provide assistance in coordinating
services between NHEP ECS and CSP Coordinators

(d) Assisting the CSP Administrator in the hiring and training of CSP Coordinators;

(e) Mediating and resolve differences or conflicts between NHEP participants and CSP
Coordinators and involving the applicable NHEP ECS as needed, attend local NHEP
partner meetings, networking events, DFA training sessions, statewide team
meetings, or other events as assigned;

() Communicating with program and direct service staff to provide clarification of
policies, introduction of program changes and to respond to questions, ensure that
CSP Coordinators accurately maintain and update the New HEIGHTS computer
system by adhering to NHEP requirements and other official releases. \
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(g) Ensuring that community service projects are carried out appropriately and that

sponsoring agencies are satisfied with the project's outcome, and other job duties as
o assigned by the CSP Administrator..

lll. One (1) FTE to serve as OJT-Community Job Specnallst (CJS) Supervnsor with a Bachelors
degree in social work, psychology, education, or business/public administration or a related
field and two (2) years job development and employer outreach; with experience in
supervising program staff that: assist individuals in finding employment, knowledge of the
principles and methods of assessment and career counseling; experience and/or an ability to
demonstrate an understanding of working with low-income populations or hard-to-serve
individuals; expenence with, and/or a strong familiarity with local and statewide educational
and social services; experience in or an ability to demonstrate skills in job development and
public relations with employers. This position reports directly to the CSP Administrator.

1. The duties of the WEP and OJT Supervisor shall inciude, but not be limited to:

(a) Responsible for the overall development and coordination of OJT and WEP
development and placement services, develop matenials for and participate in “job
fair” planning and events that offer opportunities for employers and NHEP
participants to meet and discuss employment;

(b) Creating and submit monthly reports to the DFA Business and Industry Coordinator
(BIC) to measure performance of these accountabilities, provide Statewide technical
assistance to OJT-CJS, monitor the application of policy and procedures by direct
service staff, the achievement of performance goals and the quality of services
provided by the OJT-CJS;

(c) Providing.back-up coverage for OJT-CJS during periods of absence or need,
conduct annual performance evaluations in consultation with the DFA BIC for OJT-
CJS, provide assistance in coordinating services between NHEP ECS and OJT-
CJS;

(d) Assisting the CSP Administrator in the hiring and trainjng. of OJT- CJS, mediate and
resolve differences or.conflicts between NHEP participants and OJT: -Commumty Job
Specialists and involving the applicable NHEP ECS as needed;

(e) Attending local NHEP partner meetings, networking events, DFA training sessions,
statewide team meetings, or other events as assigned, communicate with program
and direct service staff to provide clarification of policies, introduction of program
changes and to respond to questions, and other duties as assigned by the NHEP
Program Administrator.

IV. One (1) FTE to serve as CSP Statewide OJT Developer with a Bachelors degree in
Marketing or Business Administration or related field. Minimum two (2) years experience in
career counseling, recruiting candidates, marketing to employers and job development with
demonstrated placement success; with experience in job task analysis; marketing of OJT
Programs and various work program related services and training incentives to area private
sector businesses, non-profit organizations, industries, associations, faith-based
organizations, and local town/city departments through statewide presentation meetings,
employment networking events and job fairs. This position reports directly to the OJT-
Community Job Specialist Supervisor.

1. Job duties include but are not limited to:

(a) Developing OJT opportunities for NHEP participants and increasing the knowledge
and understandlng of the NHEP goals and the need for business leadership and
collaboration in this process;

(b) Performing cold calls and following up on any leads provided by WEP & OJT-
Community Job Specialist Supervisor, DFA Business & Industry Coordinator, NHEP
Program Administrator or ocal NHEP teams or CSP staff, conduct ongoing business
outreach statewide for the purpose of matching NHEP participants with employers
for On-the-Job Training opportunities;

(c) Attending business led meeting/functions (e.g., Chamber of Commerce meetmgs

breakfast forums, etc.) for the purpose of marketing NHEP participants to
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prospective employers, attend employment expos, job fairs, etc., including setting up
an information booth if appropriate, educate employers on the various incentive and
tax relief options available to employers; .

(d) Becoming proficient with traditional employment resources including state and/or
local labor market trends as well as NHES resources to include the ELMI, ONET
and NH Network online services to identify potential employment growth
opportunities that may be of benefit to participants;

(e) Dlssemmatlng new job/OJT prospects to NHEP teams and CSP staff in order to
increase employment opportunities for NHEP clients statewide, provide OJT
presentations to CSP classrooms to increase OJT awareness and referrals to NHEP
participants and staff, act on all referrals for placement services from the local NHEP
teams and CSP staff in a timely manner;

() Marketing OJT program to local businesses and non-profit organizations in demand
occupational areas to engage as NHEP OJT sites, arrange interviews with OJT
employers for NHEP participants;

(9) Preparing and executing detailed and accurate OJT contracts with employers
according to NHEP, NHES, and DOL expectations and regulations, monitoring of
client progress at the OJT work site, and other duties as assigned by the OJT-
Community Job Spegcialist Supervisor.

V. Twenty-two (22) FTEs.to serve as-Combined Services Program Coordinators that have a
minimum of a Bachelors degree from an approved college or university and a minimum of
two (2) years of professional work experience in social work, counseling, education, staff
training, employee development, or human resources; with experience in assisting

-individuals in finding employment, knowledge of the principles and methods of assessment
and career counseling; experience or an ability to demonstrate an understanding of working
with low-income populations or hard-to-serve individuals. Experience with and/or a strong
familiarity with local and statewide educational and social services; experience in or an
ability to demonstrate skills in job development and public relations with employers, and
experience in classroom or group instruction. This position reports directly to the CSP
Supervisor. v
1. Job duties include but are not limited to::

(a) Providing orientation to NHEP participants entering the CSP provide a vocational
assessment for each NHEP participant and prepare a summary of the assessment
results to be provided to the NHEP ECS;

(b) Teaching/facilitating classes and activities in the areas identified in Section 4.3 of the
RFP using a variety of teaching and-communication technigues including computer-
based models that allow individuals to work independently and/or demonstrate
proficiency by testing-out of certain competency areas;

(c) Identifying job ready participants and assisting them to conduct a professional job
search leading to.employment;

(d) Monitoring job search efforts of clients in the job search activity by knowing the local
labor market in order to refer clients to appropriate employers, referring clients to
available jobs, following up with job leads and job interviews, and participating in
mock interviews aimed at increasing job interviewing skills.

(e) Identifying and developing on-site WEP opportunities in fields such as health, social
service, environmental protections, education, urban and rural redevelopment,
welfare, recreation, public safety and child care, in collaboration with local non-profit
agencies, faith-based organizations, local government entities or other community
agencies;

(H Obtaining, executing and delivering structured programs, embedded activities and
community services projects, monitor participant attendance and inform the NHEP
ECS on a daily basis of any NHEP participant attendance issues or absences;

(9) Accurately tracking and verifying individual NHEP participant participatign in
program, and provide verification documentation to the NHEP ECS, prepare and
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(h)

@

provide to the NHEP ECS weekly individual participant progress reports that include:
written observations of the participant’s performance, a summary of the participant’s
progress in the program, and recommendations for subsequent NHEP activities .
appropniate for the participant;

Facilitating participant’s engagement with and use of other community resources,
while assisting participants in resolving obstacles to participation that may arise
during his/her attendance in the CSP; '
Completing written casework documentation as defined in the resulting contract; and
attending scheduled staff training-and meetings, meetings with the local NHEP team,
and local partner meetings.

"VI. Ten (10) FTEs to serve as OJT-Commumty Job Specuallsts with a Bachelors degree from an
approved college or university in social work, psychology, counseling, education or business
administration or a related field. Minimum of two (2) years of professional work experience in
counseling, teaching, social services or business involving career counseling, employee
development, social work or human resources; with experience in assisting individuals in
finding employment, knowledge of the principles and methods of assessment and career
counseling; experience or an ability to demonstrate an understanding of working with low-
income populations or-hard-to-serve. Expenence with and/or a strong familiarity with local
and statewide educational and social services; experience in or an ability to demonstrate
skills in job development and public relations with employers. This position reports directly to
the OJT-CJS Supervisor position.

Job.duties include but not limited to:

1.

CA/DHHS/100213
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(b)

ldentifying, developing and marketing OJT and WEP opportunities:in local non-profit
agencies, faith-based organizations, local government entities, and other business
and industry entities to develop work experience host sites; -

Participating and/or presenting the work skills training/work experience program
orientations, work with the CSP Coordinators in assessing NHEP. participant skills
and interests and assist NHEP part:cnpants in selectmg and secunng appropnate

" work 'eXpérience placement;

()

(d)

(e)

®

(9)

Q)

Executing OJT and WEP agreements between NHEP participants and host sites for
no more than sixteen (16) weeks unless approved by DFA, aitange NHEP
participant interviews with OJT/WEP host sites, provide NHEP participant orientation
to OJT/WEP host site;

Monitoring NHEP participant progress at OJT/WEP, provide jobcoaching and
arrange workplace mentoring for NHEP participants at the OJT/WEP host site,
mediate and provide problem resolution to remedy issues experienced by the
OJT/WEP host and/or the NHEP participant;

Communicating to the NHEP ECS any NHEP participant needs for support services
and to address any remedial action or sanctions needed to remediate NHEP
participant behavior or performance issues experienced by:the host site employer;
Collecting and submitting weekly to the NHEP ECS NHEP: participants work
verification documentation, collect and review work experience:host site evaluations
at eight (8) weeks to assess participant progress, and at fourteen (14) weeks to
determine the appropriateness of extending the WEP agreement at the same site
Providing assistance as needed to the NHEP ECS in preparing the NHEP
participants to transition from WEP to OJT or into other countable NHEP work
activities to ensure continued client engagement toward meeting federal work
participation requirements;

Maintaining active WEP and OJT host site placement reports on a weekly and
monthly basis, discusses career interests with NHEP participant in order to provide
an appropriate and meaningful WEP or OJT placement, and other duties assigned
by the OJT-CJS Supervisor.
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Vil. One (1) FTE to serve as Combined Service Program Assistant with an Associates Degree or
higher and two (2) years experience as an Administrative Assistant or Project/Program

Assistant; or a combination of a High Schoo! Diploma (or GED) and four (4) or more years of - -

experience as an Administrative Assistant or Project/Program Assistant may be considered.
Knowledge of modern office practices, procedures and equipment. Knowledge of English,
spelling and arithmetic. Knowledge of office record keeping and reporting. Some
knowledge of the principles and practices of public administration. This position reports
directly to the CSP Administrator.

1. Job duties include but not limited to:

(a) Use Microsoft Word and Excel, or required database software to produce
correspondence and ad hoc, monthly, and quarterly financial or program-related
reports; use e-mail to communicate with internal and external contractor staff and
distribute reports and documents via same;

(b) Designing and/or update various CSP Statewide Reports in accordance with
contractual guidelines at the start of each State Fiscal Year, provide technical
support and training to program staff to ensure accurate and complete reporting.

(c) Collecting and reviewing local reports from CSP staff and use Excel to compile
Statewide CSP statistical reports on a monthly, weekly, or annual basis, use New
Heights case management system to research TANF client information and support
program operations; assist staff in resolving technical issues pertaining to New
Heights access and use.

(d) Entering and/or maintaining participant-related data (such as demographic, program
status changes, etc.) in the electronic customer database and produce reports as
requested, maintain, revise, and distribute CSP pohcnes dlrectrves and procedures
per supervisor instruction; -

(e) Coordinate with the contractor and the NHEP staff for tralnlng loglstlcs and to
arrange conference space, travel directions and plans for the NHEP Program
Administrator or assigned staff, facilitate purchase of equipment and office supplies
for the CSP and maintain related records. ‘

(f) Processing and tracking payments for interpreting services in the. CSP maintain and
distribute the CSP staff contact list, attend NHEP staff meetings-as requested,
present a professional and positive image as an agency representative, perform
such other work-related activities as required by the NHEP Program Administrator or
their designee.

CA/DHHS/100213 Page 25 of 30 Contractor Initials %

Exhibit A pate ¥ )51



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A

9. No or Limited-English Proficiency Combined Service Program Component

A.

B.

The contractor shall provide sufficient culturally and linguistically appropn'ate supports/services to
ensure equal access in all aspects of this contract..

In an effort to best meet the specialized need of those |nd|v1duals that are unable to effectively
engage in work program services due to potential cultural or linguistic barrier, as part of the
general scope of service, Statement of Work, the contractor specifically serve a culturally and
linguistically diverse population. The contractor shall be responsible for the provision of these
services that will be delivered as part of a combined service program.

The goal of this statewide no or limited-English proficiency component is to ensure that those
individuals who have no or limited-English proficiency have the same opportunity, through a
combined service program, to gain the necessary knowledge, skills, and abilities to effectively
engage New Hampshire’s predominately English speaking employment labor market.

In order to most effectively prepare no or limited-English proficient individuals with long term skills
to navigate the employment environment in New Hampshire labor markets, the contractor will
ensure the provision of curricula that both enhance client immersion in predominantly English-
speaking activity environments and also provide to the extent possible for minimum on-site
coaching staff. Curricula will include either individual or group activities such as CWEP, AWEP,
English as a second language training, job skills training, job readiness, and other activities.
Additionally, the contractor will provide a curriculum that allows for both individual and group
AWEP and CWEP emersion into.a predominately English-speaking work environments that
ultimately promotes self-sufﬁmency in local labor markets.

The contractor wilf ensure the provision of a statewide language assessment tool to allow for
more defined case management and work: program services.

The contractor will prqvide specialized services as relates to a no or hmnted—Engllsh proficiency
population, and/or through a contractual agreement w1th -a sub-contracted agency, for all or a
portion of said services as described-in this contract. :*

. Asufficient. number of FTEs; minimum- quallﬁcatlons to.include:

1. A Bachelors degree from an approved college or.university in social work, psychology,
oo_qn_selmg, education or business administration or a related field. A-minimum of two (2)
years of professional work experience in counseling, teaching, social services or
business involving career counseling, employee development, social work or human

- resources; with experience assisting individuals in finding employment, integrating a no
~or limited-English proficient population into a culturally different labor market, knowledge

~ of the principles and methods of assessment and career counseling; experience or an
ability to demonstrate an understanding of working with low-income populations or hard-
to-serve individuals (e.g., no or limited-English speaking, learming disabled).

2. Experience working with refugees and/or immigrants and the agencies that serve them;
experience with and/or a strong familiarity with local and statewide educational and
social services; experience in or an ability to demonstrate skills in job development with
a no or limited-English proficient population, and public relations with employers, and
experience in classroom or group instruction.

II.  Job duties include but not limited to:

1. Teaching/facilitating classes and activities in the areas identified in Section 4.3 of the
RFP using a vanety of teaching and communication techniques including computer-
based models that allow no or limited-English speaking participants to work
independently and/or demonstrate proficiency by testing-out of certain competency
areas, to include basic computer Skills, e.g., (keyboarding; internet; and e-mail);

2. Coordinating and directing the operation of the Service Bureau, a Community Service
activity, that provides participants (trainees) with on-site and off-site work assignments to
gain skills for entry into the local labor market and adherence to existing cultural aspects
of the local labor market skills, telephone skills, and workplace survival skills;

3. Providing NHEP activity services including interviewing skills, tailored resume
development & writing, networking techniques, and job search methods, conduct weekly
orientation of no or limited-English speaking individuals entering the programygoliects

CA/DHHS/100213 Page 26 of 30 Contractor Initials 64

Exhibit A pae U125 1H



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit A

baseline data on participants skill level, coordinate with CSP Coordinators and
supervises no or limited English speaking individuals CSP activities;

4. Monitoring of no or limited-English speaking individual attendance and informs the
NHEP ECS of any client attendance issues; accurately tracks and verifies individual no
or limited- English speaking individuals work participation in the CSP;

5. Entering select data in New Heights; and provides verification documentation to the local
NHEP - ECS, tracks and documents no or limited-English speaking individual progress
through the CSP and Service Bureau learning modules;

6. Communicating with the NHEP ECS to address no or limited-English speaking individual
barriers to employment requiring support services and/or to address any remedial action
or sanctions needed to cure client behavior or performance issues in the CSP, review of
no or limited-English speaking individual evaluations to improve effectiveness of CSP
activities; :

7. Assisting the NHEP. ECS in prepanng the no or Ilmlted -English Speaklng individuals for

transition,into a WEP OJT, and/or other countable NHEP work activities;

8. Ensunng continued client engagement toward meeting federal work participation
requirements, coordinate with CJS to review Orientation assessment materials, to
develop a pertinent.Work Activity Plan with the no or limited-English, speaking individuals,
and to select an appropriate WEP Host site;

9. Administration of a language assessment to determine the level of Enghsh prof‘ ciency of
no or hmlted—Enghsh speaking individuals;

10. Assisting the CJS in developing-and placing no or. Ilmlted-Enghsh speaking individuals in
appropriate area WEP or OJT opportunities that will build their occupahonal skills and
increase their ability to enter the job market,

11. Assisting-as needed in the coordination of services.between the NHEP Local Teams and

~ the CSP, provide full coverage for and/or. addltlonal support to on-sute staff, and other
duties. as assigned. :
H. The Bureau Chief of the DFA Bureau of Welfare to Work (BWW) or his or her desngnee reserves
the right to participate in the hiring process and/or approve all staff that work under this contract.
. All employees operating under the provigions of the resulting contract shall, in addition to
' their own reporting requirements, report to the individual designated by the BWW Bureau

Chief. .DFA reserves the right to remove any contracted employee from.the program for

unsatisfactory services. :

Il.  Any sub-contracted staff shall be ldentlf' ed as such by the contractor, and shall meet or
exceed-the staffing requirements. artlculated herein. DFA reserves the right, with sixty (60)
days advanced notice, to disallow sub use when the sub's handllng of staffing concermns is
not satisfactory to DFA.

10. Program Exit Guidelines
A. CSP participants will exit the WEP program when one of the following conditions is met:
I.  Successful completion of all activities;
- I.  Employment of 30 hours or more per.week;
Il. Financial Assistance for Needy Families (FANF) closes; and/or
IV. The CSP is deemed inappropriate for the participant through consultation with the NHEP
team member by whom the participant has been referred to the CSP.

B. Participants-attendance, progress deficiencies, and/or behavioral issues that constitute
noncompliance, or affect the safety or welfare of other participants, will require consultation with
the NHEP ECS to determine continued participation or termination from the CSP. In the instance
of disagreement between NHEP and the CSP as to the disposition of the participant, the Bureau
Chief of Welfare to Work or their designee will make the final decision for termination from the
CSP.

C. To promote the successful transition of parhcupants from TANF assistance into long-term
unsubsidized employment through the provision of Federal work activities including: vgcational
assessment, job readiness, job search, community service, work experience, OJT, angy“b skills
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training directly related to employment. All performance measures reports are to include the
specific data sets to substantiate the outcomes being reported. The successful bidder must meet
the following performance measures-outcomes of the program:

D. All clients, including those designated as having no or limited-English proﬁcrency, shall
successfully exit contracted services. An individual that has compieted all their hours as assigned,
and/or has left-for employment, or moved into another approved activity defines a successful exit.
Individuals that have not completed the hours as assigned due to leaving the program early of
their own volition, and/or have been-placed in noncompliance/sanction, or have not be granted an
excused absence, are not counted as part of the denomlnator for a successful exit.

I.  Job readiness:

1. 80% of clients shall complete a vocatlonal assessment 'specifying short and long-term
career plan;

2. 80% of clients shall receive a WorkKeys certification;

3. 80% of clients shall exit the program with the necessary job search tools, including an
up-to-date resume, completed ‘application, ]ob search and job interviewing skills.

ll. Job search:-
© 1. '80% of clients that complete the activity shall: demonstrate the ability to conduct an
individualized job search using standardized job search’ tools.
lll. Community service:

1. 80% of clients who have participated in commumty service placements shall
demonstrate the obtainment of work skills to'increase employability;

2. 60% of clients in-community service placement shall transltron dlrectly into an OJT or
unsubsidized employment.-

V. Work experience: '

1. 80% of clients who-have pamcrpated in work experience ‘placements shall demonstrate
the obtainment of work skills to increase employability;

2. 60% of clients in work expenence placement shall transrtron directly into an OJT or
unsubsidized employment B ,

TV On-thesjob’ trainiig (OJT)y — o e e e T

1. 90% of clients who' enter an OJT shaII femain employed for the entlre length of the OJT
contract penod

2. '90% of clients completing OJT contracts shall continue to be in unsubS|d|zed
employment 12 months from the end of the-contract.
VI. Job skills training directly related to émployment:

1. 80% of clients who compléte job skills training activity shall démonstrate the work skills
_necessary for the employment through completion of related cumculum and reported
satistactory performance in CSP activities.

VIl. General Program Measures

1. 80% of received client satisfaction surveys will have an overall score of 15 or above.

2. Vocational assessment results must be cdmpleted within 5 buslness days from
enrollment into the CSP.

3. Maintain,a minimum of 750 WEP host sites, with no less than 425 of those being active
each month, for the length of the contract. An active' WEP host site is defined as having

" beenutilized within the past 180 days;'

4. Maintain a minimum of 400 clients in active WEP placement slots each month. An active
WEP placement slot is defined as having been utilized within the past 180 days;

5. Develop a minimum of 84 OJT placements over the course of the contract, with no more
than 10% of placements being de-obligated.

E. The contractor must demonstrate achievement of on-going progress towards the above
performance measure outcomes, reporting on a monthly basis and otherwise meet the
requirements set forth in the contract. All performance measures reports are to include the
specific data sets to substantiate the outcomes being reported. In the event contract requirements
are not met, the contractor shall provide DFA with a detailed corrective action plan within (30)
thirty days of notification. Corrective action plans shall be subject to DFA approval. If aker
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approval and implementation, the contractor remains out of compliance, DFA reserves the right to
take the following actions: withhold payment, amend the corrective action plan, and/or may
terminate the contract, or any portion thereof, with sixty (60) days advance written notice.

11. Reporting Requirements
A. The contractor shall develop program reporting requirements and the related timeframes
necessary for meeting those requirements, as approved by DFA. A separate report shall be
provided specific to those clients that have been designated as having no or limited-English
proficiency. Reporting requirements for each activity shall include but not be limited to:
1. The successful bidder shall provide the following reports to include, but not limited to:
1. Statewide CSP Monthly Vocational Assessment Reports
2. Enroliments for vocational assessments
3. Completion of all vocational assessments and any related certificates earned.
. Statewide CSP Attendance Report
1. Daily to NHEP Teams :
2. Monthly to Welfare to Work Bureau Chief
3. Statewide CSP Weekly Capacity Reports to NHEP Teams and Welfare to Work Bureau
Chief
4. Statewide CSP Monthly and year-to-date Critical Measures to include, but not limited to:
(a) Number of enrollments to the CSP and an accounting of activity utilization.
{b) Number/reason of clients exiting CSP services
- (c) Exits from the CSP, due to employment, to include but not limited to:
(i) Occupation (Job title)
(i) Number of weekly hours
(iii) Hourly Wage
(iv) Standard Occupational Code
(d) Statewide CSP Weekly WEP host sites and slots availability (active and inactive)
(e) Statewide CSP Monthly OJT to include but not limited to:
(i) Occupation (Job title)
(i) Number of weekly hours
(iif)y Hourly wage
(iv) Standard occupational code
(v) Length of the contract with costs
(vi) Specific vocational preparation code
(H Statewide CSP on-site WEP to include but not limited to: :
(i) Number of on-site CWEP projects monthly and year-to-date including:
1. Number of projects (non duplicative or recurring)
2. Number of project hours (non duplicative or recurring)
3. Number of participants engaged (non duplicative or recurring)
4. Name of agencies requesting projects
5. Identification of skills to be acquired per project
(9) Statewide CSP WEP to unsubsidized employment report to include, but not limited
to:
(i) Occupation (Job title)
(i) Number of weekly hours
(iii) Hourly wage
(iv) Standard occupational code
(v) Specific vocational preparation code
il. The contractor shall provide monthly and year-to-date (or as otherwise stated below)
program reporting to include:
1. Reporting individual progress reports to the responsible NHEP ECS at least bi-weekly;
2. Number of participant referrals to the program by individual NHEP ECS; )ﬁ
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3. Number of enrolled participants identified as having a potential language barrier as well
as other communication barriers;

-4, Number of enrolled participants identified as having a potential learning disability or
difficulty; :

5. Summary of waiting lists by location showing the additions and deletions from the
waiting list since the last reporting period.

6. Areport for participants for whom Tests of Adult Basic Education (TABE) tests are
administered with the basic scores of the test identified. This report will be submitted by
service location site and individual NHEP participant;

IV. DFA reserves the right to adjust reporting requirements if such adjustments improve the
documentation of program services and outcomes.
V. All reporting requirements shall be provided to DFA in a format developed in conjunction with

DFA and in a system that is developed by the contractor with DFA approval4. ‘

* DFA currently funds éata collection systems for TANF-retated contracted services. DFA reserves the right to retain
the current systems and to require the contractor on-site to collaborate on their use.
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EXHIBITB METHODS AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Contractor: Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS)

Contract Pe}iod: July 1, 2013 or date of Governor and Council Approval, whichever is later,

through June 30, 2015

FUNDING OF CONTRACT

. This contract is funded, with federal funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic

Assistance, CFDA #93.558, Federal Agency Health and Human Services Program Title
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families in the amount of $ 9,304,228.96.

. Subject to the contractor's compliance with the terms and conditions of this Contract, and for

services provided to eligible ‘individuals, the Division of Family Assistance shall reimburse

Southern New Hampshire Services up to a maximum total payment of $9,304,228.96.

. The total amount of all payments made to the contractor for costs and expenses incurred in the

performance of the Combined Staffing and Combined Services Programs during the period July 1,
2013 through June 30, 2015, shall not exceed $ 9,304,228.96 and in accordance SFY 14 & SFY

15 budget forms.

. Upon receipt of monthly invoices, the Division of Family Assistance shall reimburse the Contractor

when:

1. Invoices submitted for reimbursement are within thirty (30) working days following the end of
the month during which the contract activities were completed, and the final invoice shall be
due to DFA no later than sixty (60) days after the completion date of this Contract. Failure
to submit the final invoice by that date may result in non-payment.

2. Payment will be made by DFA subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if
sufficient funds are available in the budget line item submitted by the contractor to cover the
costs and expenses incurred in the performances of the services.

3. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports as defined in Exhibit A.

. The contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases or the

creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price.
1. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval by the

Division of Family Assistance.

. The Contractor shall invoice the Division of Family Assistance for reimbursement of expenditures

in a format consistent with the agreed upon DHHS Budget Forms.

Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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G. Invoices shall be sent to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health & Human Services
NH Division of Family Assistance

129 Pleasant St., Brown Building
Concord, NH 03301

H. There shall be no financial costs incurred by DFA for any services or related resources that are
otherwise available from Southem New Hampshire Services on a non-reimbursable basis.

i
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Budget Form

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
Budget Request for: NHEP Combined Service Program _ (RFP# 13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05) Revision 1
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 (SFY 2014)
1._Total Salary/Wages $ 1,465,745.71 $ 1,465,745.71
2. Employee Benefits $ 500,460.05 $ 500,460.05
3. Consultants $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00
4. Equipment: $ 98,648.00 $ 98,648.00
Rental $ 1,548.00 $ 1,548.00
Repair and Maintenance $ 29,600.00 $ 29,600.00
Purchase/Depreciation $ 67,500.00 $ 67,500.00
5. Supplies: $ 114,312.00 $ 114,312.00
Educational $ 78,078.00 $ 78,078.00
Medical $ - 3 -
Office $ 36,234.00 $ 36,234.00
6. Travel 1$ 55,720.00 $ 55,720.00
7. Occupancy 1$ 425,312.00 $ 425,312.00
8. Current Expenses $ 49,163.68 $ 49,163.68 |
Telephone $ 37,557.00 $ 37,557.00
Postage $ 3,267.68 $ 3,267.68
Subscriptions $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ -
Insurance $ 8,339.00 $ 8,339.00
Meeting Expenses $ - $ -
Software $ 10,575.00 $ 10,575.00
._Marketing/Communications $ 11,263.00 $ 11,263.00
. Staff Education and Training $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00
._Subcontracts/Agreements $ 253,887.82 $ 253,887.82
. Other (specific details mandatory] $ - $ -
$ - 18 -
Sub-Total Direct | $ 2,992,5687.26 $ 2,992,587.26
Sub-Total Indirect | $ .- $ 278,310.621 § 278,310.62 Note 1
I TOTAL $ 2,992,587.26 | $ 278,310.62 | $ 3,270,897.88 | -
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.3%
Note 1 - SNHS applied its Federally-Approved Indirect Rate of 9.3%.
Exhibit B Contractor Initials 6 ‘
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Budget Form

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period:

. Total Salary/Wages

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

NHEP Combined Service Program

(RFP# 13-DFA-BWW-CSP-05) Revision 1

(Name of RFP)

1,509,003:71"

~ July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 (SFY 2015)

$ 'S 1,509,003.71
. Employee Benefits $ 564,504.50 $ 564,504.50
. Consultants $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00
. _Equipment: $ 71,148.00 | IE 71,148.00
Rental . 13 1,548.00 $ 1,548.00
Repair and Maintenance $ 29,600.00 $ 29,600.00
Purchase/Depreciation $ '40,000.00 $ 40,000.00
. Supplies: $ 114,492.00° $ 114,492.00
Educational 13 78,078.00 $ 78,078.00
Medical 1% - $ . -
Office $ 36,414.00 | $ 36,414.00
6. Travel $ 55,720.00 $ 55,720.00
7. Occupancy $ 444,575.95 $ 444,575.95
8. Current Expenses $ 50,686.68 $ 50,686.68
Telephone $ 39,037.00 $ 39,037.00
__Postage __1s _3,267.68 $ 3,267.68
Subscriptions P 1S - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ -
__Insurance $ 8,382.00 $ 8,382.00
Meeting Expenses $ - $ -
Software 1s 10,575.00 $ 10,575.00
. _Marketing/Communications $ 11,536.00 $ 11,536.00
. Staff Education and Training | $ 4,240.00 $ 4,240.00
._Subcontracts/Agreements $ 260,869.47 $ 260,869.47
. Other (specific details mandatory] $ - $ -
) $ - $ -
"~ Sub-Total Direct | $ '3,099,351.31 $ 3,099,351.31
Sub-Total Indirect | § - $ 288,239.67 | $ 288,239.67 Note 1
. TOTAL $ 3,099,351.31 | $ 288,239.67 | $ 3,387,690.98

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Note 1 - SNHS applied its Federally-approved Indirect Rate of 9.3%

Exhibit B
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Budget Form

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name:

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS)

Budget Request for:

NHEP $taffing Services RFP# 13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03 (Revised 3/18/13)

Budget Period:

(Name of RFP)

July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 (SFY 2014) -

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 869,905.22 $ - 869,905.22.
2. Employee Benefits $ 288,096.04 $ 288,096.04
3. Consultants $ - $ -
14. Equipment: $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00
Rental g - . g -
Repair and Maintenance 3 500.00 3 500.00
Purchase/Depreciation 3 1,500.00 3 .1,500.00

5. Supplies: $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00
Educational 3 - 13 ) -
Medical 3 - $ -
Office $ 2,000.00 3 2,000.00

6. Travel $ 20,500.00 -$ 20,500.00

7. Occupancy $ - - $ -

8. Current Expenses $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00
Telephone 3 900.00 3 900.00
Postage_ $ 100.00 3 100.00
‘Subscriptions 3 - 3 -
Audit and Legal 3 - $ -
Insurance $ - $ -
Meeting Expenses $ - $ -

9. ‘Software $ - $ -

10._Marketing/Communications $ - $ =

11. Staff Education and Training | $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00

12.  Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ -

13. Other:(specific details mandatory] $ - $ -

3 - 3 - _ -
Sub-Total Direct | $ 1,186,001.26 $ 1,186,001.26
Sub-Total Indirect | $ - $ 110,298.12| $ 110,298.12
I TOTAL $ 1,186,001.26 | $ 110,298.12 | $ 1,296,299.38 NOTE 1

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.3%

Note 1 - SNHS applied its Federally-approved Indirect Rate of 9.3%

.
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Budget Form

Bidder/Program Name:

Budget Request for:

Buydget Period:

FEER TP

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS)

NHEP Staffing Services RFP# 13-DFA-BWW-STAFF-03 (Revised 3/18/13)

(Name of RFP)

July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 (SFY 2015)

1. Total Salary/Wages '$ 895,116.96 | $ 895,116.96
2. Employee Benefits $ 311,434.011 $ - 311,434.01
3. Consultants $ - $ - $ ) -

4. Equipment: 1$ 2,000.00| $ - $ 2,000.00
Rental 3 - $ - 3 -
Repair and Maintenance $ 500.00} $ - $ 500.00
Purchase/Depreciation 3 1,500.00| $ - $ 1,500.00

5. Supplies: $ 2,000.00§ $ - - $ 2,000.00
Educational $ - $ - 3 -
Medical 3 - $ - 3 -
Office $ 2,000.001 $ - $ 2,000.00

6. Travel $ 20,500.00 ] $ - $ 20,500.00

7. Occupancy $ - $ - $ -

8. Current Expenses $ 1,070.00] $ - $ 1,070.00

_Telephone 3 950.001 $ - 3 950.00

. Postage 3 120.00] $ - 18 120.00°
Subscriptions 3 - $ - $ -
‘Audit and Legal . ) - $ - § - <
Insurance R K 3 - $ - 3 -
Meeting Expenses 13 - $ - $ -

9. Software s $ - $ - $ -

10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ - $ -

11. Staff Education and Training $ 2,500.00] $ - $ 2,500.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements '3 - $ - 18 -

13. Other (specific details mandatory] $ - $ - $ -

: : 3 - $ - $ -
Sub-Total Direct | $ 1,234,620.97 $ 1,234,620.97
Sub-Total Indirect | $ - $ 114,819.75| § 114,819.75 —
| TOTAL $ 1,234,62097 | $ 114,819.75 | $ 1,349,440.72 NOTE 1
9.3%

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Note 1 - SNHS applied its Federally-approved Indirect Rate of 9.3%
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT C .

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and,
in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with apphcable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

4. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to -
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the' Department
may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or. make a
payment, :gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to
influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any ofﬂcnals, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or
Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any-purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and-no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or {except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such
services.

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor's costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess
of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders, the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shali be established;

8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of
costs;

NH DHHS Contractor {nitials: é (é
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8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the
Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

"RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and
other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with
accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and
which are . acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, .vouchers, requisitions for materials,
inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or
required by the Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility (incIUding all
forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescnbed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
Contractor fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations" and
the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by

. the US General Accountlng Office (GAO standards) as they pertaln to financial compllance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of. this Contract -and the penod for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes directly connected to the administration of the services and the
Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for
any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities
with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his attorney
or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the foliowing times
if requested by the Department.
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12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all
costs and non-aliowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the
Department. ”

' 12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitied within thirty (30) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal and other information required by the

Department.

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and
all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses
claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the
amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared during or
resultmg from the performance of the services of the Contract shall mcIude the followmg statement:

14.1 The preparatlon of this (report, document etc.) was fmanced under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided ‘in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or requnred e.g., the United States Department
of Health and Human Serwces

15. Prior Approval and Copynght Ownershlp
" All materials (wrltten 'video, audio) produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS
before printing, ‘production,, distribution of use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any-and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories; protocols or gwdellnes posters, or
reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any matenals produced under the contract w1thout prior written approval

“from DHHS.

16. Operation of -Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for
providing services, -the. Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an
order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

17. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with greater
expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience, but the Contractor shall
retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate
the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement
that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation
or imposing sanctions if the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same
contractual conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance with
those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
+ Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating the function

e Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities and

how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate
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« Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

e Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

e DHHS shall review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall take corrective
action. '

SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable and
reimbursable in accordance with cost and.accounting pnncrples established in accordance with state and federal
. laws, regulations, rules and orders. :

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required by
the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuats by the Contractor

+in accordance with the terms and conditions .of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue
for each service to be provrded under the Contract.

UNIT For each service that the Contractor is to provnde to ellglble individuals hereunder, shall mean that period of
time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulatrons, rules, orders and pohcres etc. are referred
to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed: to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as,they may be
amended or revised from the time to. tlme

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this Contract
will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT C-I

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. The Department reserves the right to renew this contract for up to four additional years subject to
continued availability of funds, satistactory performance of services, and approval of contract
renew_al by the Governor and Executive Council.

'
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January 2009 Date: Q'/ * ‘ 5 i
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitie D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: ' :

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
GConcord, NH 03301-6505

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,'

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and
4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: é
Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements q/ 19 -1%
January 2009 Date: 2.1
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(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) - Natifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after. such
conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant; -

4] Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice . under
subparagraph (d)(2), wrth respect to any employee who is so convicted
(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and rncludrng
termination, consistent wrth the requirements of the Rehabrlrtatlon Act of 1973, as
‘ amended; or A ,
{2). ~Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse a‘ssistance‘ or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health law enforcement or other approprrate agency,

(g) Makrng a good falth efforl to continue to maintain a drug -iree workplace through Jmplementatron
of paragraphs .(a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

“The grantee may insert in the space provided below the srte(s) for the performance of work done rn

connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03103

Check [X if' there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc. : From:7/1/2013 To: 6/30/2015

(Contractor Name) (Period Covered by this Certification)

Gale Hennessyy Executive Director

(Name & Ttle of Ruthorized ontractor Representative)

U 2-173
(Con ador Representallve Sign ure) (Date)
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: GC
Standard Exhibit D — Certitication Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements
January 2009 Date; q’ )2 1%
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT E
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*“Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under. Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV -

Contract Period: 7/1/13 through 6/30/15

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

M

(@)

(3)

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on-behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or.employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mentlon sub—grantee or sub-contractor).

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wull be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer: or employee of any- agency, "a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member 6f Congress in confiection ‘with this-Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL,” (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

The undefsigned shall require that the language of this: certification be-included ‘in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, foans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordlngly *

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or, entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction .
imposed by Sectiory 1352, Titie 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject
to a civil pehalty of hot less than $10,000 and-not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Gale Hennessy, Executive Director

(@tractor Representalive Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (‘(' 1%
(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: G
Standard Exhibit E ~ Certification Regarding Lobbying Q )
January 2009 Date: i )‘5




Page of
NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following

Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing ‘and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospectlve pnmary partncapant iS.
providing the certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participanit
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the NH-Department of Health and Human
Services' (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
the prospective primary part:cnpant to furnish a certification or an explanation shai] dlsquahfy
such person from participation in this transactlon

The certification in this clause.is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
prospective. primary parttcupant knowingly rendered an erroneous certifi catlon in addition to
other remedies available to'the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or.default. :

The prospective primary partncnpant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary
participant learns that its “certification was erroneous when ‘submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” ,"person," “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
See the attached definitions. .

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from pammpatlon in this covered transaction, unless authorized by
DHHS.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials? 6 (t’
Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters

January 2009
Page 10f 3

Date: Q’)‘l) )7).
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10.
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The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered

transactions. '

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous.. A participant may decide the method and trequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. .= Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower. tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

M

(2)

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of ifs knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals: . A

(a) are not presently debarréed, suspended proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
_volunitarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

{b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been-convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, maklng false statements, or receiving stolen

property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise crimina!ly or civilly charged by a governmental
entity, (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and’

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
(contract).

¢

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations ) Contractor Initials:
Standard Exhibit F -

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters [I, 9 7
January 2009 Date: !
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals: - -

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal
department or agency. '

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any‘ of the above,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it

will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
overed transzctions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Gale Hennessy, Executive Director

ctor Representatlv Sighature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Southem New Hampshlre Services, Inc. q‘ w“ ""b
(Contractor Name) (Date)
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:_» U
Standard Exhibit F —
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters q » )L. ’/)1
January 2009 Date: J
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor-identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: '

1. By signing and submitting this proposél (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

AN

\,
5y

e\ > Gale Hennessy, Executive Director
(Co@r Represemative Si@re) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
e § R E N
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. q ' ) b
(Contractor Name) o (Date) :
]
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations ' Contractor Ipitials: 6

Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act LK/ 52
January 2009 Date: ) Ij




